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Directors and Senior Management
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As at 8 March 2016, the date of the Report of the Directors, the
biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Company are as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

CHEUNG YUK FUNG Chairman

Mr. Cheung, age 69, is the Chairman and an Executive Director of
the Company. He graduated from the Faculty of Radio Electronics at
Peking University in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and
worked as a professor at Peking University thereafter. Prior to joining
the Group in 2001, Mr. Cheung was a chairman of a company listed
in the PRC, namely Founder Technology Group Corporation, and a
director of a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), namely Founder Holdings Limited, and
has work experience in international trade, finance, asset management
and strategic planning. Mr. Cheung was honoured with many awards,
including being selected as the young entrepreneur with outstanding
contribution to China, and won the first prize of national golden award
for enterprise initiators in the 4th National Technology Industrialist
Award.

KUI MAN CHUN Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kui, age 49, is the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive
Director of the Company. He graduated from Peking University in
the PRC with a master’s degree in international relations and has over
24 years of experience in the information technology industry and
investment activities. Mr. Kui is also the chairman, chief executive
officer and a director of Hi Sun Limited (“HSL”), the Company’s
substantial shareholder. Prior to joining HSL in 2000, Mr. Kui was the
president of an enterprise in the PRC. He joined the Group in 2000.

XU WENSHENG

Mr. Xu, age 47, is an Executive Director of the Company. He graduated
from the Dalian University of Technology with a bachelor’s degree in
computer science and engineering. Mr. Xu is also a director of HSL.
Prior to joining the Group in 2003, Mr. Xu was the president of a
system integration company and has extensive experience in computer
systems integration of the financial industry.

LI WENJIN

Mr. Li, age 52, is an Executive Director of the Company. He graduated
from Peking University in the PRC with a master’s degree in law. He
has over 24 years of experience in investment and administrative
affairs. Mr. Li is also a director of HSL. Prior to joining HSL in 1999,
he had worked for several companies in the PRC and Hong Kong.
He joined the Group in 2000. Mr. Li has also been appointed as an
executive director of PAX Global Technology Limited, an associated
corporation of the Company, since 24 February 2010.
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Directors and Senior Management

XU CHANG JUN

Mr. Xu, age 49, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from Peking University in the PRC with a master’s degree in
international economics. Prior to joining the Group in 2001, Mr. Xu
had worked for several companies in the PRC and Hong Kong. He has
over 24 years of experience in corporate management of enterprises in
Hong Kong and the PRC.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

TAM CHUN FAI

Mr. Tam, age 53, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company. He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy. Mr. Tam is a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member
of Chartered Financial Analyst and has over 24 years’ experience in
auditing, corporate advisory services as well as financial management
and compliance work. Mr. Tam is currently an executive director of
Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (a major red chip company) and
an independent non-executive director of KWG Property Holding
Limited, both of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He joined the Group in 2004.

LEUNG WAI MAN, ROGER

Mr. Leung, age 59, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in law and a postgraduate
certificate in laws from the University of Hong Kong. He also obtained
a Juris Doctor degree from the University of Western Ontario, Canada.
Mr. Leung has been a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong since 1984
and is now a partner of the law firm, Messrs Foo, Leung & Yeung.
He was also admitted as a solicitor in England and Wales and as a
barrister, solicitor and notary public in Ontario, Canada. Mr. Leung
has extensive working experience in law both in Hong Kong and
in Canada. He served as a member of the Inland Revenue Board
of Review from 1997 to 2005 and has been appointed as a China-
appointed Attesting Officer since January 2003. Mr. Leung is currently
an independent non-executive director of China Flavors and Fragrances
Company Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He joined
the Group in 2004.
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Directors and Senior Management
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CHANG KAI-TZUNG, RICHARD

Mr. Chang, age 61, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company. Mr. Chang graduated from the University of Texas at
Austin, United States of America with a bachelor’s degree in Statistics
and Operations Research. Mr. Chang possesses more than 20 years
of experience in electronic payments industry in Southeast Asia,
Japan and the Great China. Mr. Chang was the Senior Vice President,
Global Clients APCEMEA of VISA Inc. (“VISA”) in Singapore. He was
previously VISA’s Greater China General Manager, Japan General
Manager, and senior country manager for Singapore, Thailand, the
Philippines and Indochina. He joined the Group in 2009 as a Non-
Executive Director and was re-designated as an Independent Non-
Executive Director on 26 February 2016.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at the date of the Report of the Directors, Mr. Li Huimin, Mr. Yang
Xiao Dong, Mr. Li Wei, Mr. Zhao Yue Hui and Ms. Hui Lok Yan were
the Company’s senior management.

LI HUIMIN

Mr. Li, age 36, is the president of BETT{I X BRAA] (“SXF”). He
graduated from Hubei University of Technology with a bachelor’s
degree in Electrical Technology. He joined the Group in 2008. He
has over 10 years of experience in third-party payment industry
management.

YANG XIAODONG

Mr. Yang, age 42, is the president of Beijing Hi Sunsray Information
Technology Ltd. He graduated from Beijing University of Posts
and Telecommunications in the PRC, with a bachelor’s degree in
Engineering. He joined the Group in 2000 and has over 15 years of
experience in corporate management.

ZHAO YUE HUI

Mr. Zhao, age 51, is the chief executive officer of Hangzhou PAX
Electronic Technology Limited. He graduated from Zhejiang University
with a bachelor’s degree in engineering, and received a master’s
degree in engineering from Tongji University. He has over 14 years of
experience in corporate management. He joined the Group in 2000.

HUI' LOK YAN

Ms. Hui, age 37, is the Group Financial Controller and Joint Company
Secretary of the Company. She graduated from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration.
Ms. Hui is currently a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Group in
2007, she was a manager of an international public accountancy firm.
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Dear Shareholders,

During 2015, the consolidated revenue amounted to HK$1,376.8
million, as compared to HK$1,529.2 million in 2014. Such decline
was mainly contributed by the decrease in segmental turnover of
our electronic power meters and solutions and telecommunication
solutions segments during the year. Segmental EBITDA (before
impairment of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
and unallocated item) totaled HK$135.5 million, 65% up compared
to 2014. Such increase was primarily due to better performance of
our payment processing solutions segment in 2015. Profit for the year
totaled HK$192.7 million as compared to HK$401.2million last year.
Such decrease was primarily attributable to the fact that no gain on
disposal of interest in PAX Global was recognised in current year.

With regard to our balance sheet, the total assets as at 31 December
2015 amounted to HK$4,576.5 million, as compared to HK$4,110.8
million as at 31 December 2014. Among of which short term bank
deposit and cash and cash equivalents amounted to HK$2,315.7
million, accounting for 50.6% of the total assets. Interest in PAX
Global amounted to HK$1,525.0 million, accounting for 33.3% of
the total assets. As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of the Group’s
32.7% effective interest in PAX Global was approximately HK$2,908.4
million.

Year 2015 is an encouraging year to our payment processing solutions
segment, upon the passing of inspections in March 2015, we have
gradually resumed the acquisition of new merchants in accordance
with the requirement of the relevant regulatory bodies. Segmental
turnover amounted to HK$511.2 million, 8% up compared to last year.
Segmental operating profit amounted to HK$60.3 million as compared
to HK$1.3 million in 2014. By the year end of 2015, total accumulated
number of domestic merchants was exceeding 800,000, with a
monthly transaction volume of over RMB60 billion in December 2015.
In addition to the traditional fixed and mobile POS, we have launched
MPOS in 2015, and we will launch other innovative payment
processing solutions, such as the Smart POS, by phases in foreseeable
future. Meanwhile, we also began to introduce the internet payment
services business and mobile payment services business, providing our
customers with the online and offline integrated payment processing
solutions. Looking forward, we will further expand our prospective
financial business such as wealth management and financing business,
actively capturing the opportunities of internet finance development in
the PRC.
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A LE

N-B—HEF FE
7T 0 - Z— 4RI A1,529,200,0005 7T © U
ATRFEARFTFANEEAEERMBERAFER

RBEHBAFRDBEZ D EEETRD - 98
EBITDA(INBR B EERE R - BE K&
WA RARDBIER A1) A £ 4135,500,0007%

W A3 1,376,800,000 78

T B E—PFEEN65%  TEARINR
SREBRATENERN _E—HF2REFAS

e FEREFA £ A192,700,00058 7T - MEE
A1I/5401,200,000 7T © & FJE 2 = B R PR AF
[EI R L E B BRI RS 2 IES -

REMzEEAGBRMSE R —RF
+=ZA=+—H BE#E/54,576,500,000
B MRZE—NF+—A=+—HEA
4,110,800,000 % 7T o H A 52 AR 1T 77 ;A &
Re MReFEWR?2315,700,000% T -
HEEBESN6%  RNABRKZEZRS
1,525,000,0008 7T * {h B E#E33.3% ° N =
T-RF+-_A=1+—H AEERBEERKZ
32.7% BBz 2 A AR £2,908,400,0007%
5T o

MENRGEERASTRDENSE 21
FRESASE R _T—HAF-ARBEX
% BRPCZEBEEERBEEIR B MERE

AP o "*E**%gﬁ;%nzooooo,%m 8]
EFIENN8% o »FBLL &5 7 560,300,007 7T

ﬁ:%—miﬁﬁmmmw%ﬁong—ﬁ
FIK - 2B F L2208 R800,000F © =
T-AF+ZARGEAARKEC0ETT « BrE
FERPFZEPOSHN - HPITIR T —HFHD
MPOS + B1EA[78 R R S B H S EPOSE
BT N RSEBAATR o BFRK - BPITF
B A HE I B AR S RIS 2R AT 8) S A9 AR 7
¥ MEBEPREKGLEMETZHEATNRSE
BEATTER - B - BGE—THRIZ R
BEBEENLE SRER  BRICEREE
RS BB B o



8 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Letter from the Board
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Financial solutions segment reported turnover of HK$382.1 million
in 2015, an drop of 6% compared to last year. Segmental operating
profit amounted to HK$14.3 million, an drop of 33% compared to last
year. Decrease in segmental operating profit was mainly caused by
increased amortisation of computer software during the year. Looking
forward, we will manage to seize various opportunities with the rapid
development of payment and internet finance sector and reinforce
our market position with the BIG5 (five major banks in China), joint-
equity banks and their overseas subsidiaries, while targeting at city
commercial banks as an emerging strategic market.

2015 is another challenging year to our electronic power meter
and solutions segment given the keen market competition and ever
changing technology demands. Segmental turnover amounted to
HK$209.9 million, as compared to HK$326.7 million last year.
Segmental operating loss amounted to HK$15.8 million, as compared
to a segmental operating loss of HK$94.9 million in last year. Drop in
segmental loss was mainly attributable to the fact that no impairment
of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets was being
recognised during 2015 (2014: HK$69.5 million). Also, there was
an improved gross profit margin during the year. We will continue
to strengthen our key research and development projects, and
actively undergone technical preparation, in order to maintain the
competitiveness in the market.

Telecommunication solutions segment recorded turnover of HK$130.8
million, as compared to HK$197.7 million in 2014. Segmental
operating profit amounted to HK$4.3 million, as compared HK$10.1
million last year. Although the establishment of China Mobile’s new
and self-owned IVR business platform has caused certain challenges on
the supporting income, it is expected that the remaining recurring IVR
business will remain stable while the income from innovative business
focusing on individual users may steadily increase. Meanwhile, we
consider that there will be ample room for growth of the capacity
output business focusing on the corporate communication market,
and the demand for related supporting service will also increase
progressively, restoring and boosting the income gradually.
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During the year, payment platform solutions segment recorded
turnover of HK$143.0 million, an increase of 32% as compared to
2014. Segmental operating profit amounted to HK$25.3 million as
compared to HK$19.3 million in 2014. Increase in segmental turnover
and operating profit was mainly attributable to increase in income
from various new projects. While the E-commerce Base of China
Mobile is insistently developing its business horizon, we will seize
the opportunity to cooperate with the base at the operation level.
In addition, we consistently invest into the internet finance sector,
exploring the opportunity to innovate our own business in that sector.

Combined with our strong financial position, management will
remain focused on financial and operation disciplines and take hold
of various opportunities for the Group’s business growth in 2016. On
behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express our
appreciation and gratitude to Mr. Xu Sitao (“Mr. Xu”) who has tendered
his resignation as an independent non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 26 February 2016, for his contributions and
services to the Company during his tenure of office. Meanwhile, Mr.
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard (“Mr. Chang”) has been re-designated from
a non-executive Director to an independent non-executive Director of
the Company, with effect from 26 February 2016. We would like to
extend a warm welcome to Mr. Chang on taking up his new position.
Also, we would like to take this opportunity to express our utmost
gratitude to our customers, bankers, suppliers, business associates and
most valued shareholders for their continuous trust and support to the
Group.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE AND BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Review of business performance of the Group during the Reporting
Year and the Group’s business outlook are disclosed in the section
headed “Business Review” of the Report of the Directors in this Annual
Report.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group reported total assets of
HK$4,576.5 million (2014: HK$4,110.8 million), which were financed
by total liabilities of HK$1,238.6 million (2014: HK$896.5 million)
and equity of HK$3,337.9 million (2014: HK$3,214.2 million). The net
asset value was HK$3,337.9 million (2014: HK$3,214.2 million). Net
assets per share amounted to HK$1.202 as at 31 December 2015 as
compared to HK$1.158 per share as at 31 December 2014.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of HK$2,292.3 million (2014: HK$1,977.7 million) and no short term
borrowings (2014: Nil). The net cash position as at 31 December 2015
was HK$2,292.3 million as compared to HK$1,977.7 million as at
31 December 2014. The gearing ratio (defined as total borrowings
divided by shareholders’ equity) was zero (2014: same). The gearing
ratio is considered healthy and suitable for the continued growth of the
Group’s business.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND DETAILS OF CHARGES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no bank borrowings (2014:
Nil) and had banking facilities of approximately HK$21.2 million (2014:
HK$22.5 million). As at 31 December 2015, the banking facilities
were secured by the leasehold land and buildings of a subsidiary of
the Company, with a net carrying amount of HK$3.2 million (2014:
HK$3.5 million) and HK$11.0 million (2014: HK$12.7 million),
respectively.

Approximately HK$1,403.0 million, HK$522.7 million, HK$271.9
million, HK$87.9 million and HK$6.8 million of the Group’s cash
balances were denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollar, US
dollar, Japanese Yen, and Macanese Pataca (“MOP”) respectively as at
31 December 2015.

Approximately HK$979.4 million, HK$626.0 million, HK$272.9
million, HK$92.2 million and HK$7.2 million of the Group’s cash
balances were denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollar, US
dollar, Japanese Yen and MOP respectively as at 31 December 2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group had no significant
investment held as at 31 December 2015.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES OR ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have any
material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or associated companies
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no specific plan for
material investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2015.

EXCHANGE RATES EXPOSURE

The Group derives its revenue, makes purchases, incurs expenses
and has its assets and liabilities denominated mainly in US dollars,
Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and Japanese Yen. Currently, the Group
has not entered into any agreements or purchased instruments to
hedge the Group’s exchange rate risks. Any material fluctuation in the
exchange rates of Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi or Japanese Yen may
have an impact on the operating results of the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year, the Company entered into a performance guarantee
agreement with a customer (the “Performance Guarantee Agreement”).
Pursuant to the Performance Guarantee Agreement, the Company
agreed to provide the customer with a guarantee in relation to the
due and punctual performance of a subsidiary of the Group in
providing services for a modernisation project with not more than
HK$60,000,000 and claims of infringement of third party’s intellectual
property right. As at 31 December 2015, the Company does not
recognise any liability in relation to the Performance Guarantee
Agreement as the Directors of the Company consider the possibility of
reimbursement is not probable.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material contingent liability
as at 31 December 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BPLRG Z vk 5L o3 By

EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31 December 2015
was 2,104. The breakdown of employees by division is as follows:
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AEER-ZE-AF+-_A=+—RAZESBH
2,104 - EEIREFIADWAT -

Payment processing solutions SNRPERIBFRTT 401
Financial solutions TRIBER TR 348
Electronic power meters and solutions BRI EEm MR R 443
Telecommunication solutions BABRRTR 260
Payment platform solutions X FEARR 598
Others Hity 20
Corporate office % 34

2,104

The Group ensures that its remuneration packages are comprehensive
and competitive. Employees are remunerated with a fixed monthly
income plus annual performance related bonuses. The Group operates
a share option scheme and an employees’ incentive scheme, the
details of which are set out in the Report of the Directors of the Annual
Report 2015. The Group also sponsors selected employees to attend
external training courses that suit the needs of the Group’s businesses.

Disclaimer:

Non-GAAP measures

Certain non-GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles)
measures, such as EBITDA, are used for assessing the Group’s
performance. These non-GAAP measures are not expressly permitted
measures under GAAP in Hong Kong and may not be comparable
to similarly titled measures for other companies. Accordingly, such
non-GAAP measures should not be considered as an alternative to
operating income as an indicator of the operating performance of the
Group or as an alternative to cash flows from operating activities as a
measure of liquidity. The use of non-GAAP measures is provided solely
to enhance the overall understanding of the Group’s current financial
performance. Additionally, as the Group has historically reported
certain non-GAAP results to investors, the Group considers the
inclusion of non-GAAP measures provides consistency in our financial
reporting.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holdings. The
principal activities of the Group are provision of payment processing
solutions, provision of financial solutions, sales of electronic power
meters and solutions, provision of telecommunication solutions and
provision of payment platform solutions.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 59.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2014:
Nil).

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations was made by the Group during the
year (2014: HK$Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

The Company operates a share option scheme 2011 (the “Scheme”) for
the purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating talented employees
in order to strive for future developments and expansion of the Group.
Eligible participants of the Scheme (the “Participants”) include the
Group’s full-time employees, and executive and non-executive
Directors. The Scheme became effective on 29 April 2011 and unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from that date. Further details of the Scheme can be
found in the circular of the Company dated 28 March 2011.
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B

The total number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”) which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme,
and any other share option schemes of the Company in issue, shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the relevant class of securities of the
Company in issue as at the date of approval of the Scheme unless the
Company obtains a fresh approval from its Shareholders.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all exercised and/or outstanding options granted to
each Participant shall not in aggregate exceed 1% of the relevant class
of securities of the Company in issue in any 12-month period. Any
further grant of options in excess of the aforesaid 1% limit shall be
subject to the approval of the Shareholders of the Company with such
Participant and his/her associates abstaining from voting.

As at the date of this report, 267,342,983 Shares were available for issue
under the Scheme.

The exercise period of the options granted is determinable by the
Directors, and such period shall commence on the date of the offer of
the options (the “Offer Date”) and expire on the last day of such period
which must not exceed 10 years.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised and no performance target needs to be achieved by
the grantee before the options can be exercised.

A share option shall be deemed to have been accepted and to have
taken effect when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the
option duly signed by the Participant together with a remittance in
favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the
grant thereof is received by the Company.

The exercise price of an option shall be determined at the discretion
of the Board and shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the Offer Date, which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange
is open for the business of dealing in securities (“Trading Day”); (ii) a
price being the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five Trading Days
immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share.

No share option of the Company was granted or exercised during the
year ended 31 December 2015. As at 31 December 2015, and up
to the date of this report, there was no issued and outstanding share
option under the Scheme which has not been exercised or lapsed.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders as calculated under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended) amounted to HK$98,586,000 (2014:
HK$140,935,000). The Company’s share premium account, in the
amount of HK$1,290,857,000 (2014: HK$1,290,857,000) may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 168.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Shares during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

CONDENSED SEGMENT RESULTS ANALYSIS

E 30
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LE R E-ES Sk

EBITDA
(before impairment of
intan%ible assets and property,
plant and equipment)

Turnover EBITDACGHIRRER A ERUE AR
& M - BERRBRER)
2015 2014 2015 2014
—2-7 —TmE Z2-RE  —TME
HKSO0D  THKSO00  HKSO0D T HKS 00
TER FHET TER AT
Payment processing solutions INZIEBATT R 1 511,188 472,904 99,917 40,313
Financial solutions SREANE 2 384,147 408,530 26,814 25,818
Electronic power meters and solutions B EEMMARTR 3 209,860 326,666 (10,990) (17,685)
Telecommunication solutions SRR 4 157,025 197,721 9,588 20,477
Papment platform solutions AN R S WIES 5 151,012 110,240 25,704 19,708
Others HAh - 16,813 (15,557) (6,669)
Segmental results NEEEE ) 1,413,232 1,532,874 135,476 81,962
Less: Intra-group turnover A RENRRIEEERE (36,386) (3,695) - -
Total &&f 1,376,846 1,529,179 135,476 81,962
Impairment of property, plant and equipment  #)% - B & RERE 30° - (7,551)
Impairment of intangible assets BEEME 3,D - (61,978)
Depreciation e (52,645) (58,720)
Amortisation 3! (10,763) (5,419)
Segmental operating profit/(loss) DEBEEHER,/(B518) 72,068 (51,706)
Ungallocatedpother i%cpome/gain, net DB AU W F 6 7,226 130,681
Unallocated corForate expenses DEELERT 7 (72,801) (79,704)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary E—HNEAR s G - 51,743
Operating profit eyl 6,493 51,014
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT LS E e
2015 2014
—E2-HE T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TATT
Revenue WA A L—e1,376,846 1,529,179
Cost of sales SHEE R AR B (899,262) (1,019,820)
Gross profit Ev| 477,584 509,359
Other income HuA C 47,249 24,408
Other gains, net H W5 R C - 126,360
Selling expenses HERS B (134,839) (178,907)
Administrative expenses THRER B (383,501) (419,971)
Impairment of intangible assets ﬂﬁ?ﬁ@ﬂ%ﬁ D - (61,978)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RNE LR W G - 51,743
Operating profit LR 6,493 51,014
Share of loss of a joint venture ElE—EaE ¥ EE (794) (37,571)
Share of profit of an associated company JE(L — B N R 2 % A 199,012 156,472
(Loss or dilution) /net gains on dilution and disposal A —FHE#4 A R 2 5 2 (BE
of interest in an associated company E18) s o H S W E$ R F (8,442) 251,215
Profit before income tax B TS Bt A A 196,269 421,130
Income tax expense PSR (3,577) (19,886)
Profit for the year F % 192,692 401,244
Profit attributable to: it tepiy Ll
— Equity holders of the Company — RRAEFERHAA 183,486 397,071
— Non-controlling interests — FEIERR R 9,206 4,173
192,692 401,244
Earnings per share for profit attributable ARREREE ARG HKS per share  HKS$ per share
to the equity holders of the Company: R BRER & T BEET
Basic BN 0.066 0.143
Diluted e 0.064 0.130
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As at 31 D_ecember

R+=A=+—8H
2015 2014
b —TmF
HK$7000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
ASSETS BE
Investment properties, property, plant and REME - W% - BERRE
equipment and leasehold lan REETH H 249,908 146,270
Intangible assets mLEE I 18,855 29,389
Interest in an associated company N =Wl J 1,525,040 1,370,383
Interest in a joint venture R—HEadhxEsn K - 2,584
Available-for-sale financial asset AR ESREE L 6,982 -
Inventories FE M 53,113 53,726
Trade and bills receivables JEURR TN N FE IR = 4R N 235,589 336,828
Receivables from payment processing solutions SR DEIBMRR T ERERZ
business FE ZRIE N 115,642 106,784
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits H b pElgsoE - JEA RIE IR N 44,883 53,314
Amount due from an associated company JE U — s 2 A K e} 7,764 12,075
Amount due from a joint venture JEM—F & g bR @) 2,997 10,666
Short-term bank deposits 72 BRI TR 23,455 11,056
Cash and cash equivalents BEKIREEEY 2,292,287 1,977,677 7
Total assets BEERE 4,576,515 4,110,752
EQUITY fER
Capital and reserves attributable to the Company’s &R BEREE ABLEER
equity holders R
Share capital A& AR 6,942 6,942
Reserves & 3,301,886 3,185,439
3,308,828 3,192,381
Non-controlling interests FEIE R R 29,116 21,822
Total equity DB 3,337,944 3,214,203
LIABILITIES =i
Deferred income tax liabilities BIESHREsE 132 187
Trade and bills payables FERTBR R X BT =R P 201,223 178,002
Payables for payment processing solutions business XN ZRIZEER T REK 2
&R IR p 497,912 311,391
Other payables and accruals LA R 2008 & fE 51 kIR P 467,030 378,967
Amount due to an associated company FET—FEE A A B FRIE O 70,912 -
Current income tax liabilities BHFERAas 26,362 28,002
Total liabilities BERE 1,238,571 896,549
Total equity and liabilities BERkAEEHE 4,576,515 4,110,752
2015 2014
—E-AHE — TP
HK$ per share  HK$ per share
BRET BAETT
Net assets per share BREEFE 1.202 1.158
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT fHBRfGRERERER
2015 2014
—E-REF TP
HK$/000 HK$/000
FET THET
Net cash generated from operating activities REEBFRBRETE 477,534 166,241
Net cash (used in)/ generated from investing activities BEEE(A) FBRETE (76,326) 709,528
Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities RMETH(AA),FEREFHE (13,541) 69,269
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEYIENFE 387,667 945,038
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FUZHE RReEEBY 1,977,677 1,061,136
Exchange loss on cash and cash equivalents R MRLFEWZIELERE (73,057) (28,497)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FERZEERBRESEEY 2,292,287 1,977,677 o
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SEGMENT PERFORMANCE REVIEW

(M

(2)

Payment processing solutions
Key performance indicators

Turnover* =iy

Employees’ incentive programme & B S2E AT &

EBITDA (before impairment of EBITDA(HBRER & E
intangible assets and property, ﬁﬁlx‘/&&%% - BB
plant and equipment) MR FRIER])

Operating profit %‘“%/ﬁnﬂ

* Turnover from external customers

Segmental turnover amounted to HK$511.2 million, as
compared to HK$472.9 million in 2014. Despite keen market
competition and suspension of acquisition of new merchants in
early 2015, we have gradually resumed the acquisition of new
merchants in accordance with the requirement of the relevant
regulatory bodies in Q2 2015. Segmental operating profit
amounted to HK$60.3 million, as compared to HK$1.3 million
in 2014. The increase in segmental operating profit was mainly
due to increased scale of early settlement financial services
business. By end of 2015, there were over 800,000 accumulated
domestic merchants and the monthly transaction volume in
December 2015 exceeded RMB60 billion. Besides, it was due to
the fact that no share option expense was being recognised for
the payment processing solutions segment in respect of grants
of options in a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
during 2015 (2014: HK$27.3 million).

Financial solutions

Key performance indicators

Turnover* CETC

EBITDA (before impairment of EBITDA(BRER & ZE
intangible assets and property, 5)@2@1&(&%% - BB
plant and equipment) K& RERT)

Operating profit %% = A

* Turnover from external customers

During the current year, segmental turnover amounted to
HK$382.1 million, decreased by 6% as compared to 2014.
Segmental operating profit totaled HK$14.3 million, a 33% down
as compared to last year. Decrease in segmental operating profit
was mainly due to increased amortisation of computer software
during the year.

(M
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DERBEDM
INEBRBRTR
FTEXHEEE
2015 2014 Change
—E-EF CZTNF L)
HK$’000 HK$'000 +/(-)
FTET FHET
511,178 472,904 +8%
- (27,303) -100%
99,917 40,313 +148%
60,265 1,320 +4,466%

(2)

* RESEES ZEEE

DL EEEA511,200,00087C 0 M-
— U4 Bl 5472,900,000/8 7 © BE TS
BEYIIER _E-REVHEEEEA
¥FEp RPN - —HFFE _FHA
ﬁ?“%%xx BMIEBAFTEE -

D FBAE B4 ) 560,300,000 7T 0 —F
fmimﬁmmwm%n DR
FEAEZZHANIRFELEE S BIRTGESIE

R-Z2-2ZT—hHFK ' R BEABFH
HBiB800,000F » —E—HF+ AKX S
i A REE600ETT © o » LTI RR =

%fﬁﬁﬁéﬁiWJS@ﬁfFaﬁ 2 EM

NERHBREMN XN RS EEHR
E?’\iﬁﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬂﬂé%ﬁi(ff P4
27,300,000/ 7C) °

ERERT R

FEXRBIE
2015 2014 Change
—E-HE ZT-NF &3
HK$’000 HK$'000 +/(-)

FExT TET

382,096 406,987 -6%
26,814 25,818 +4%
14,256 21,314 -33%

* REHNEDE 2 4
$¢FW “ﬁMﬁﬁﬁmmmmm%
TT —OEFERLE B 6% o DL
gmﬂmAﬁmamom%n B AT
J:bﬂ *33% © \*EZ‘“%@Z"J/DZ/J\EKEEEA
N E S E R S N
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Electronic power meters and solutions
Key performance indicators

Turnover E <

EBITDA (before impairment of EBITDACHIRR B E B
intangible assets and impairment of ~ JRENLEYE « BE
property, plant and equipment) K& RERT)

Impairment of property, mE - BB KRB
plant and equipment BB

Impairment of intangible assets B EERE

Operating loss KEBE

Segmental turnover amounted to HK$209.9 million as compared
to HK$326.7 million in 2014. Decline in turnover was mainly
due to a drop in shipment level as compared to 2014. Segmental
operating loss amounted to HK$15.8 million, as compared to
HK$94.9 million in 2014. Drop in segmental loss was mainly
attributable to the fact that no impairment of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets was being recognised during
2015 (2014: HK$69.5 million). Also, there was an improved
gross profit margin during the year.

Telecommunication solutions
Key performance indicators

Turnover* R

EBITDA (before impairment of EBITDA(fIRREF EE
intangible assets and impairment of ~ JRENAKLYE - BE
property, plant and equipment) P& =N RIEN)

Operating profit R H A

* Turnover from external customers

During the year, segmental turnover amounted to HK$130.8
million as compared to HK$197.7 million in 2014. Segmental
operating profit amounted to HK$4.3 million, as compared
to HK$10.1 million last year. The decrease in segmental
turnover and hence a decrease in operating profit were mainly
contributed by the fact that China Mobile has established its own
IVR business platform during the year, leading to a decrease in
supporting income.

3
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ERFTEEMRBRAR
FEXBIENEZ
2015 2014 Change
—E—RE —ZE—OF k)
HK$’000 HK$'000 +(-)
FET FET
209,860 326,666 -36%
(10,990) (17,685) N/A N3
- (7,551) -100%
- (61,978) -100%
(15,834) (94,933) N/A N3

@

o FEE 258 5209,900,0008 T 0 ==
— P41 5326,700,000/8 7T © ‘& 2 5
LPEFEZHARLEER T —EFAMT
o DERLEEEA15,800,00078 7 0 M
—Z— PO 8 A94,900,0007F T © 9 48
ERERWETEAN T -RFHERERY
¥ BEEREANEREERBE(ZE

— P04 : 69,500,000/ 7T ) Lo+ FR
EFEIB TR o
ERMMARAR
T EBXRBIEZ
2015 2014 Change
—B-HE —TQOF )
HK$’000 HK$’000 +/(-)
FHExT FET
130,756 197,721 -34%
9,588 20,477 -53%
4,280 10,142 -58%

* RESEES 2 EEE

FA - DEE %%ﬁﬁnwoooooﬁémv
i — & — P4 A 4197,700,00078 7T °

s 2 m A &4,300, 000,%7z mEF E‘J
410,100,000/ 7T © 7 f8 & 258 P& R AL
ERFAM N EEZHRFENTBEBEK
VHEHBEAIVREBTE BRI ERAR

/> o

=
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(5)

(6)

(7)

Payment platform solutions
Key performance indicators

Turnover* B

EBITDA (before impairment of EBITDA(FIGRETL & 2=
intangible assets and property, plant  JB{ENARE - BEK
and equipment) RERIERT)

Operating profit vyl

* Turnover from external customers

Segmental turnover amounted to HK$143.0 million as compared
to HK$108.1 million in 2014. Segmental operating profit
amounted to HK$25.3 million, as compared to HK$19.3 million
last year. Increase in segmental turnover and operating profit
was mainly attributable to increase in income from various new
projects. We expect that we will continue to benefit from China
Mobile’s increasing input into its mobile payment business.
Currently, we are developing other value added services such as
exploration and innovation of mobile internet business.

Unallocated other income/gain, net
The amount mainly represented other income/gain, net
unallocated to segments. Please refer to Note (C) below.

Unallocated corporate expenses
The amount mainly represented corporate office expenses and
net foreign exchange loss.

OVERALL FINANCIAL RESULTS AND POSITION

(A)

Revenue

The consolidated turnover amounted to HK$1,376.8 million,
representing a decrease of 10% over 2014. Such decrease was
mainly contributed by the decrease in segmental turnover of our
electronic power meters and solutions and telecommunication
solutions segments. Please also refer to Notes (1) to (5) above.

%)
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EXNFEBRER
FEXRHIGIE
2015 2014 Change
—E-RF —TQ0F )
HK$'000 HK$’000 +/(-)
FET THET
142,956 108,088 +32%
25,704 19,708 +30%
25,284 19,346 +31%

(6)

@)

* REINBEP 2 &%

DEEEEEE A143,000,00087C 0 =
— P9 4 81 £ 108,100,000%8 7T ° 7 B4
& A A25,300,0008 ¢ - MEFA A
19,300,000 7T ° D H & B REE R
FEAEFSHNETHEE WAL - &
MBS EESZ BN BERE RS EY
RN EB2EA - BRI - RIMIERES
P EMAEE 2 RRFAIF S H AL ER
7}’% °

ROBEAMBA W FEE
ST BRADEINSEZHMKA K
FHFEE o 2E T XMEEO) -

ROBEEMX
ERIERDAMDERI RINEEEF
R

BRUBRERKR

(A)

WA

RAEEEER1,376,800,00078 T ¢ B
T—MEFRD10% - BRSO EZHNRE
BT EEMRBERAARREMBRAIRD
M DBHEEBRD - BRI XX
FEMEB) °
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(B)

©

(D)

(B)

(F)

(G)

Cost of sales and operating expenses
Decrease in cost of sales was primarily due to decrease turnover
of the electronic power meters and solutions segment.

Decrease in operating expenses was primarily due to (i) decrease
in employee benefit expenses given the decrease in average
headcounts; and the fact that no share option expenses was
recognised under the payment processing solutions business
segment during the year (please refer to Note (1) above); and (ii)
decline in rental expenses of properties and equipment.

Other income and other gains, net

Decrease in other income and other gains, net was due to the
fact that a gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets
of HK$126.4 million was recognised in 2014.

Impairment of intangible assets

Goodwill allocated to the electronic power meters and solutions
segment had been fully impaired with an impairment charge of
HK$62.0 million during the year ended 31 December 2014.

Share of loss of a joint venture

As an ordinary shareholder of the joint venture, the Group
shared a loss of HK$0.8 million during the year to the extent the
carrying amount of the joint venture reduced to nil.

Share of profit of an associated company, loss on dilution and
net gains on dilution and disposal of interest in an associated
company

Gain of HK$304.0 million in prior year was recognised
on disposal of 80,000,000 ordinary shares of PAX Global
Technology Limited (“PAX Global”), an associated company, the
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Group’s share of profit of PAX Global increased in line with
the increase in profit of PAX Global, while partially net off by
the effect of decrease in percentage sharing given a reduction in
equity interest in PAX Global during the year. Loss on dilution
of interest in an associated company of HK$8.4 million (2014:
HK$52.8 million) was due to the effect of exercise of share
options of PAX Global by some of its directors, employees and
consultants during the year.

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
The amount in 2014 represented a gain on disposal of a
subsidiary of the Group last year.

(B)

©

(D)

(B)

(P

(G)
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(H)

U]

0)

(K)

L

M)

Investment properties, property, plant and equipment and
leasehold land

Balance mainly represented fixed assets of payment processing
solutions, financial solutions and electronic power meters and
solutions segments. Increase in balance was mainly due to the
addition of E-payment terminals by our payment processing
solutions segments along with the acquisition of new merchants.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include computer software of HK$18.8 million
allocated to the financial solutions segment. Decrease in balance
was due to amortisation charged during the year.

Interest in an associated company
As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of the Group’s 32.7%
effective interest in PAX Global was approximately HK$2,908.4
million. As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of the investment
was greater than its carrying value.

Interest in a joint venture

The amount represented interest in a joint venture of the
Company and was accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. The joint venture was initially measured at
fair value. The carrying amount was increased or decreased
to recognise the investor’s share of the profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income of the investee after
the initial recognition. The carrying amount of the joint venture
also included goodwill and intangible assets identified upon
the formation of the joint venture. As at 31 December 2015, the
carrying amount of the Group interest in the joint venture was
zero. Meanwhile, the fair value of the Group’s interest in the
joint venture was approximately HK$100.2 million.

Available-for-sale financial asset

As at 31 December 2015, the available-for-sale financial asset
included equity security which is an unlisted equity investment
outside Hong Kong.

Inventories

The amount mainly represented inventories of electronic power
meters and solutions segment. During the year, HK$5.0 million
was recorded for provision for inventories with respect to slow-
moving and obsolete stocks.

(H)

(K)

M)
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(N)

Trade and bills receivables, receivables from payment
processing solutions business and other receivables,
prepayments and deposits
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(N  FBUIRRREVRE  XARZEEERT
REM 2 RWFUA K H A EUGRIR - AR
HREE

2015 2014

—E-fHEF —ZE—mF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Trade receivables (Note (i)(a)) FEUBR SR (M52 (i)(a)) 246,527 352,268
Bills receivables (Note (i)(b)) FEU SRR (M1 aE)b)) 7,707 3,747
Less: provision for impairment of receivables i : [EWFIERERE (18,645) (19,187)
235,589 336,828

Receivables from payment processing solutions 21522 5 R 3R iR 5 TR 275
business (Note (ii)) Z FEMGRIA (72 i) 115,642 106,784
Prepayments, deposits and others receivables — FEHFUA « & M EAD

FE NS R IE 44,883 53,314
Total aFt 396,114 496,926
Note (i): Biatd)
() The Group’s credit terms to trade debtors normally range from 0 to 180 (@) REE—RETESHEKAZEEHRHOE180

days. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables was as follows:

BAE - BUSRFZIREOTANT

2015 2014

—T-HEF —T-mF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Current to 90 days BNEAZ90H 170,302 250,580
91 to 180 days 91Z2180H 7,854 28,886
181 to 365 days 181%365H 17,248 39,338
Over 365 days 3658 A 51,123 33,464
246,527 352,268

— Decrease in trade receivables aged between current to 90 days
was mainly due to decline in outstanding balances from financial
solutions and telecommunication solutions segments.

— Changes in trade receivables aged between 91 to over 365 days
was mainly due to outstanding balances by the customers of the
electronic power meters and solutions segment.

(b) Bills receivables belonged to the electronic power meters and solutions
segment.
Note (ii):

This balance mainly represented receivables arising from the payment processing
solutions business.

For processing payments on behalf of merchants, the amounts usually become
collectible by the Group from the financial institutions once the underlying
transactions of the merchants had been acknowledged by the relevant financial
institutions.

— BRéR T F AN EA 2= 90 H 2 e Uy BR SR 2
TEARGRBATRREARRTR
DEAREREHRRD

— BRER Y T 912365 8 MA £ 2 fEIR AR FUE

Mz B EBhN B BER KRR
TREANBEPREEGER

(b) FEURERERBRTEERRBRIRS

-
Wi -

FREHRIREINRIRERATREBELLZE
WA ©

RAKBPURBZZHEEBNK  BRSE—RNE
FziEMZ SRR RERERN AT HAEERES
BRI
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(O) Amounts due from/to an associated company and a joint (O)
venture

The amount due from/to an associated company represents
balance with PAX Global and its subsidiaries. The amount
due from a joint venture represents receivable from Cloopen
Group Holding Limited and its subsidiaries and its subsidiaries.
Amounts due from/to an associated company and a joint venture
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(P) Trade and bills payables, payables for payment processing  (P)
solutions business and other payables and accruals

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

BB —MBE ARk —BEEhER
)
FEM,FES —FEIEE & R R RIBIR B B BIR
HEEMBRAT &tk - Bl —fH A&
REFIEFEEWCloopen Group Holding
Limited R 2L M B R B2 3R - FEUFERT
—fHEE R R —EeEtETEREE
A BB RIRERER -

EAERRRENRE XARZEEHR
FREBZENRAREENRERE
S

2015 2014
—B-hfF —T—mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Trade payables (Note (i)(a)) FETBRIR (AT aE(i)(a) 165,685 176,805
Bills payables (Note (i) (b)) JERT AR (B2t ()b)) 35,538 1,197
Payables for payment processing solutions TR BPEERTEER
business (Note (ii)) 2 FETRRIE (BT Gi) 472,912 311,391
Other payables and accruals (Note (iii)) HAth & 5RI8 S FEET 5RIE
(Hret i) 467,030 378,967
Total A4t 1,141,165 868,360
Note (i): Brata

(a) The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 0 to 180 days. The

(@) BHERRTZEEHH0E180RTE &R

ageing analysis of the trade payables was as follows: R BRES OMTIAT -
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Current to 90 days BIEAZ90H 104,471 84,744
91 to 180 days 91Z2180H 24,173 43,104
181 to 365 days 181&2365H 21,172 37,557
Over 365 days 365HM 15,869 11,400
165,685 176,805

— Increase in trade payables aged between current to 90 days was
mainly due to increase in outstanding balances from payment

processing solutions segment.

— Changes in trade payables aged between 91 to over 365 days was
mainly due to outstanding balances from the electronic power

meters and solutions segment.

—  BRENTEHEB 2 BN RHE M
FEMRENRFEERART RN
(BB AARRIE N -

— BRI T91 23658 A E 27 ENRR Y
B ETZAREETFZERRBRAR
DERBERER -
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(b) Bills payables belong to the electronic power meters and solutions segment.

Note (ii):

This balance represents payables to merchants for the payment processing solutions
business. The amounts are generally due for settlement with these customers within

30 days. Increase in balance was mainly due to increased scale of transactions.
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(b) BNRERBEREETEERRBRIRD

Bati) -
EMERER AR S RBRATREBRATS 2

FIE - A - MN30BNEZSEPETHER -
BN E BN S REREX -

Note (iii): Bz i) -

2015 2014
—E-AEF —T—MmF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAERT FET
Accrued staff costs and pension obligations FEFH B TR RIR RS 5K 136,817 138,818
Deposits and receipt in advance* 1B R IE ST WEFRIB* 148,901 98,421
Accrued subcontracting cost e D B 102,015 85,766
Others Hih 79,297 55,962
467,030 378,967

* The increase in deposits and receipt in advance was mainly due to increase * Be RERBRFIEEMEEHR IR IR

in deposits and guarantees received from merchants and agents under the

payment processing solutions business.

KEY INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

In connection with the business of provision of payment processing
solutions, the Group from time to time purchases E-payment Terminal
products from PAX Global, an associated company, and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “PAX Global Group”).

During the 12-month period preceeding 31 January 2016 (“Relevant
Period”), the Group has purchased from PAX Global Group E-payment
Terminal products in the aggregate amount of approximately
HK$175.8 million (inclusive of tax payable by the Group).

The Group provides the E-payment Terminal products to its merchant
customers and in return, the Group imposes a fee. The E-payment
Terminal products the Group procured from PAX Global Group during
the Relevant Period have been recorded as fixed assets while the
relevant depreciation charges have been recorded as cost of sales in
the financial statements of the Group.

BRI REB AP RRERKERZ 2SR
RAE S IBIOPTEL -

ITRRENBMEED

RIRESNRZREFEANTREZEBME - &%
BT R RSN R SRR ENE QR (58
[AERREEDBEEFXNIBER °

R-E—R"F—A=+—Ha+-EABM(E
BERED  AEEEREERNEEEEETY
mER - 8254 5175,800,00078 T (8
BAREE 2 FENTRIR) ©

AEEREBREPRHEF N &mER * I
EMBWER - AEBREBBRAE ERIE
BEE 2 E T X NRMEMABEEEARK - M
MRRAHTE R BN AR B 2 B ISR A S B R A
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During the Relevant Period, relevant members of the Group and of
PAX Global Group has from time to time entered into individual
agreements setting out the detailed terms of the sale and purchase of
the relevant E-payment Terminal products.

The prices payable for the E-payment Terminal products was agreed
between the Group and PAX Global Group by reference to the
prevailing market prices of products with similar specifications at the
relevant time. The Group generally settles the purchase price with PAX
Global Group every six months. Please also refer to an announcement
of the Company dated 2 February 2016.

INFORMATION ON THE CONTRACTUAL
ARRANGEMENTS

The Group has been operating certain businesses which adopted
contract-based arrangements and/or structures (“Contractual
Arrangements”) for the purpose of enabling the Group, as foreign
investor, to control and benefit from the PRC operating companies
(“OPCQ”) in the foreign restricted businesses in the PRC.

Set out below are the details of the Contractual Arrangements which
are material to the Group.

1. EEZ£TEHEHEERAT (“Just-In Mobile”) and its
subsidiaries: BE1T {42+ AR A A (“SXF”), Hunan Hisun Mobile
Pay IT Ltd CHE SR EBESKZMARQE) (“Hunan Hisun”)
and FESBEREE EHMAR AR (“Fujian Hisun”)

1.1 Particulars of OPCO and its registered owners

Just-In Mobile is a limited liability company established
in the PRC on 4 June 2002. As at the date of this report,
Just-In Mobile held 80.04% interests in SXF directly, 60%
interests in Hunan Hisun indirectly and 100% interests in
Fujian Hisun indirectly.

The registered shareholders of Just-In Mobile are Mr.
Zhou Jianhong (60%) and Mr. Na Wei (40%). On 28 May
2010, a contractual arrangement was made between Just-
In Mobile, the registered shareholders of Just-In Mobile
and #fTEBEM(LEE) BRAF (“JIM Shanghai”),
which allows JIM Shanghai to exercise control and enjoy
economic benefit generated from Just-In Mobile.
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1.3

JIM Shanghai is a wholly-owned subsidiary of JIM Holdings
International Company Limited (“JIM Holdings”) which
was acquired by the Company on 19 March 2010 and has
become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company since
then.

Description of OPCO'’s business

Just-In Mobile is principally engaged in the value-added
telecommunication business (EZ{EEZZ) with major
focus on payment related solutions and services in the PRC.
SXF is principally engaged in the provision of payment
processing solutions in the PRC. Hunan Hisun is principally
engaged in the provision of telecommunication solutions
and payment platform solutions in the PRC. Fujian Hisun is
principally engaged in the provision of telecommunication
solutions in the PRC.

Contractual Arrangement was adopted by the Company in
the above businesses as value-added telecommunication
business (AT (527%) has been restrictive to foreign
direct investment under the PRC law (being that foreign
shareholding must not exceed 50%).

Summary of the major terms of the underlying contracts of
the Contractual Arrangement

Management Consulting and Services Agreement

Just-In Mobile and JIM Shanghai entered into the
Management Consulting and Services Agreement, pursuant
to which Just-In Mobile agreed to engage JIM Shanghai as
its exclusive management consultant and service provider.
Accordingly, JIM Shanghai shall provide services to Just-
In Mobile on (i) R & D of the computer software with new
and high technology; (ii) R & D of the computer software
by other customers’ requirement; (iii) maintenance of
the computer software and technical support; (iv) R & D
and maintenance of the network technique; (v) technical
training; and (vi) provision of staff. Pursuant to the
Management Consulting and Services Agreement, Just-In
Mobile would pay to JIM Shanghai a consulting fee that
equals to 95% of Just-In Mobile’s business income relating
to the services provided above after deducting its operating
cost. The consulting fee should be paid monthly or yearly as
requested by JIM Shanghai. The Management Consulting
and Services Agreement shall be effective from the date of
signing for a term of thirty (30) years.
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Cooperative Framework Agreement

JIM Shanghai, Just-In Mobile, Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na entered
into the Cooperative Framework Agreement, pursuant to
which JIM Shanghai has agreed to provide various services,
including management consulting services, to Just-In
Mobile. The Cooperative Framework Agreement shall
be effective from the date of signing for a term of thirty
(30) years, unless terminated by JIM Shanghai. Mr. Zhou
and Mr. Na have also undertaken that in the event JIM
Shanghai has to pay any consideration to them under the
Share Option Agreement, they must return to JIM Shanghai
any consideration they receive.

Proxy Agreement

The registered shareholders of Just-In Mobile (namely
Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na) and JIM Shanghai entered into the
Proxy Agreement, pursuant to which Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na
agreed to authorise persons designated by JIM Shanghai
to exercise all of their rights and powers as shareholders
of Just-In Mobile. Persons designated by JIM Shanghai
will act on their behalf on all matters pertaining to Just-
In Mobile and, to the extent permissible under applicable
PRC laws and the Articles of Association of Just-In Mobile,
exercise all of their respective rights as shareholders of
Just-In Mobile, including but not limited to the following
rights: (i) rights to attend shareholders’ meetings; (ii) rights
to exercise voting rights in all shareholders’ meeting; (iii)
rights to sign on minutes or resolutions of shareholders’
meetings or other legal documents and (iv) rights to file
documents with the relevant companies registry. The Proxy
Agreement shall be effective from the date of signing for a
term of ten (10) years, unless extended by the parties.
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Share Option Agreement

JIM Shanghai, Mr. Zhou, Mr. Na and Just-In Mobile
entered into the Share Option Agreement, pursuant to
which Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na granted to JIM Shanghai and/
or any other party designated by JIM Shanghai irrevocable
options to purchase their equity interests in Just-In Mobile,
entirely or partially, at an aggregate consideration for
the entire equity interests which equals to the total share
capital of Just-In Mobile or the value of the equity and/
or assets of Just-In Mobile whichever is lower. However,
the consideration shall not be less than the minimum
purchase price permitted by PRC laws and regulations.
The Share Option Agreement shall be effective for an
indefinite term from the date of the agreement, until it is
terminated (i) upon transfer of the entire equity interests
of Just-In Mobile to JIM Shanghai and/or any other party
designated by JIM Shanghai according to the Share Option
Agreement; (ii) due to restraint under the PRC laws that
transfer of the equity of Just-In Mobile in accordance with
the Share Option Agreement is impossible; and (iii) upon
JIM Shanghai exercising the pledge under the Equity Pledge
Agreement which results that the whole equity interests
in Just-In Mobile are no longer held by Mr. Zhou and Mr.
Na in full. Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na have also undertaken that
in the event JIM Shanghai has to pay any consideration to
them under the Share Option Agreement, they must return
to JIM Shanghai any consideration they receive.

Equity Pledge Agreement

Mr. Zhou, Mr. Na and JIM Shanghai entered into the Equity
Pledge Agreement, pursuant to which Mr. Zhou and Mr.
Na agreed to pledge all of their respective equity interests
(together with their derivative interests) in Just-In Mobile
to JIM Shanghai to secure their payment obligations under
the Loan Agreement and Just-In Mobile’s obligations
under the Cooperative Framework Agreement. Pursuant
to the Equity Pledge Agreement, if there is any breach of
obligations on the part of Mr. Zhou, Mr. Na and/or Just-In
Mobile as prescribed under the Equity Pledge Agreement,
JIM Shanghai shall be entitled to exercise its right of pledge
against the said equity interests. In addition, pursuant to
the Equity Pledge Agreement, each of Mr. Zhou and Mr.
Na undertook to JIM Shanghai, among other things, not
to transfer, dispose of their respective equity interests
in Just-In Mobile or to create any encumbrance thereon
without JIM Shanghai’s prior written consent. The Equity
Pledge Agreement shall be effective from the date of the
agreement, until two (2) years after completion of all
the obligations on the part of Just-In Mobile under the
Cooperative Framework Agreement.
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1.4

Loan Agreements

Each of Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na entered into a Loan
Agreement with JIM Shanghai, pursuant to which
JIM Shanghai agreed to lend RMB4,200,000 and
RMB2,800,000 to Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na respectively in
order to satisfy the funding needs of Just-In Mobile. Both
of the two loans under the two Loan Agreements are for a
term of ten (10) years from the date of signing and can be
extended by mutual consent.

Dispute resolutions

Pursuant to the Contractual Arrangement, any dispute
arising from the interpretation and implementation of the
Contractual Arrangement between the parties should first
be resolved through negotiation, failing which any party
may submit the said dispute to the China International
Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission (“CIETAC”) in
Shanghai for arbitration in accordance with its arbitration
rules. Arbitrators may award remedies over the shares
or land assets of OPCO, grant order for the conduct of
business or order the winding up of OPCO. The results of
the arbitration shall be final and binding on all relevant
parties.

Revenue and assets subject to the Structured Arrangement
The consolidated total revenue of the JIM Group (including
JIM Holdings, JIM Shanghai, Just-In Mobile, SXF, Hunan
Hisun and Fujian Hisun) for the year ended 31 December
2015 was HK$694.2 million. The consolidated total assets
and net assets of the JIM Group as at 31 December 2015
amounted to HK$1,338.2 million and HK$62.6 million
respectively.

1.4

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Bkl
BArERIEES G EATT L8]
YERME B BT LEERE
MEALEERBEEDBEDAR
# 4,200,000 7T 2 A K # 2,800,000
T MENEESETZESR K-
MEERBEE TMEERHTAE
FTREABT0E WAl EE S
BEfRETEER -

gz

RBANZEE - WAIHNSTEHAH
R RBRIITHREMMES -
FEE B BRERBR - WIDREER
R BMER — 5 A B F R
ELBzTBEBEREEESHEZ
Bg([hEBEREERRE]) A
RIBZE 2 PR REL R -
AT H R ER B EE QR Z B
HEMEE  BLETEHIGS
TREIZEARER - PHERBR
RORTE - BIFTEMRBRT AT HAD
R e

REBLHHIRZ AR EE
HETEBE(BRETER  £17L
g EREETT SXF HEEE
rEEek)BE-E—aF+=
A=+t—HBLEFEZHEREA
£ 694,200,000 7 JT © # 1T &
RZE—RAF+=ZA=+—H2
BEBEEREREEFES A
1,338,200,0007% 7T }2 62,600,000 7%
T o



e (RE)BRAF

Risks relating to the Contractual Arrangements

The board of directors of the Company wishes to emphasize that
the Group relies on the Contractual Arrangements to control and
obtain the economic benefits from Just-In Mobile, i.e. the OPCO,
which may not be as effective in providing operational control
as direct ownership. In addition, if the PRC government finds
that the agreements that establish the structure for operating the
value-added telecommunication business of Just-In Mobile in the
PRC do not comply with applicable PRC laws and regulations,
or if these regulations or their interpretations change in the
future, the Group could be subject to severe consequences,
including the nullification of the Contractual Arrangements and
the relinquishment of the Group’s interest therein. The Company
will monitor the relevant PRC laws and regulations relevant to
the Contractual Arrangements and will take all necessary actions
to protect the Company’s interests in the OPCO.

Material change

On 22 January 2016, JIM Shanghai, Just-In Mobile, Mr. Zhou
and Mr. Na entered into a new set of underlying contracts of the
Contractual Arrangement with a view to aligning the contents
with the latest requirements of the Stock Exchange. The Directors
confirm that there is no major changes to the terms of the
underlying contracts.

Unwinding of Contractual Arrangements

As at the date of this report, there is no unwinding of any
of the Contractual Arrangements or failure to unwind when
the restrictions that led to the adoption of the Contractual
Arrangement are removed.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Payment processing solutions

Since the pass of the inspections by the regulatory bodies in the
first quarter of 2015 and the gradual resumption of acquiring new
merchants in Q2 2015, we are now conducting business in over 27
provinces and cities in the PRC. There was a steady growth in the scale
of transactions while there were over 800,000 accumulated merchants
in the PRC as at the end of 2015 with a monthly transaction volume of
over RMB60 billion in December 2015. During the year, we actively
engaged in early settlement financial services business, which was
effective and fruitful. The operating income of such business accounted
for approximately 20% of the segmental turnover. In addition to the
traditional fixed and mobile POS, we have launched MPOS in 2015,
and we will launch other innovative payment processing solutions,
such as the Smart POS, in an attempt to expand our market share
by leveraging on our existing advantages. At the same time, we also
began to introduce the internet payment services business and mobile
payment services business, providing our customers with the online
and offline integrated payment processing solutions. Looking forward,
we will further expand our prospective financial businesses such as
wealth management and financing business, actively capture the
trend of internet finance development, and raise the proportion of
income from financial related services. In 2015, the PRC government
introduced a series of policies in relation to the internet finance
industry, further acknowledging that non-bank payment institutions
constitute an integral part of the financial payment system. We, being
one of the leading non-bank payment institutions in the industry, will
continue to maximize our room for development.

Financial solutions

During the year, the performance of our financial solutions business
segment was steady and sound, especially the core banking system
sector. Projects of China CITIC Bank and China Construction Bank
were successfully put into operations, and other key projects, such
as China Guangfa Bank, Dah Sing Bank, China Minsheng Bank
(Singapore), China Everbright Bank (Seoul), Bank of Beijing (Hong
Kong) were launched as scheduled. Among which, the second phase
of China Guangfa Bank project were put into operation in January
2016, and is expected to bring positive return in 2016. The ATM
outsourcing operation business has continued to bring steady cash
flow. Furthermore, in light of the fact that bank customers have been
transiting to internet finance in the payment and internet finance
sector, we provided various integrated solutions of banks and internet
companies by making use of the third-party payment platforms and
P2P platforms. On the other hand, along with the growing customers of
city commercial banks in the PRC, their asset size and the investment
in IT systems have increased rapidly and transition of business has
accelerated. On the premise that we reinforce our market position
with the BIG5 (five major banks in China), joint-equity banks and
their overseas subsidiaries, we will target city commercial banks as an
emerging strategic market for strategic planning and investment.
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Electronic power meters and solutions

In 2016, it is anticipated that the total tender volume of smart meters
and data collection devices by the State Grid Corporation will remain
stable, and the market capacity will be relatively steady. In 2016,
the State Grid will focus on deepening the smart dual interactive
technology research, innovating the dual interactive model of
smart meters, conducting applied researches on harmonic wave
electric meters and IR46 meters construction in compliance with the
requirements of the international metrology organization, as well as
proactively promoting smart manufacturing and energy internet. This
demonstrates the higher levels of demand for technology smart meters
and data collection devices are required in the future. As such, since
2015, we have begun to focus on key research and development
projects, and undergone technical preparation, with the aim of
maintaining the competitiveness in the market.

Telecommunication solutions

In 2015, IVR voice value-added business of China Mobile continued
to keep its steady status, and the IVR voice Jiangsu Base of China
Mobile had been pursuing business innovations for individual users.
With the steady growth of data traffic products of the mobile internet
- mobile voice magazines, integrated business of voice and short
informative messages had been simultaneously conducted. At the
same time, as a pilot scheme, the IVR voice base started to focus
on the capacity output of voice and information to corporate users,
attaining satisfactory achievements. The Migu Animation and Comic
Base (BkMiE))E &) of China Mobile gained some new development
opportunities and the related supporting services remained stable.
Although the establishment of China Mobile’s new and self-owned
IVR business platform has created certain challenges on the revenue
of the telecommunication solutions business segment, the remaining
recurring IVR business is expected to remain stable while the income
from innovative business focusing on individual users is set to
increase continuously. Meanwhile, we consider that there will be an
ample room for growth of the capacity output business focusing on
the corporate communication market, and the demand for related
supporting services will also increase progressively, restoring and
boosting the income gradually.

Payment platform solutions

Looking ahead, we will continue to provide full operational supporting
services for the China Mobile’s #148 business (formerly known as
“mobile payment” or “mobile wallet”). 18 offers a variety of safe and
trendy experience for online and offline payment which is convenient
and expedient for both individual and corporate users. As China
Mobile continues to increase their investment, we expect that 1
B business will develop rapidly, and the demand for our supporting
services from China Mobile will also increase concurrently, yielding
a stable income growth. Meanwhile, given that the E-commerce Base
of China Mobile is insistently broadening its business horizon, we will
seize such opportunity to cooperate with the base at the operation
level. In addition, we will consistently invest into the internet finance
sector, exploring the opportunity to innovate our own business in that
sector.
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Principal Risk and Uncertainty

A considerable portion of the Group’s revenue was derived from
a small number of customers in China. Failure to maintain good
relationships with these customers could materially and adversely
affect our financial results.

Our business operates in an industry that is subject to changes in
market conditions, technological advancements, developing industry
standards and changing customers’ needs and preferences for our new
products and/or services. If we are unable to respond to these changes
promptly or unable to continually enhance our existing products
and market new products in a timely manner, our performance may
be adversely affected. Also, any unauthorized use of our intellectual
property by third parties could harm our business and competitive
position.

The industries we operate in the PRC are subject to extensive industry
standards and government regulations. If we fail to comply with these
standards and regulations, our operation and sales may be adversely
affected. Regarding our payment processing solutions business in
the PRC, we are currently operating under three payment licenses,
including national bank card acceptance, online payment and mobile
payment licenses, which will expire in June 2017. Any failure to renew
these payment licenses could disrupt our business operations and our
sales may be materially and adversely affected.

The Group has been operating certain lines of businesses which
adopted contract-based arrangements and/or structures (“Contractual
Arrangements”) for the purpose of enabling the Group, as foreign
investor, to control and benefit from the PRC operating companies
(“OPCQ”) in the foreign restricted businesses in the PRC. However,
such arrangements may not be as effective in providing operational
control as direct ownership. In addition, there can be no assurance
that the PRC government authority would continue to deem these
Contractual Arrangements to be in compliance with the applicable
PRC laws and regulations, or that the legal requirements or policies
that may be adopted in the future would not affect the Contractual
Arrangements. Details of the Contractual Arrangements are set out in
section headed “Information on the Contractual Arrangements” in the
Report of the Directors on page 26.

Also, volatility in the securities market may affect the Company’s
shares investments. The Company is also subject to market risk, such
as currency fluctuations, and volatility of interest rates, credit risk, and
liquidity risk in the normal course of the Group’s business. Particulars
of financial risk management of the Company are set out in note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
businesses and the communities with which it engages. We pursue this
business approach by managing our business prudently and executing
management decisions with due care and attention.

COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATIONS

There was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations such as the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), Listing Rules, and other applicable local laws
and regulations in various jurisdictions.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

Remuneration packages are generally structured with reference
to prevailing market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries
and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors.

Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits including
mandatory provident fund, medical insurance and performance related
bonus. Share options may also be granted to eligible employees of the
Group.

Relationship is the fundamentals of business. The Group fully
understand this principal and thus maintain close relationship with
the customers to fulfil their immediate and long-term need. Due to the
nature of the business, the Group did not have any major supplier that
has significant influence on the operations.

However, the Group strives to maintain fair and co-operating
relationship with the suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
CHEUNG Yuk Fung
KUI Man Chun

XU Wensheng

LI Wenjin

XU Chang Jun

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

TAM Chun Fai

LEUNG Wai Man, Roger

XU Sitao (ceased on 26 February 2016)

CHANG Kai-Tzung, Richard (re-designated on 26 February 2016)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2), one-third
of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting of the Company.

Mr. Kui Man Chun, Executive Director and Mr. Leung Wai Man,
Roger and Mr. Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard, Independent Non-Executive
Directors of the Company, will retire at the forthcoming 2016 annual
general meeting and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employer within 1 year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company
was a party and in which a Director or his/her connected entity (as
defined under Listing Rules) had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
are set out on pages 4 to 6.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors is
currently in force and was in force throughout the financial year.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover for
the Directors of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVFE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of each
Director and Chief Executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) (“SFO”)), as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company under section 352
of the SFO or as notified to the Company were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each in the Company
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Number of shares held

FrERn8E
Personal interest  Corporate interest Total
Name of Director EEpE Bz NEERE By
Kui Man Chun KBS 28,650,000 617,083,636 645,733,636
(note (i) (K157 (i))

Xu Wensheng ™ HE 4,566,000 - 4,566,000
Li Wenjin EXE 6,400,000 - 6,400,000
Xu Chang Jun wEE 16,563,000 - 16,563,000
Xu Sitao FFEE 700,000 - 700,000

(ceased on 26 February (R=—Z—RF

2016) ZAZTREEE)
Note: HisE -

(i) These shares were held by Kui Man Chun through Hi Sun Limited, a company
which Kui Man Chun held a 99.16% interest, and Rich Global Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Hi Sun Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the
Directors, the Chief Executive of the Company nor their associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules.

(i) ZERMDBEREEFDBHI Sun Limited( REERFAE
99.16%#E 2 A 7)) &Hi Sun LimitedZ 2 &M B 7]
Rich Global Limited##7% °

B EXPREEIN R E—RAF T+ _A=1+—
B &88% ARATRARIREZHEAL
(EER LTRANDBERAR T LEREEE
(EERBHFMMBIEHIEXVER) 28D - 107
B EFPREERARRRIREES AT
EPIE352167F B 2 B FC MR & L AR AIMT 8%
10fE 2 EMBTAESETESR S ZIRE
SRAIEMEARRREZ A2 ERAR -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

The register of substantial shareholders maintained under section
336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2015, the Company
had been notified of the following substantial shareholders’ interests

and short positions, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued share

capital. These interests are in addition to those disclosed above in
respect of the Directors and Chief Executive.

Name of shareholder

BREM/ R

Rich Global Limited (“RGL”)***

Hi Sun Limited (“HSL")*** (Note 1)
(Hrax1)

Mr. Kui Man Chun (Note 1)
REHLEMFT)

Ever Union Capital Limited (“Ever Union”)

Mr. Che Fung (Note 2)
BIESE(ME2)

Notes:

*ok

Save

HSL had interest in the Company’s share capital by virtue of its control of 100%
shareholding in RGL, such capital were deemed interests of HSL and in turn of Kui
Man Chun through his control of 99.16% interest in HSL, in addition to his personal
interest as disclosed in the section above.

Mr. Che Fung was interested in the Company’s share capital by virtue of his control

of 100% shareholding in Ever Union.

The Letter “L” denotes a long position in Shares.

The percentage is calculated based on the total number of issued shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2015, which was 2,776,833,835 ordinary shares.

Mr. Kui Man Chun and Mr. Li Wenjin were directors of RGL and Mr. Kui Man
Chun, Mr. Li Wenjin and Mr. Xu Wensheng were directors of HSL which were
deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

as disclosed above and other than the Directors or Chief

Executive of the Company, there were no other parties who had
any interests or short positions in any Shares or underlying shares of

the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2015.
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
ordinary shares shareholding**
EEREE - BREZHS0ED
617,083,636(L)* 22.22%
617,083,636(L)* 22.22%
645,733,636(L)* 23.25%
334,314,000(L)* 12.04%
334,314,000(L)* 12.04%

wt :
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Year, there was no connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction entered into by the Group that
were subject to the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of the related party transactions of the Group which did
not constitute continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

OTHER TRANSACTION DURING THE YEAR

On 6 February 2015, Main Access Limited (“Main Access”), a
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a subscription agreement
(the “Series B Subscription Agreement”) with Trustbridge Partners V,
L.P. (“Trustbridge”), Sequoia Capital CV IV Holdco, Ltd. (“Sequoia”),
Cloopen Group Holding Limited (“Cloopen”), a joint venture of the
Company, two subsidiaries of Cloopen, namely Cloopen Limited and
Anxun Guantong (Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd. (“Anxun”), Beijing
Ronglian Yitong Information Technology Co. Ltd. (“Ronglian”), a
company which Anxun exercises control and enjoys economic benefits
through contractual arrangement, together with Cloopen Co., Ltd.,
Slivo Co., Ltd., Mr. LI Xiaoguang and Mr. SUN Changxun, pursuant to
which Trustbridge conditionally agreed to subscribe for and purchase
from Cloopen, and Cloopen conditionally agreed to issue and sell to
Trustbridge 19,617,225 Series B Preferred Shares of Cloopen (“Series B
Preferred Shares”). The consideration for the Series B Preferred Shares
issued to Trustbridge was US$10,200,000. In addition, Cloopen duly
reserved 9,003,447 Class A Ordinary Shares of Cloopen (“Class A
Ordinary Shares”), issued to the Cloopen’s employees, consultants,
officers or directors pursuant to an employee incentive scheme adopted
following the completion of the Series B Subscription Agreement.

Upon completion of the Series B Subscription Agreement on 11
February 2015, the Group’s interests in Ronglian further decreased
to 43.2% (or 35.6% on a fully-diluted basis assuming the Class A
Ordinary Shares reserved as aforesaid are fully issued and allotted to
the beneficiaries of the employee incentive scheme).
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2015.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, total cost of purchase of electronic funds transfer
point-of-sale (“EFT-POS”) terminals from PAX Global Technology
Limited (“PAX Global”) amounted to approximately HK$148.5 million,
and was regarded as capital in nature. The Company held 32.73%
interest in PAX Global and Mr. Li Wenjin, an Executive Director of the
Company and an Executive Director of PAX Global, was interested
in 2,890,000 shares issued by PAX Global (the underlying shares of
which represented approximately 0.26% of the issued share capital of
PAX Global) as at 31 December 2015.

The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the 5 largest
suppliers of items which are not of capital nature was less than 30% of
the total purchases of the Group for the year.

The percentages of sales for the year attributable to the Group’s major
customers are as follows:

Sales
— the largest customer 18%
— five largest customers combined 38%

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
customers or suppliers noted above.
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PENSION SCHEME

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong are required to participate
in a defined contribution retirement scheme of the Group or the
Company set up in accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Ordinance (Cap. 485). Under the scheme, the
employees are required to contribute 5% of their monthly salaries up
to a maximum of HK$1,500 and they can choose to make additional
contributions. The employer’s monthly contributions are calculated at
5% of the employee’s monthly salaries up to a maximum of HK$1,500
(the “Mandatory Contributions”). The employees are entitled to 100%
of the employer’s Mandatory Contributions upon their retirement at the
age of 65 years old, death or total incapacity.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations in the PRC, the
Group is required to contribute an amount to certain retirement benefit
schemes based on approximately 7% to 20% of the yearly wages of
those workers in the PRC. The local municipal government undertakes
to assume the retirement benefits obligations of those workers of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors have an interest in any business constituting a
competing business to the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that
the Company has maintained during the year the amount of public
float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Fung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 March 2016
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report in
the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board in
ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company and
transparency and accountability of all operations.

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance
to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable
efforts to identifying and formulating corporate governance practices
appropriate to the Company’s needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles (the “Principles”) and code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has in formulating its corporate governance practices
applied the Principles and complied with all of the Code Provisions for
the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Board periodically reviews and monitors the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance or compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements. The Board also reviews the employee
handbook, training and continuous professional development of the
directors and the senior management, to ensure that the operations are
conducted in accordance with the standards of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry had been made to all the directors and the directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Company has also established written guidelines with exact terms
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules for securities transactions
by employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information of the Company.
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The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors
should make decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Company
which include the approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those which may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors are provided with full and timely access to Board papers
and relevant information as well as the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures
and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making
a request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has
to be obtained from the Board prior to entering into any significant
transactions by the senior management officers.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to discharge
its responsibilities.

Composition

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and
experience appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Company and to the exercise of independent judgement.

The Board currently comprises 8 members, consisting of 5 Executive
Directors and 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors.
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The Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Cheung Yuk Fung (Chairman)

Kui Man Chun (Chief Executive Officer)
Xu Wensheng

Li Wenjin

Xu Chang Jun

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Tam Chun Fai

Leung Wai Man, Roger

Xu Sitao (ceased on 26 February 2016)

Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard (re-designated from an Non-Executive
Director to an Independent Non-Executive Director on 26 February 2016)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time.

The biographical information of the Directors and their relationship
among the members of the Board, if any, are provided in the “Directors
and Senior Management” section of this annual report.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The Company has established formal and transparent procedures for
the appointment and succession planning of Directors.

Code provision A.4.1 of CG Code stipulates that Non-Executive
Director should be appointed for a specific term subject to re-election.
The Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive Directors
are appointed for a fixed contract term subject to re-election in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

All Directors are appointed for specific tenures which shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and subject to
re-election.

Code provision A.4.3 of CG Code stipulates that serving more than 9
years could be relevant to the determination of the independence of an
Independent Non-Executive Director. If an Independent Non-Executive
Director has served for more than 9 years, his further appointment
should be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the
shareholders.
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Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has an appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company. Besides,
the Company will arrange and fund suitable training, placing an
appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of its Directors.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has arranged in-house trainings for the Directors in the form
of seminar and provision of training materials. A summary of training
received by the Directors during the relevant period according to the
records provided by the Directors is as follows:
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regulatory
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Executive Directors: HITESE
Cheung Yuk Fung R E & v
Kui Man Chun REE v
Xu Wensheng ™A 4
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Xu Sitao (ceased on 26 February 2016) FREWVZZE—R"F-AZ+BFE) v/
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26 February 2016)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy. The Company seeks
to achieve board diversity through the consideration of a number of
factors in the Board members’ selection process, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.
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During the reporting period, the Company has a solid slate of Directors
with diverse perspectives and varied educational background and
expertise made-up, from extensive knowledge of the information
technology industry and electronic payment industry, experience in
international trade, finance and corporate management, to professional
qualifications in the legal and accounting fields. Each Director had
accumulated experience in his respective field of expertise for at least
20 years, all of whom are anchored by the common trait of having
a natural aptitude and singular drive for the industry so as to bring
sustainable growth to the Company.

Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance
Regular Board meetings were held four times during the year for
reviewing and approving the financial and operating performance,
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for approving the final results for the year ended 31 December 2014,
interim results for the period ended 30 June 2015 and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company.
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The individual attendance record of each Director at the four regular
quarterly meetings of the Board (not including other ad hoc meetings
of the Board held from time to time), Audit Committee meetings,
Nomination Committee meeting, Remuneration Committee meeting
and general meeting during the year ended 31 December 2015 is set
out below:

Attendance/Number of meetings

BRULRBTRY

Audit ~ Nomination Remuneration Regular Annual

Committee Committee Committee Board General

Meetings Meeting Meetings Meetings Meeting

ERREE REZREE FHZRe R B3R

Name of Directors EEps 23 Ef 83 Ezged BEXRE

Cheung Yuk Fung REIE N/A N/A N/A 4/4 171
NER TNER TEH

Kui Man Chun REE N/A N/A N/A 4/4 11
TEH TEH TEH

Xu Wensheng X N/A N/A N/A 4/4 11
TEM TER TER

Li Wenjin FXE N/A 71 171 4/4 171

NER

Xu Chang Jun HRE=E N/A N/A N/A 4/4 11
TEH TEH TEH

Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard RiEE N/A N/A N/A 4/4 11
TEM TEM TEM

Tam Chun Fai EiRiE 2/2 11 11 4/4 11

Leung Wai Man, Roger (& 2/2 1/1 1/1 4/4 1/1

Xu Sitao AEE 2/2 N/A N/A 4/4 11

TER TER
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings
Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to the Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least
14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors appraised of the
latest developments and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and individual
Directors also have separate and independent access to the senior
management whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary attends all regular Board meetings and when
necessary, other Board and committee meetings to advise on business
developments, financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance,
corporate governance and other major aspects of the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep the minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are
normally circulated to the Directors for comment within a reasonable
time after each meeting and the final version is open for the Directors’
inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s Bye-laws also contain
provisions requiring the Directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such Directors or any of their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. During the year, Mr. Cheung Yuk Fung acted as the
Chairman, and Mr. Kui Man Chun acted as the Chief Executive Officer.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate
governance practice. With the support of the Company Secretary and
the senior management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring
that the Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate information,
which must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable and appropriate
briefing on issues arising at Board meetings, and that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.
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The role of the Chief Executive focuses on implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the Board. He is in
charge of the Company’s day-to-day management and operations. The
Chief Executive is also responsible for developing strategic plans and
formulating the organisational structure, control systems and internal
procedures and processes for the Board’s approval.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Independent Non-Executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. By taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests and serving on Board
committees, all Independent Non-Executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board at all times met
the requirements of Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-Executive
Directors with at least one Independent Non-Executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise. In compliance with Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules, Independent Non-Executive Directors represented
at least one-third of the Board throughout the year ended 31 December
2015.

Confirmation of independence of Independent Non-Executive
Directors

In respect of the reporting period, the Company received from the three
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Tam Chun Fai, Mr.
Leung Wai Man, Roger and Mr. Xu Sitao (resigned on 26 February
2016), annual confirmations of their independence pursuant to the
requirements of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, which confirmed to the
Company that each of them has met the independence guidelines set
out in the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the Independent
Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

In particular, in furtherance to the announcement of the Company
dated 26 February 2016, Mr. Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard (“Mr. Chang”),
who had served as a Non-Executive Director of the Company since
2009, has been re-designated as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company with effect from 26 February 2016. During
his tenure as a Non-Executive Director, Mr. Chang had served in areas
including management’s performance monitoring, risk assessment and
internal controls and was not involved in the day-to-day management
and operations or executive or management role or functions in the
Company, its holding company or any of their subsidiaries or core
connected persons of the Company.
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Accordingly, it is considered that Mr. Chang has satisfied the
independence criteria in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, apart from Rule
3.13(7) in respect of the technicality in his past appointment as a Non-
Executive Director of the Company which did not in substance affect
his independence to serve as an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company, and the Company has received a written confirmation
from Mr. Chang confirming his independence as such.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 4 committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All Board committees are established with defined
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to Shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are Independent
Non-Executive Directors except Risk Management Committee and the
list of the chairman and members of each Board committee as at the
date of this report is set out below:

Audit Committee

Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)
Leung Wai Man, Roger
Chang Kai Tzung, Richard

Nomination Committee

Leung Wai Man, Roger (Chairman)
Tam Chun Fai

Li Wenjin

Remuneration Committee
Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)
Leung Wai Man, Roger

Li Wenjin

Risk Management Committee
Xu Changjun (Chairman)

Xu Wensheng

Li Wenjin

Hui Lok Yan*

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
perform their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses.

* Not being one of the Directors of the Company. Ms Hui Lok Yan is the Group
Financial Controller and Joint Company Secretary of the Company.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors (including one Independent Non-Executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise). None of the members of the
Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external
auditor.

During the Reporting Year, the Board reviewed the amendments to the
Listing Rules in relation to corporate governance and the revised CG
Code and adopted a set of updated terms of reference on 29 December
2015. Under its updated terms of reference, the main duties of the
Audit Committee include the following:

(@)  to review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant or
external auditor before submission to the Board;

(b)  to review the relationship with the external auditor by reference
to the work performed by the external auditor, its fees and terms
of engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor;

(c) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures; and

(d)  to cooperate with Risk Management Committee to ensure Risk
Management Committee has access to information necessary
to fulfil their duties and responsibilities with respect to risk
assessment and risk management.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2015 to review the financial results and reports, financial
reporting and compliance procedures, internal control system and
risk management review and processes and the reappointment of the
external auditor.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

There is no different view taken by the Audit Committee from the
Board regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
external auditor.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2015
has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, developing and
formulating relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of
Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of Directors, and assessment of the
independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to
the balance of expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the
requirements of the business of the Group and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. An external recruitment agency may
be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process when
necessary. The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2015.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2), Mr. Kui
Man Chun, Executive Director and Mr. Leung Wai Man and Mr. Chang
Kai-Tzung, Richard, Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company, will retire at the forthcoming 2016 annual general meeting
and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the Directors standing
for re-election at the 2016 annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company’s circular dated 18 March 2016 contains detailed
information of the Directors standing for re-election.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his own remuneration, whose remuneration
will be determined with reference to the performance of the individual
and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets for reviewing the
remuneration policy and structure and determination of the annual
remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management
and other related matters. The Human Resources Department is
responsible for collection and administration of the human resources
data and making recommendations to the Remuneration Committee
for consideration. The Remuneration Committee shall consult
the Chairman and/or the Board about these recommendations on
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages. The
Remuneration Committee held one meetings during the year ended 31
December 2015.
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Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5, the remuneration of the members of
the senior management by band for the year ended 31 December 2015
is set out below:
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Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 9 and note 33 to
the consolidate financial statements.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee was established on 29 December
2015. The Risk Management Committee comprises a minimum of four
members and shall have at least three Directors.

The main duties of the Risk Management Committee include the
following:

(@) to review the Group’s risk management systems and internal
control systems (including financial, operational and compliance
controls) and internal audit function, to ensure that effective
and adequate risk management and internal control systems are
established and maintained and that sufficient resources are in
place for the Group’s internal audit function;

(b)  to consider the effectiveness of the Group’s decision making
processes in crisis and emergency situations and to maintain the
Group's risk management standards; and

(c)  on an annual basis report to the Board on the effectiveness of the
risk management systems and internal control systems (including
financial, operational and compliance controls) for the Group
and adequacy of resources of its internal audit functions.

The Risk Management Committed held one meeting from the date of
established to the date of this report to set the direction for the Group’s
risk management strategy.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties of the Company, including (i) to develop and review the Group's
policies and practices on corporate governance; (ii) to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and the senior management and (iii) to review the Group’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2015.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 55 to 58.

INTERNAL CONTROL

For the internal control system of the Company, the Board has
developed the Group’s internal control systems and risk assessment
and management. The Board has overall responsibility for reviewing
and maintaining an adequate and effective internal control system to
safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the assets of the Group.
During the year, the Board has conducted reviews of the internal
control system and considered that the internal control system of the
Group has been implemented effectively.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company in
respect of audit services for the year ended 31 December 2015
amounted to approximately HK$3,370,000. There was no non-audit
service provided by the external auditor of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2015.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

(@)

(b)

(0

Procedures for requisitioning a special general meeting
Shareholder(s) holding as at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right to vote at general meetings of the Company
may, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary(ies) signed and deposited in accordance with the
Bye-laws of the Company, Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
require the Directors to call a special general meeting for the
transaction of business specified in the requisition.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general meetings
Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company or not less than 100 Shareholders may,
at their expense, provide a written request to the attention of the
Company Secretary(ies) signed and deposited in accordance with
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 to put forward proposals at
general meeting.

Communication with shareholders and investors

General meetings of the Company provide a direct forum
of communication between Shareholders and the Board.
Shareholders are welcome to put forward enquiries to the Board
or the management thereat and the Chairman of the Board, or
in his absence, an Executive Director of the Company, as well
as the chairmen of the Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee, or in their absence, other
members of the respective committees, and where applicable,
the Independent Board Committee, will commonly be present
and available to answer questions and Shareholders may also
contact the Company Secretary(ies) to direct their written
enquires.

The Company is committed to enhancing communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains an open dialogue with institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.

The Company also maintains a website at www.hisun.com.hk,
where updates on the Company’s business developments and
operations, financial information and news can always be found.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 March 2016
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries set out on pages 59 to 167, which comprise
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2015,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

—E-REFRH 55

Independent Auditor’s Report
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015,
and of the their financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 8 March 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Income Statement

AR IR AR

For the year ended 31 December

BZE+-—A=+—HLEE

2015 2014
—E-AHF —T—mE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt e TR THETT
Revenue PN 5,6 1,376,846 1,529,179
Cost of sales SHE RN 7 (899,262) (1,019,820)
Gross profit EF 477,584 509,359
Other income EAbUA 5 47,249 24,408
Other gains, net E b e 35 5 - 126,360
Selling expenses HEFX 7 (134,839) (178,907)
Administrative expenses THER 7 (383,501) (419,971)
Impairment of intangible assets BIVEERE 7 - (61,978)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—EINB AR Z s - 51,743
Operating profit A 6,493 51,014
Share of profit of investments accounted  JE{FLAMEZSAABR 2
for using the equity method WEZ M 19 198,218 118,901
(Loss on dilution)/net gains on dilution DAEZRIEARR 2 —TBRE
and disposal of interest in an investment 57 (B EEIE),/
accounted for using the equity method BERHEWR TR 19 (8,442) 251,215
Profit before income tax R A8 B AT R 196,269 421,130
Income tax expense TSt FE 10 (3,577) (19,886)
Profit for the year R REF 192,692 401,244
Profit attributable to: FEAGSER
— Equity holders of the Company — ARREEFAA 183,486 397,071
— Non-controlling interests — FEIERRER 9,206 4,173
192,692 401,244
Earnings per share for profit AAREREEA HK$ per share ~ HK$ per share
attributable to the equity holders of EiEERN 281’ BRET BRET
the Company: BF
Basic HAK 12 0.066 0.143
Diluted e 12 0.064 0.130
The notes on pages 67 to 167 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ 67 E 167 B 2 M iF & B HRE 2 Lh 2

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

iy A T W A %

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+—HLEE

2015 2014
- —FOF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THETT
Profit for the year FREF 192,692 401,244
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax Hib 2 HEEE (MRHIE)
Items that have been reclassified or may be CEHFOERHAAEEN
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss PEERANNEE2EE
Exchange differences arising on translation of the — #2& /&SN B A 78 75 R&
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries EEZER =5 (38,155) (16,387)
Share of other comprehensive loss of investments  B{E LA EAR 2 IE 2
accounted for using the equity method Hit = mEER (36,477) (13,924)
Release of reserves upon dilution/disposal and g E RSB R E
dilution of interest in an investment ANRZ —TAREER &
accounted for using the equity method Bz #EE (88) (2,791)
Fair value loss on revaluation of an available-for- Eft—EAftHESREE Y
sale financial asset NFHERBE (373) -
Release of reserves upon disposals of available-for- HERMEHESRIEER
sale financial assets B @& - (772)
Release of reserves upon disposal of a subsidiary  H&—RIHBRARIEEL 2
R - (248)
Total comprehensive income for the year, FR2EMUBAEIRHE)
net of tax 117,599 367,122
Total comprehensive income attributable to: 2 EA%E -
— Equity holders of the Company — RNATIREEFAA 110,305 362,780
— Non-controlling interests — JEREA R 7,294 4,342
117,599 367,122
The notes on pages 67 to 167 are an integral part of these consolidated 25 ARG ERR 2 Hh AP

financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
BOEEARER

As at 31 December

R+=HA=+—H
2015 2014
—E-AEF —ZT—uF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
g FHET FET
ASSETS aE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties SEWE 13 1,889 2,061
Property, plant and equipment W - BB KR 14 214,234 108,826
Leasehold land ME T 15 33,785 35,383
Intangible assets EVEE 16 18,855 29,389
Investments accounted for using AR EARZIRE
the equity method 19 1,525,040 1,372,967
Available-for-sale financial asset AL ESREE 17 6,982 -
Long-term deposits and prepayments RERE RIENFIE 21 4,318 2,624
Total non-current assets FRBEEHRE 1,805,103 1,551,250
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 78 20 53,113 53,726
Trade and bills receivables FEUT AR TR I FE W = 21 235,589 336,828
Receivables from payment processing TR BERIBRR T RE
solutions business 2 FEWRIR 21 115,642 106,784
Other receivables, prepayments and Efth B GRIE ~ TERFRIE K
deposits BE 21 40,565 50,690
Amounts due from investments accounted JEWIAEZEABRZ A 2
for using the equity method I8 31 10,761 22,741
Short-term bank deposits RHISRITIF K 22 23,455 11,056
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEED 23 2,292,287 1,977,677
Total current assets REEEAE 2,771,412 2,559,502
Total assets BERE 4,576,515 4,110,752
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable to AR T ERFE AEERA
the Company’s equity holders R f#iE
Share capital PR 24 6,942 6,942
Reserves s 25 3,301,886 3,185,439
3,308,828 3,192,381
Non-controlling interests FEER R 29,116 21,822
Total equity EREE 3,337,944 3,214,203

The notes on pages 67 to 167 are an integral part of these consolidated 67 E167 8 2 Ml i i 4R & M Bk 2 £ h ¥
financial statements. 73 e
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

A R BLBRR (1)

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+—H
2015 2014
—E-HEF —T—F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
hEss FET FAT
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFFSH AR 27 132 187
Total non-current liabilities ERBABEELE 132 187
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and bills payables JETER R R BN IR 26 201,223 178,002
Payables for payment processing solutions 5432 3 R IB IR 5 B 275
business ZFERFRIA 26 472,912 311,391
Other payables and accruals B fth B < R I8 SR FE T FRIE 26 467,030 378,967
Amount due to an investment accounted  JEfFAREREAR Y — 18
for using the equity method REZ A 31 70,912 -
Current income tax liabilities EHFSHAR 26,362 28,002
Total current liabilities REREAE 1,238,439 896,362
Total liabilities EEEE 1,238,571 896,549
Total equity and liabilities EEREEAE 4,576,515 4,110,752

The financial statements on pages 59 to 167 were approved by the
Board of Directors on 8 March 2016 and were signed on its behalf.

XU WENSHENG
B E
Director

EBF

The notes on pages 67 to 167 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_E-RF+-A=1t-RHLEE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ALARESE ARE
Non-
Share Share  Contributed Other  Exchange  Retained controlling
capital  premium surplus  reserves  reserve  earnings interests Total
FER

B BRokE B8RS AtRE EXRE REEN i Ll
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén TR  TER TER TEx TER TEn  TEx

Balance at 1 January 2015 R-B-TE-B-BzR8 6942 1,063,153 168434 487380 148,095 15318377 21,822 3,214,203
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - 183486 9,206 192,692

Other comprehensive loss A2 EEE
Exchange differences arising on translation &G 5NE 1 78 B¥iE

of the financial statements of foreign EECENES

subsidiaries - - - - (36243) - (1912 (38,155
Share of other comprehensive loss of FEIENER AR .

investments accounted for using the RECEMZAEE

equity method (Note 19) (Hiit19) - - - - (6477 - - (36477
Release of reserves upon dilution of BRNEREARY

interest in an investment accounted —EREAERERLL

for using the equity method (Note 19)  GfE(#7z219) - - - - 88) - - 88)
Fair value loss on revaluation of an Bf-EHIELR

available-for-sale financial asset BEIATERE

(Note 17) (Hizt17) - - - @1 (352) - - (373)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2H(ER)/hEaE - - - (21)  (73,160) 183,486 7,294 117,599

Share of other reserves of investments M NERZ AR 2
accounted for using the equity method ~ —IB3RE 7 Efh

(Note 19) fEIr219) - - - 6,142 - - - 6,142
Balance at 31 December 2015 R-B-1&E+-A=+-H
k=173 6,942 1,063,153 168,434 493,501 74935 1,501,863 29,116 3,337,944

The notes on pages 67 to 167 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ £67%E 167 B 2 M 3T i A B I5HRER 2 £ &6
financial statements. e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

AR AR S W (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BEZ_Z2-NF+-A=t—-HLEFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ALAIERRE B

Non-

Share Share - Contributed Other  Exchange  Retained controlling

capital  premium surplus  reserves  reserve  earnings interests Total
Ei22)

bR RivEE KRR HAHREE EXEE  REEH i st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Thr TERL  TET TET  TEnT  TET  TET  TEx

Balance at 1 January 2014 R-B-ME-B-B2&E 6942 1,063,153 168434 417739 181,786 921306  (13,384) 2,745,976
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year ERET - - - - - 397,071 4173 401,44

Other comprehensive (loss)/income Rp2E(EE) /K
Exchange differences arising on translation &GN &1 78 Bk
of the financial statements of foreign EECENES

subsidiaries - - - - (16,556) - 169 (16,387)
Share of other comprehensive lossof B MESEAB 2 RE 2

investments accounted for using the Et2EER

equity method - - - - (13924 - - (13924)
Release of reserves upon disposal and ~ HERBENEZEARZ

dilution of interest in an investment —ERERERRRL .

accounted for using the equity method ~ Ffi - - - - (2,791) - - (2,791)
Release of reserves upon disposals of LETEHESRAER

available-for-sale financial assets BHRE - - - (600) (172) - - (772)
Release of reserves upon disposal of HE—FRBARFIR

a subsidiary B kiE - - - - (248) - - (248)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2 (F8)/ WHes - - - (600)  (33,691) 397,071 4342 367,122

Share of other reserves of investments EENESEAR Y

accounted for using the equity method 4 2 E AR - - - 13477 - - - 1347
Employees’ incentive programme of —THBARZ
asubsidiary EEZEE - - - 27,303 - - - 27303
Exercise of employees’ incentive T -ANERRL
programme of a subsidiary EEEE: 2 - - - 29,461 - - 30,864 60,325
Balance at 31 December 2014 R-E-NmFE+=-A=+-AH
A - 3 6,942 1,063,153 168434 487380 148,095 1318377 21,822 3,214,203

The notes on pages 67 to 167 are an integral part of these consolidated 67 %167 B 2 M 3T i A B ISHRER 2 £ &
financial statements. e

N
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HEBSRER

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=t+—HLEE

2015 2014
—E-HF —T-F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt e TET THET
Cash flows from operating activities REEBZRERE
Cash generated from operations KEFTSIRE 28(a) 481,260 166,985
Overseas income tax paid B X fEIMNAER (3,726) (744)
Net cash generated from B ETEATSIA© FR
operating activities 477,534 166,241
Cash flows from investing activities RETHZRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEE¥% - FE M&E (100,160) (49,868)
Purchases of intangible assets BERLEE - (30,800
Proceeds from disposals of property, Hj¢¢%¥ 5 &
plant and equipment HBEEIAE 28(b) 771 25,314
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of HE—ENBAREEY
a subsidiary WEMAFRE - 8,902
Proceeds from disposal of interest in HERERAAR —18
an investment accounted for REERPISHIE
using the equity method - 593,351
Proceeds from disposals of available-for HENHLESRHEE
sale financial assets Fr8 508 - 155,866
Dividend income from an investment REUEREARZ —I8
accounted for using the equity method KA Z BB 19 7,280 -
Interest received EUAE 15,783 6,763
Net cash (used in)/generated from wEZB(TA) R
investing activities s (76,326) 709,528
The notes on pages 67 to 167 are an integral part of these consolidated 167 B Z ML ThER A Mgk 2 K B

financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

B Bl w e (A1)

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-—A=t+—HLEE

2015 2014
—E-HF —T-F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt THET THETT
Cash flows from financing activities METBHRERE
Proceeds from the issuance of shares in BRATE—RHWNBARZ
connection with exercise of BB BTG
share options of a subsidiary FS5RIR - 60,325
(Increase)/decrease in short-term 72 ERIRTTE K
bank deposits (g, md (13,541) 8,944
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEEE (A, FiERe
financing activities AR (13,541) 69,269
Net increase in cash and RERREEEYZ
cash equivalents EInEER 387,667 945,038
Cash and cash equivalents FNRE MRS FEY
at beginning of the year 1,977,677 1,061,136
Exchange loss on cash and RekBReEEY2
cash equivalents i 5 518 (73,057) (28,497)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRASRAEEEY
the year 23 2,292,287 1,977,677

The notes on pages 67 to 167 are an integral part of these consolidated 67 %167 B 2 M 3T i A B ISHRER 2 £ &
financial statements. 7 e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”), are principally engaged
in the provision of payment processing solutions, provision
of financial solutions, sales of electronic power meters and
solutions, provision of telecommunication solutions and
provision of payment platform solutions.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Hi Sun
Technology (China) Limited have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRS”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of an available-
for-sale financial asset, which is carried at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

B W05 W Bk

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group:

The following amendments to standards have
been adopted by the Group for the first time
for the financial year beginning on or after 1
January 2015:

Amendment to HKAS 19 on contributions from
employees or third parties to defined benefit
plans. The amendment distinguishes between
contributions that are linked to service only
in the period in which they arise and those
linked to service in more than one period. The
amendment allows contributions that are linked
to service, and do not vary with the length of
employee service, to be deducted from the cost
of benefits earned in the period that the service
is provided. Contributions that are linked to
service, and vary according to the length of
employee service, must be spread over the
service period using the same attribution
method that is applied to the benefits.

Amendments from annual improvements to
HKFRSs —2010-2012 Cycle, on HKFRS 8,
‘Operating segments’, HKAS 16, ‘Property,
plant and equipment’ and HKAS 38,
‘Intangible assets’” and HKAS 24, ‘Related party
disclosures’.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A 05 W Bk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group: (continued)

Amendments from annual improvements to
HKFRSs —2011-2013 Cycle, on HKFRS 3,
‘Business combinations’, HKFRS 13, ‘Fair
value measurement’ and HKAS 40, ‘Investment

property’.

The adoption of the improvements made in
the 2010-2012 Cycle has required additional
disclosures in the segment note. Other than
that, the remaining amendments are not
material to the Group.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9
“Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come
into operation during the financial year, as
a result, there are changes to presentation
and disclosures of certain information in the
consolidated financial statements.

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted:

A number of new standards and amendments
to standards and interpretations are effective
for annual periods beginning after 1 January
2015, and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements. None
of these is expected to have a significant effect
on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group, except the following set out below:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

B W05 W Bk

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted: (continued)

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”, addresses
the classification, measurement and recognition
of financial assets and financial liabilities.
The complete version of HKFRS 9 was issued
in July 2014. It replaces the guidance in
HKAS 39 that relates to the classification
and measurement of financial instruments.
HKFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed
measurement model and establishes three
primary measurement categories for financial
assets: amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income and fair value
through profit or loss. The basis of classification
depends on the entity’s business model and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset. Investments in equity
instruments are required to be measured at fair
value through profit or loss with the irrevocable
option at inception to present changes in
fair value in other comprehensive income
not recycling. There is now a new expected
credit losses model that replaces the incurred
loss impairment model used in HKAS 39. For
financial liabilities there were no changes to
classification and measurement except for the
recognition of changes in own credit risk in
other comprehensive income, for liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss.
HKFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for hedge
effectiveness by replacing the bright line hedge
effectiveness tests. It requires an economic
relationship between the hedged item and
hedging instrument and for the “hedged ratio”
to be the same as the one management actually
use for risk management purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A 05 W Bk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(©)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted: (continued)

Contemporaneous documentation is still
required but is different to that currently
prepared under HKAS 39. The standard is
effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. Early adoption is
permitted. The Group is yet to assess HKFRS 9’s
full impact.

HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with
customers” deals with revenue recognition
and establishes principles for reporting useful
information to users of financial statements
about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising
from an entity’s contracts with customers.
Revenue is recognised when a customer
obtains control of a good or service and thus
has the ability to direct the use and obtain
the benefits from the good or service. The
standard replaces HKAS 18 “Revenue” and
HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and related
interpretations. HKFRS 15 is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018 and earlier application is permitted. The
Group is assessing the impact of HKFRS 15.

There are no other HKFRS or HK(IFRIC)
interpretations that are not yet effective that
would be expected to have a material impact
on the Group.
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B W05 W Bk

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation
A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has

control. The Group controls entities when the Group

is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from

its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of subsidiaries is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in
the event of liquidation are measured at either
fair value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRS.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A 05 W Bk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

()

Business combination (continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at
the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive
income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement.
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HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

B W05 W Bk

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

()

Business combination (continued)
Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as
transactions with the owners of the subsidiary
in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associated company, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.3

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
cost of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Associated company

An associated company is an entity over which the
Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investments in an associated company
is accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit
or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group's investments in an associated company include
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition
of the ownership interest in an associated company, any
difference between the cost of the associated company and
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associated
company’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted
for as goodwill.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Associated company (continued)

If the ownership interest in an associated company is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's
share of losses in an associated company equals or exceeds
its interest in the associated company, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associated
company.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associated company is impaired. If this is the case,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as
the difference between the recoverable amount of the
associated company and its carrying value and recognises
the amount adjacent to ‘share of profit of investments
accounted for using the equity method’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associated
company are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests an associated company. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Accounting policies of associated companies have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

24

Associated company (continued)

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in an associated
company is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Joint arrangement

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to joint arrangement.
Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations each
investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangement and determined it to be joint venture. Joint
venture is accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interest in joint
venture is initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses and movements in other comprehensive
income. The Group’s investment in a joint venture includes
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition
of the ownership interest in a joint venture, any difference
between the cost of the joint venture and the Group's share
of the net fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill. When the
Group's share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds
its interests in the joint venture (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint venture), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its joint venture is eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint venture. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
the joint venture have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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B W05 W Bk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating

2.6

decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,

who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Executive Directors that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in the consolidated income statement, except
when deferred in other comprehensive income
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated income statement within
‘administrative expenses’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as available-for-sale, are included
in other comprehensive income.
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B A 05 W Bk

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associated company that includes a foreign
operation), all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

2.7

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal
(continued)
In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share
of accumulated currency translation differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s
ownership interest in associated companies or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

2

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

BARETHRERBEGHE)
26 SMEBE(E)
(@) HEREHH T (E)

2.7

LTy ER D e T A E A &
BARERBEBINEB KB
A2 IRHIRE - A RAHELERE
Z FEIELL DI R BN IR AR
@ BTN EN KB IRE
R o BT R AR & (B
REERBERRHEEDRE
BAEEDSR DM TS EHR
SEREEBRTEN RIS
BIME  ZRFTEREZEZ
[EIELLBIZAEFH DB E RN
&8 -

FBEWE - BB ERERELRA
BITE MOREBEAR - ELRA
BRKBILEFHRBEREERS -

=3

il

a

I8 B A B 2 AR AR N 51 T BE
MAREE - LANGZIA B RARER
BE - RRRRAT EFABE

ZEREESERAE L EE(FER
BRME) - EME D REERR

R

c IBEEMEERREBRE

&2 WHHRR R A BRI o



e (RE)BRAF

2

—E-AEEH 81

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

5-10%
20% or over lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Buildings
Leasehold improvements

Office furniture and 18%-33%
equipment
Plant and equipment

Motor vehicles

10%-33%
18%-25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the
Group, is classified as investment property. The cost of
an investment property comprises its purchase price and
any costs directly attributable to bringing the property
to its intended use. After initial recognition, investment
property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

29

2.10

Investment properties (continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method to
allocate cost of the investment property over its estimated
useful lives, as follows:
Buildings 5%
Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment.

Leasehold land

Leasehold land is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Cost represents upfront
prepayments made for the rights to use the land for periods
varying from 40 to 50 years. Amortisation of leasehold
land is expensed in the consolidated income statement on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease or when
there is impairment, the impairment is expensed in the
consolidated income statement.

Intangible assets

(a)  Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Intangible assets (continued)

(a)

(b)

Goodwill (continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUEs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill
is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Brand name, licences, customer list, contracts,
patents and in-progress technology

Separately acquired brand name, licences, customer
list and contracts, patents and in-progress technology
are shown at historical cost. Brand name, licences,
customer list and contracts, patent and in-progress
technology acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair values at the date of acquisition.
They have a finite useful life and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the cost of them over their estimated useful lives (1.5-
5 years).
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Acquired software are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over
their estimated useful lives (3 to 5 years). Costs
associated with developing or maintaining computer
software programmes are recognised as an expense as

2.10 Intangible assets (continued)
(c) Software
incurred.
2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

2.12

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (CGUs). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets and liabilities

2.12.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets and liabilities
in the following categories: loans and receivables,
available-for-sale and other financial liabilities
at amortised cost. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets and
liabilities were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
2.12.1 Classification (continued)

(a)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise
‘trade and bills receivables’, ‘receivables from
payment processing solutions business’, ‘other
receivables and deposits’, ‘amounts due from
investments accounted for using the equity
method’, ‘short-term bank deposits’, and ‘cash
and cash equivalents’ in the consolidated
balance sheet.

Available-for-sale financial asset
Available-for-sale financial asset is non-
derivative that is either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. It is included in non-current asset
unless the investment matures or management
intends to dispose of it within 12 months of the
end of the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
2.12.1 Classification (continued)

(¢)  Other financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities at amortised cost
are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method. The Group’s
other financial liabilities at amortised cost
comprise ‘trade and bills payables’, ‘payables
for payment processing solutions business’,
‘other payables and accruals’” and ‘amount due
to an investment accounted for using the equity
method’ in the consolidated balance sheet.

2.12.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

2.12.2 Recognition and measurement (continued)

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in the
consolidated income statement as ‘Other gains — net'.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the consolidated income statement
as part of other income when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

2.14

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount

reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is a

legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts

and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally

enforceable right must not be contingent on future events

and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
group companies or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Asset carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that
loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a)

(b)

Asset carried at amortised cost (continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement.

Asset classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(b)  Asset classified as available-for-sale (continued)
For equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost
is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any
such evidence exists the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in profit
or loss — is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement on equity instruments
are not reversed through the consolidated income
statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and work-in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour and related
production overhead (based on normal operating capacity).
It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16

217

2.18

Trade and other receivables (continued)

A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to
the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation and default
or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that
the receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the assets is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement within administrative
expenses. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account for receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flows statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19

2.20

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

EXETHRMECE)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued) 2.20 EFRELERESH(E)

(b) Deferred income tax (b) EEHTEH
Inside basis differences NEPELE = %E

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which temporary differences can
be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, an associated company
and a joint arrangement, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Only when there is
an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability
to control the reversal of the temporary difference not
recognised.

RIEFTSTH I EERAE
MEARBHEERBERGE
I mERPREEMRE 2 Eh %
%E NBEETUER - A
* IRIEFTS %REFTJEE
EE’\ S (EBEHBRIN
REEXBEMGSZHE -
H%Hﬁzﬁé%lﬂaﬁagu‘ﬁi
FERBLA T ESE - AT e
e LLFE?ZEJREMEA%::
FIANEE TR R (R
P ETE - WA E fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
EIEFTS B E S (BB AT
IHAEREA -

IBIEPTISTHEEN B R RIER
R AT AR S s 2 5
TIARER

SNEPELEZEEE

RIEFTS BB B RRHB A
Al —EEE AR R—IEXR
THE R BEAZ ERTE R
EREELRE  ERTERE
HeRHETAASEZES -
BTERTTE R K AT 4 Tﬁﬁé@
TR BEAEREBER
h o BIER]BEWEZIE /RT
ANEEE T B IR B R RE R B =
B8 2 f[E -



e (RE)BRAF

—E-AEEH 93

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A 05 W Bk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Outside basis differences (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, an associated company
and a joint arrangement only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the
future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “Pension Scheme”) set up pursuant to the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for
all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the consolidated income
statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Pension Scheme. The assets of
the Pension Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administrated
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed to the Pension
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when
the employee leaves employment prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, in accordance with the
rules of the Pension Scheme.

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as an employee benefit expense
when they are due and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"),
the Group is required to contribute an amount
to certain retirement benefit schemes based on
approximately 7% to 20% of the wages for the year
of those employees in the PRC. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of those employees of the Group.
Contributions to these retirement benefits schemes
are charged to the consolidated income statement as
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(c)  Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula
that takes into consideration the profit attributable
to the Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

2.22 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amount for the
sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of the
Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of value added
tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating
sales within the Group. Revenue is recognised when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below:

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity
has delivered products to the customer, the customer
has accepted the products and collectibility of the
related receivables is reasonably assured.

Revenue from fixed-price contracts is recognised
using the stage of completion method, measured by
reference to the agreed milestones of work performed
and is shown after eliminating sales within the

If circumstances arise that may change the original
estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress
toward completion, estimates are revised. These
revisions may result in increases or decreases in
estimated revenues or costs and are reflected in
the consolidated income statement in the period in
which the circumstances that give rise to the revision

The Group recognises revenue from its payment
processing solution business when services are
rendered which generally coincide when the
underlying transactions of the merchants (customers
of the Group) have been acknowledged by the
relevant banks and financial institutions, by which
contractual right of the Group and the merchants
to receive cash flows from the financial institutions
is established and amount to be received could be
reliably estimated. Revenue from early settlement
services is recognised when the services are rendered,
which generally coincide when the settlement has

(a) Sales of goods

(b)  Provision of services
Group.
become known by management.
been completed.

(c) License income

Income from licensing of software program to an
investment accounted for using the equity method
is recognised upon the installation of the licensed
program on the related products by its customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24

2.25

2.26

2.27

2.28

Other Income

(a) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

(b) Lease income — operating lease
Rental income from investment property is
recognised in the consolidated income statement on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

Government grants

Grants from the government for high-tech companies are
recognised in “other income” in the consolidated income
statements at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Group
will comply with all the attached conditions.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment are deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset. The grant is recognised as income
over the life of a depreciable asset by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

Research and development

Research expenditure is expensed as incurred. Costs
incurred on development projects (relating to the design
and testing of new or improved products) are recognised
as intangible assets when it is probable that the project will
be a success considering its commercial and technological
feasibility, and costs can be measured reliably. Other
development expenditures are expensed as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense
are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities exposed it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value
interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors.
The Directors identified and evaluated financial risks in
close co-operation with the operating units of the Group.

(a) Market risk
() Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign currency transactions are
mainly denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”),
HK$, Japanese Yen (“JPY”) and US dollars
(“US$”). The majority of assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB, HK$, JPY and
US$, and there are no significant assets and
liabilities denominated in other currencies. The
Group is subject to foreign exchange rate risk
arising from future commercial transactions
and recognised assets and liabilities which are
denominated in a currency other than HK$, JPY
or RMB, which are the functional currencies
of the major operating companies within the
Group. The Group currently does not hedge its
foreign currency exposure.

As HK$ is pegged to US$, management
believes that the exchange rate risk for
translations between HK$ and US$ do not have
material impact to the Group. The exchange
rate of RMB to HK$ is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government. The
Group manages its foreign currency risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rates.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

For companies with HK$ as their functional
currency

At 31 December 2015, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the HK$ with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
HK$1,827,000 (2014: HK$1,930,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange difference on translation of RMB
denominated current account with group
companies.

As at 31 December 2015, if JPY had weakened/
strengthened by 1% against the HK$ with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
HK$1,220,000 (2014: HK$1,266,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange difference on translation of JPY
denominated current account with a group
company.

For companies with RMB as their functional
currency

At 31 December 2015, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
HK$5,827,000 (2014: HK$5,399,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange difference on translation of HK$
denominated current accounts with group
companies.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(a)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

For companies with RMB as their functional
currency (continued)

At 31 December 2015, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
HK$444,000 (2014: HK$710,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange difference on translation of US$
denominated cash and cash equivalents as well
as the current accounts with group companies.

Price risk
The Group is not exposed to commodity price
risk.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk
arises mainly from short-term bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents. Other financial
assets and financial liabilities are non-interest-
bearing and are measured at amortised cost.

At 31 December 2015, if interest rates on
interest-bearing short-term bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents had been 100 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year of
the Group would have been approximately
HK$23,154,000 (2014: HK$19,884,000)
higher/lower due to interest income earned on
market interest rate.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its
trade and bills receivables, receivables from payment
processing solutions business, other receivables and
deposits, amounts due from investments accounted
for using the equity method, short-term bank deposits
and deposits with banks.

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables,
receivables from payment processing solutions
business, other receivables and deposits, amounts
due from investments accounted for using the equity
method, short-term bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

To manage this risk, deposits are mainly placed with
state-owned financial institutions and reputable
banks. The Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales are made to reputable and creditworthy
customers with an appropriate financial strength,
credit history and appropriate percentage of down
payments. It also has other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
regularly the authorisation of credit limits to
individual customers and recoverable amount of
each individual trade receivables.

The Group has concentration of credit risk. Sales of
goods and services to the largest customer accounted
for 18% (2014: 19%) for the total revenue, and
top five customers constituted 38% of the Group’s
turnover for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
37%).
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

With prudent liquidity risk management, the Group
aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and ensure the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of available financing, including
short-term bank loans. Due to the dynamic nature
of the underlying businesses, the Group’s finance
department maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining adequate amount of cash and cash
equivalents and flexibility in funding through having
available sources of financing.

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over
and above balance required for working capital
management are transferred to interest bearing bank
deposits with appropriate maturities to manage its
overall liquidity position. As at 31 December 2015,
the Group maintained cash and bank balances of
HK$2,292,287,000 (2014: HK$1,977,677,000) that
is expected to be readily available to meet the cash
outflows of its financial liabilities.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12
months equal their carrying balances, as the impact
of discounting is not significant.
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3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by
total equity.

The Group does not have any borrowings as at 31
December 2015 (2014: same).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HBEBRER(E)
Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BERERBERE(E)
Liquidity risk (continued) (c) BBz EE(E)
Less than 1 year Total
PRA—F et
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
At 31 December 2015 R-E—HEF
+=—A=+—H
Trade and bills payables R BRI R 201,223 201,223
Payables for payment processing 4R SERIEMRIRTT TS
solutions business 2 FERTRRIE 472,912 472,912
Other payables and accruals HAh & FRIE M FE ST IR 443,717 443,717
Amount due to an investment FER AR E AR —18
accounted for using the RE A
equity method 70,912 70,912
Total HEt 1,188,764 1,188,764
At 31 December 2014 R-B—NE
+=—A=+—H
Trade and bills payables R AR B R R 178,002 178,002
Payables for payment processing IR BERIBARIR T RER
solutions business 2 FERTRRIE 311,391 311,391
Other payables and accruals H b &~ 5RTE M FE AT IR 322,483 322,483
Total “Et 811,876 811,876
32 EBEXREBRER

AEBEREANZBHOARERS
BRAELE  URRREHREIEHRN
RREMmNEERES KNG X
BRBREETEBAREE KA -

R HBRERER  AEER
HEARRI M ZBEEHE - AR
RORBIRA - BTN IHER
ELARAER °

AEEREALEELEETE
7 o AAE ML E RIS KBTS
HE2 AR o

RZE—RFE+-_A=+—H0 K
SEVEEAER(ZE—NE -
@) o
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MEBEERRER(E)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEME
The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments TREGFERXHEZEERNAA
carried at fair value as at 31 December 2015 by level of BABIBEZER T AREERZ
the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair T-RF+ZA=+—HA%RQFE
value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within PRz &R A - BEAWAZIED
a fair value hierarchy as follows: BN SCPTa 0 BRER A NP EZRE

Nz ={EE& :

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for o HRABEEXABZEERTHE®R
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). BOREFHR) (B—H) -

J Inputs other than quoted prices included within e RBREENE—RIBEIN &
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, EfaBEzBREEZ(BE
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, &) e (AR B EEE) &
derived from prices) (level 2). ANERHE R -

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on o WIFRIRRIEEMISEURME
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) EZEESBECHAER
(level 3). (BITABR 2B AEBR) (F

=) e
The following table presents the Group’s assets that were TEREINAEERR-_T—AF
measured at fair value at 31 December 2015. TZA=T—BZAFEFEZE
o
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
- B FE= #Et

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT

Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial AHEESR

assets BE

— Equity security —RAFE S - - 6,982 6,982

- - 6,982 6,982

The Group does not have any financial assets that was AEBRHETAER _-_T—NF
measured at fair value at 31 December 2014. TZRA=t—RZAVEFEZS
There were no significant transfers of financial assets FA AFEBRERHEBRESRE
between the fair value hierarchy classifications during the BEERER -

year.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price. These instruments
are included in level 1.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available
and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

Financial instruments in level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based
on observable market data, the instrument is included
in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value level
3 financial instruments include techniques such as
discounted cash flow analysis. There are no changes
in valuation techniques during the years.

The Group’s finance department includes a team that
performs the valuations of financial assets required
for financial reporting purposes, including level 3
fair values. As part of the valuation process, this team
reports directly to the chief financial officer (CFO)
and external valuers will be engaged, if necessary.

In applying the discounted cash flow technique,
management has taken into account the estimated
amount that the Group would receive to sell the
instrument at the balance sheet date, taking into
account current interest rates and the current credit
worthiness of the counterparties. Where discounted
cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash
flows are based on management’s best estimates and
the discount rate is a market related rate for a similar
instrument at the balance sheet date.

3

PR EE(E)

3.3

DPEME(E)

(a)

(b)

(c)

EF-ReE@MTA

HERTZEE SMTAZ
~NFHE - RBHEER 2SR
EBFtE - WHRER RS
RHE B TEES T
BRF K EEE B ME
HEW  BRBERNEMET
REFNERHZHRE - RIFE
MIGRRRRT S - NEBM
REMEEZTSRESER
BAE - BT ERE K&

=
= °

FE_RzeHMTA
WIERNERMHSRNEE 22/
TAUSIMTETE) AMEHE
RitEE AT E - ZFHER
TR ERABABEMISEE
(ng)  THRERMDIKEEE
ZEEMEE c BT EZAFE
FIEEfBEABMALRE A
AEREE - BATIERAS
e

FE-RE@MTA
E-ARZEEABAERIAL
AR EISR 2 TR BB R -
BRTAKTAZE =4

RAURFE=RERMTAMKEZ
FEGERNEREMRRER
ENERM - ZHERZMEE
AR

REE R S HR B A — B 75
BEETHREREEME
(BRE=ZRRATE) 2B -
RitERRET  ZEBEEER
MISEEEIER  YNAFER
RIBHMNEBIHIERD -

ERBRIRIR G MERIME - &
BECF RASEE REUAR
RERHETA A2
WIS R AR BT 5 RS A
AR WMEMABRRRERE
By - AEIARRRERELE
BENEER 2 &EMbF R E
BUTAZERETISEEIREE
d o
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(c)

Financial instruments in level 3 (continued)

The following table presents the changes in level

3 financial instruments for the years ended 31

December 2015 and 2014:

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

PR EE(E)

3.3 DFEMT(E)

(c) F=HRKzeMITAE)
TRENEE-T-—AFR=
T—NFE+_A=+—HIEF
EE=ZFoRMTEZEE) :

Available-
for-sale
financial asset
AHHE
TREE
HK$'000
TFHET
As at 1 January 2015 R=-—ZE—AF—HA—H -
Addition //J\\E 7,355
Fair value loss on revaluation recognised REM 2R RTERZ
in other comprehensive income BEATFEERE 21
Exchange realignment PE 5 JEEE (352)
As at 31 December 2015 R-EBE—-HE+=-A=+—H 6,982
Total gain for the year included in profit or loss ~ REFRFEATE A EFT AR 3K
for assets held at the end of the year B8 2 F IR R 58 -
Changes in unrealised gains for the year RELF N BN
included in profit or loss at the end of FRARBRNEED)
the year -
As at 1 January 2014 R=Z—-NF—-F—H 30,395
Disposal HE (30,278)
Exchange realignment PE 5 FEEE (117)

As at 31 December 2014

R-ZZE—NE+=ZA=+—H _

Total gain for the year included in profit or loss
for assets held at the end of the year

REEBLPTREERT AR
BRZEREEER -

Changes in unrealised gains for the year
included in profit or loss at the end of
the year

RELTT R MREE
FARER YR EE)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(c)

Financial instruments in level 3 (continued)

The key unobservable assumptions used in the
valuation of the available-for-sale financial asset as at
9 February 2015 (date of addition) and 31 December
2015 are:

Key unobservable inputs

TETTEEGAHE

Pre-tax discount rate FiATAL IR X
Terminal growth rate R iE R R
Compound annual growth rate waFIEREK

As at 31 December 2015, the pre-tax discount
rate used to compute the fair value is 22.4%. If the
discount rate shifted upward by 1%, the impact on
other comprehensive income would be HK$606,000.

B A 05 W Bk

3 MBEREREGE)

3.3 AFEMETE)

(c) FE=HRKzeMITAE)
R-ZE—RE-_ANBCFE
HE)R=ZZ—RE+=A
=+—H B EeREE
ZIEERAZ EETTERR

BLUENE
As at
As at 9 February
31 December 2015
2015 (date of addition)
R-Z—RF
R=-Z—A%F —RAhH
+=B=+—H (OREBH)
22.4% 22.2%
3.0% 3.0%
39.2% 44.8%

RZE—RFE+ZA=+—
B - BfEstE AT EZHATEL
HRED22.4% ° WA EREH)
1% @ HHM AW 8
# 5606,00075 7T °
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated
financial statements are evaluated and based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that may have a significant effect on the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of receivables

The Executive Directors determine the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables based on the
credit history of its customers and the current market
condition. The Directors reassess the provision periodically.

Impairment of obsolete inventories

The Group makes provision for obsolete inventories based
on consideration of obsolescence of raw materials and
work in progress and the net realisable value of finished
goods. The identification of inventory obsolescence and
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
require the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventory and
impairment provision in the year in which such estimate
has been changed.

Contract revenue recognition

According to the accounting policies of fixed price
contracts as stated in note 2.23(b), the Group uses the
“percentage of completion method” to determine the
appropriate revenues, costs and work-in-progress (“WIP”)
to be recognised in a given period. The stage of completion
is measured by reference to the service performed and
accepted by the customers up to the balance sheet date as
a percentage of total services to be performed.

Upon applying the percentage of completion method, the
Group needs to estimate the gross profit margin of each
contract, which is determined based on the estimated
total contract costs and total contract sum. If the actual
gross profit margin of each contract differs from the
management’s estimates, the contract cost and WIP to be
recognised within the next year will need to be adjusted
accordingly.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

RS hat R A

AR REUR A SRR 2 fhat A - Th
ERBELRIEBRE  BREBHAE
EEBEBRATHESEHR 2 EHMIE
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AEBERABARRZ BT RER - B
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T EVBEFEEERE B ZRMEER
BEAFE -

@  [EHGIERE
WTEEFEREEPZEETHR
BTN - EERURR R H
WORRIE 2 BB - EEE HEH
AHE R o

(b) BHFERE
AEERBBHEMHRERRZ
REREK M2 T ERFELE
FREELEE RAEEBEESD
BHEFEEREMMAEGEEER
R HE R fhEr - EFRMERE G
ATRAE  BREZERSTER@EMN
FAHREPZFAZFEREER
R -

© BERWATER
REBEEERA D2 T BER (A
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ERRNZERENREEEEY
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Contract revenue recognition (continued)

In addition, the Directors of the Company are of the
opinion that, except for the provision made, there were no
expected losses, where the estimated total contract costs
exceed the total estimated contract revenue, and needed to
be recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Receivables from and payables for payment processing
solutions business

The Group recognises revenue from its payment processing
solutions business when services are rendered which
generally coincide when the underlying transactions
of the merchants (customers of the Group) have been
acknowledged by the relevant banks and financial
institutions, by which contractual right of the Group and
the merchants to receive cash flows from the financial
institutions is established and amount to be received
could be reliably estimated. The amounts are normally
acknowledged one day to a few days after the occurrence
of the underlying transactions and depending on the
calendar day (weekday or public holiday) that the
transactions fallen into. Accordingly, change in estimated
point of time when services are rendered may affect the
Group’s income recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the year. It may also significantly affect the
amount of receivable from banks and financial institutions,
and payable to customers for the payment processing
solutions business recognised on the Group’s consolidated
balance sheet as at the year end date.

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such difference will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
to be probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

4

B A 05 W Bk

BRS e RAE(E)

(c)

(d)

(e)

ERVRA TR ()
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XX BEIERARG ZEBZER
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Bzt EEF ] ErEREE
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5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS, 5 WA~ A REMKESEEE
NET

Revenue, other income and other gains, net recognised during RERERZUA - HaIA R E AU
the year are as follows: SRR

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t+—HLEFE

2015 2014
—B-HE —T-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Turnover BER
Provision of payment processing RETARFEE
solutions R 2 511,178 472,904
Provision of financial solutions RHESEABRTR 382,096 406,987
Sales of electronic power meters HEBRITEEMD
and solutions KRR 209,860 326,666
Provision telecommunication EHERBRITER
solutions 130,756 197,721
Provision of payment platform b S RN T TS
solutions 142,956 108,088
License income from an investment RENEREAR —EIRE
accounted for using the equity ZFRTREW A (K523 1(a))
method (Note 31(a)) - 5,078
Others Hith - 11,735
1,376,846 1,529,179
Other income =i ON
Interest income FEWA 15,783 6,763
Subsidy income R 14,252 9,629
Rental income LA 3,231 1,970
Others Ef‘m 13,983 6,046
47,249 24,408
Other gains, net E b e F 5

Gains on disposals of available-for-sale ~ HERHEESREE
financial assets 2z - 126,360
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the internal reports reviewed by the Board of Directors that are
used to make strategic decisions.

The Board of Directors consider the business from a product
perspective.

The Group is organised into five main operating segments in
these internal reports.

(a)

Payment processing solutions — principally engaged in
provision of payment processing services, merchants
recruiting and related products and solutions;

Financial solutions — principally engaged in the provision
of information system consultancy, integration and
operation services and sales of information technology
products to financial institutions and banks;

Electronic power meters and solutions — principally
engaged in the manufacturing and sales of electronic
power meters, data collection terminals and provision of
information system consultancy services; and the sales of
mag-stripe card security decoder chips;

Telecommunication solutions — principally engaged in
the provision of telecommunication platform operation
services and operation value-added services; and

Payment platform solutions — principally engaged in the
provision of mobile payment platform operation services
and operation value-added services.

The Board of Directors assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of adjusted earnings/(loss)

before interest expense, taxes, depreciation and amortisation
(“EBITDA").

B A 05 W Bk

EREREEFSEMUEHRIATZ
NEPRE MEELE DR -

EEENEMAEEEER -
AEENFHRED RO EEELZENHE -
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6  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 DEER(E)

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results for the year by

AEBRFRNZEB DB ZBAREESD

operating segment is as follows: IR CHNE
Electronic
Payment power  Telecom-  Payment
processing  Financial metersand munication  platform Total
solutions  solutions  solutions  solutions  solutions Others Group
xf ]
RERE SRR ERR  EREBR  Xfi¥e
BALER ES ¥ VE FR BRRE Hth SEAG
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr Tz TEx TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx
Year ended 31 December 2015 Hz-3-1%
TZA=T-HLEE
Segment turmover DESEE 511,188 384147 209,860 157,025 151,012 - 1413232
Intra-group turnover SERRTREER 10)  (2,051) - (26269  (8,056) - (36,386)
Turnover from external customers RENDEE &£ 511,178 382,096 209,860 130,756 142,956 - 1,376,846
Segmental EBITDA HEBEBITDA 99,917 26,814 (10,990) 9,588 25,704 (15,557) 135,476
Depreciation & (39,652) (2,291) (4,348) (5,308) (420 (6260) (52,645
Amortisation B - (10,267) (496) - - - (10,763)
Segmental operating profit/(loss) ARELEN/ (BR) 60,265 14256  (15834) 4280 25284  (16,183) 72,068
Unallocated other income RABEMBA 7,226
Unallocated corporate expenses RORGERR (72,801)
Share of profit of investments FEEABEREAR
accounted for using the equity REZEH
method 198,218
Loss on dilution of interest in IMERENE L
an investment accounted for —BRERR
using the equity method g3ER (8,442)
Profit before income tax BEERAGT 196,269
Income tax expense FERAR (3,577)
Profit for the year FRGEH 192,692
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An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results for the year by

6 @

H|ERGE)

ARERFRERGH B ZBARRED

operating segment is as follows: (continued) MR« (48)
Electronic
Payment power  Telecom-  Payment
processing  Financial metersand munication  platform Total
solutions  solutions  solutions  solutions  solutions Others Group
XA B8
RpRE  ERMR  Emk EAER  XA¥s
Y VIES TR BRIR TR BRNR e RES
HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TEr TEr TR TEr  TEr  TERT  TEn
Year ended 31 December 2014 BZ-3-mF
tZB=t-RLFE
Segment tumover NEEZE 472,904 408530 326,666 197721 110240 16,813 1,532,874
Intra-group turnover SEMATRZEE - (158 - - 219 - (3,69)
Turnover from external customers RENDEE E4£58 472,904 406,987 326,666 197,721 108,088 16,813 1,529,179
Segmental EBITDA and before N BN EERENRY
impairment of intangible assets X BRRRERERZ
and property, plant and equipment  H48EBITDA 40,313 25,818 (17,685 20,477 19,708 (6,609) 81,962
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE - - (61,978 - - - (61,978
Impairment of property, plant and nE - BEREERE
equipment - - (7,551) - - - (7,551)
Segmental EBITDA ZHEEBITDA 40,313 25,818 (87,214) 20,477 19,708 (6,669) 12,433
Depreciation HiES (38,993) (2,793) (6,092) (8,254) (362) (2,2260)  (58,720)
Amortisation B - (1,711) (1,627) (2,081) - - (5,419
Segmental operating profit/(loss) BRERR /(B 1320 21314 (94933) 10,142 19346 (8,895)  (51,7060)
Unallocated other income/gains, net — RAEEMMA /W FaE 130,681
Unallocated corporate expenses FRARLERS (79,704)
Share of profit of investments EENERENRZ
accounted for using the equity RE 2R
method 118,901
Net gains on dilution and disposal of ~ LAEREAERZ
interest in an investment accounted B B2
for using the equity method BERTENETE 251,215
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE-RMBARZNE 51,743
Profit before income tax BRETET AT AR 421,130
Income tax expense FERAS (19,886)
Profit for the year FREMN 401,244
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6  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Unallocated corporate expenses represent costs that are used

for all segments, including depreciation of property, plant and
equipment of HK$1,603,000 (2014: HK$462,000), depreciation
of investment properties of HK$172,000 (2014: HK$172,000)
and amortisation of leasehold land of HK$759,000 (2014:
HK$759,000), respectively.

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2015 and
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December

2015 are as follows:

TEERE)
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RO ERIBEARAD B ZRA
DRIBIEYE - E REZEITE,603,000
BT (T — P04 : 462,000/ 7T) « &
EYWEFE72,000/8 T (T —OF ¢
172,000/ 7T ) K 0 & £ #b 3 §5759,0007%8
JL(ZZ—PU4F : 759,000/87T) °

RIE—HF+-A=+—RZHREE
HEErBE_T-OAF+_A=1+—H
I FEHRBEERELT :

Electronic
Payment power  Telecom-  Payment
processing ~ Financial metersand munication platform Total
solutions ~solutions ~solutions ~solutions ~ solutions  Others Unallocated Elimination ~ Group
xff Bt
XZRE SRBR EmRR EABR Xf¥a
Brn®  hE BRAR 5R BAAE BE SE4H
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén TRz TEx TER TEn Tén  TEn
As at 31 December 2015 R-B-I1%
tZR=t-A
Segment assets AR 1,323,709 320848 349784 732,645 124,734 2,836,084 (1,201,198) 4,576,515
Segment liabilites DELE (1,086,065) (285740 (254,614) (117,09) (441,908) (71,469) 1,201,198 (1,238,571)
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-B-1f
tZAZT-ALEE
Additions to non-current assets ERGEELRE
(excluding long-term deposits (TeERERE R
and prepayments, investments RIHE - SMERA
accounted for using the equity NEZRER
method and available-for-sale L ESREE)
financial assef) 163,855 1431 2316 624 1,034 - 171,09
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 DEER(E)
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2014 and R-ZE—NF+_A=+—HZHEEE
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December Eﬁiﬁﬁa)ﬁi% —E—NmNF+=—A=+—H
2014 are as follows: IFEERBEEZIABIAT :
Electronic
Payment power  Telecom-  Payment
processing ~ Financial meters and munication  platiorm Total
solutions ~solutions ~solutions ~solutions ~ solutions ~ Others Unallocated Elimination ~ Group
X BHifE
RFEE SRER Enk EABR H¥e
[ YES g BRI g BRI i ADK By FEE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr  TEr T TEr T TEr  TEr  TEr T
As at 31 December 2014 R-E-mE
tZR=1-H
Segment assets NEEE 870,818 318178 375413 752,806 97,630 106,776 2,732,244 (1,143,113) 4,110,752
Segment liabilities HEEE (680,978)  (277,056)  (263,151)  (143,890)  (198,600) ~(408,385)  (67,602) 1,143,113 (896,549)
Year ended 31 December 2014 B2-3-mE
tZAZT-RLEE
Additions to non-current assets FERBEELRE
(excluding long-term deposits (FafEREEER
and prepayments, investments BHFE  IERE
accounted for using the equity NEZRER
method and available-for-sale HHESREE)
financial asset) 38,745 37,003 1,620 2979 300 17 4 - 80,608
Unallocated assets mainly include investment accounted AOEEETEBRUEREARZ
for using the equity method of HK$1,525,040,000 (2014: #% & 1,525,040,000/8 7T (=& — M £ -

HK$1,370,383,000) and cash and cash equivalents of
HK$720,743,000 (2014: HK$822,001,000).

Additions to non-current assets comprise additions to property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Revenue of approximately HK$253,241,000 (2014:
HK$291,964,000) were derived from a single external customer.
These revenues were attributable to the telecommunication
solutions segment of HK$118,662,000 (2014: HK$182,805,000)
and payment platform solutions segment of HK$134,579,000
(2014: HK$107,840,000) in the PRC. During the year ended
31 December 2014, revenue of HK$1,319,000 from this single
external customer was attributable to the others segment.

Information provided to the Board of Directors is measured
in a manner consistent with that of the consolidated financial
statements. These assets and liabilities are allocated based on the
operations of the segment.

1,370,383,0008 L) A IR E MR FH
&%) 720,743,0008 0 ( —Z — O & :
822,001,000/87T) °

FRBEELAERREYME  BFE &R
BARBEEZRE °

W AR #9253,241,000/8 70( —ZE— PO 4F ¢
291,964,000/ L)  EEBE—INEEF ©
ZERADRIREFREZ ENFE RS E
548 5118,662,00078 7L ( Z T — O F -
182,805,000/870) AT F A RS R
D8 5134,579,0008 T ( — 2 — U4 ¢
107,840,000/ 7C) - HE T —NF+=
A=+—HIEFE ' LAH1,319,000%
TEEAUIE—IINIEE  ZBRAKRE
Hibo4g -

AEEERHE AN RAEGAMBERER
—HZARE - RFEERARRIE
ZEBAR
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Sales between segments are carried out at normal commercial
terms. The revenue from external parties reported to the Board
of Directors is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement.

The Group is principally domiciled in Hong Kong, Mainland
China, Japan and Macau. The Group’s turnover by geographical
locations, which is determined by the locations in which the
turnover are generated from, is as follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

TEER(E)

DR HER - RERIRETT - ME
EEEFRBINBES ZRARKAHLE S W
BmRBZITEE

AEBTEREL  PEAE  AARE
FIEM - REEEIZbE 2 2 X RBEIRRE R
BELZWEHIWT

For the year ended 31 December
BEt-A=1t—HLHFE

2015 2014
—E-—REF —E—JUE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHT

Mainland China EelEipN 1,336,190 1,490,872
Hong Kong 5B 14,098 8,489
Japan HAR 17,006 20,239
Macau JRPT 9,552 9,579
1,376,846 1,529,179

The Group’s non-current assets (excluding long term deposits and
prepayments, investments accounted for using the equity method
and available-for-sale financial asset) and current assets by
geographical locations, which is determined by the geographical
locations in which the asset is located, is as follows:

AEBRIEEEEMTILED 2 ERBE
E(TEERPRERENTEA IR
BEAEZEERAHEESRERE) LR
BEEHIIWT

For the year ended 31 December

BZE+-—A=+—HLEE

2015 2014
—F-0F —TIF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Non-current assets FRBEE
Mainland China EelEipN 243,386 143,857
Hong Kong 55 20,159 29,306
Japan SN 5,218 2,496
268,763 175,659

Current assets REBEE

Mainland China A B K e 1,796,956 1,496,234
Hong Kong BB 760,721 857,142
Japan =N 203,772 196,689
Macau JEPY 9,963 9,437
2,771,412 2,559,502
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7  EXPENSES BY NATURE 7

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling expenses,
administrative expenses and impairment of intangible assets are
analysed as follows:

Auditor’s remuneration BN &

Depreciation of property, plant and M - WEERETE
equipment (Note 14) (Btat14)

Depreciation of investment properties REMEIFEHE13)
(Note 13)

Amortisation of leasehold land (Note 15) A&+ ks (#/aE15)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 16) & E#HE (MaF16)
Impairment of intangible assets (Note 16) R EERME(AiL16)

Impairment of property, plant and M - BELRERE
equipment

Employee benefit expense (including EBERMNZ T (BREESHE)
directors’ emoluments) (Note 9) (Ht5t9)

Costs of inventories sold (including ELFERA(BIEFEEREE)
provision for inventories) (Note 20) (#fiz20)

Operating lease rentals in respect of T RETZEEROES
land and buildings

Operating lease rentals in respect of Rz EEHOES
equipment

Research and development costs 9T K R B R AR
(including staff cost) (BB IRA)

Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, HEME  BEK
plant and equipment iz R (Mas)

Provision for impairment of trade FEWRFOR B B 5 2R
receivables, net

Provision for inventories FERE

B A 05 W Bk

DHMEES 2B
RISERA - HERX - (TREMRER
EEREFAZEZ - HWET

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-REF —E—JUFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT BT
3,370 3,320
54,248 59,182
172 172

995 1,000
10,527 5178
- 61,978

- 7,551
457,179 519,701
203,931 320,769
37,514 43,968
6,761 16,916
139,906 146,780
140 (592)

- 2,188

5,012 11,041
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8  NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSS 8 IINEBEFE
The net foreign exchange loss recognised in the consolidated BEZT—RAF+_A=1+—HLEFE "
income statement and included in administrative expenses for REFEARAKXRTEAEFTATHRERZ
the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to HK$9,623,000 SNE BB FRE A9,623,00078 L (ZF— MY
(2014: HK$18,454,000). F : 18,454,000/87T) °

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 9 EERMNBXZ(BEEEMS)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1tT—-HLEE

2015 2014

—B-hF —TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Wages and salaries ITENF® 393,277 420,206

Pension costs and social security costs RIRE A Rt 2 RER A 63,902 72,192
Employees’ incentive programme of a —fRIf R Rl 2 & B 52t &

subsidiary - 27,303

457,179 519,701
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 9 EEREMNBEX(EREEMS)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (continued) (&)
Five highest paid individuals EEEEHAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the AEBAFEREZRHFATRERSA
Group for the year included four (2014: two) directors whose (ZZ—F MBEF - REZ2B2C
emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 33. EMFE33 DT R o REEENGT—
The emoluments payable to the remaining one (2014: three) F(ZE—OF : =R) AL ZBE0T

individual during the year are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-EF —E—UF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET BT
Salaries, allowances and benefits e RMREYNGE
in kind including employees’ (BiEEE &R E)
incentive programme 2,211 28,969
Pension cost — defined BIRS A — FEEHRETE
contribution plan 43 206
2,254 29,175
The emoluments fall within the following band: BT THIER)
For the year ended 31 December
BEt+t-—A=+—HLEE
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,000,0017%7T—3,000,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$5,000,001 — HK$6,000,000 5,000,001;%8 7T —6,000,0007% 7T - 1
HK$8,000,001 — HK$9,000,000 8,000,001,57C—9,000,0007% 7T - 1
HK$15,000,001 — HK$16,000,000 15,000,001787C— 16,000,000/ 7T - 1
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10 FRSHimx

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in

the countries in which the Group operates.

BB AAF NG FERT R TR
E16.5%(=F—MNF : 16.5%):1HE - /8
Sa FIFRIE BIAGF RS AT FEERBLR 7 - 1%
REBEEMTEBERER 2 MEHE -

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E—-RfF —EF—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT

Current tax RSB
— Hong Kong profits tax — HEFEH - -
— Overseas taxation — BHNHIE 4,415 20,505
Deferred tax RIERIE (48) (737)
Adjustments in respect of prior years BIEFEFHE (790) 118
Income tax expense TSt 3,577 19,886

Effective from 1 January 2008, subsidiaries are subject to
corporate income tax (“CIT”) in accordance with the new PRC
CIT Law as approved by the National People’s Congress on
16 March 2007. According to the new PRC CIT Law and the
relevant regulations, the new CIT tax rate applicable is 25%
unless preferential rates are applicable in the cities where the
subsidiaries are located.

If a subsidiary is subject to CIT and qualified as High and New
Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”), the applicable CIT tax rate is
15%.

Applicable corporate income tax rates of principal subsidiaries
Beijing Hi Sun Advanced Business Solutions Information
Technology Limited (“ABS”) was renewed as HNTE in 2012
under the new PRC CIT Law and re-submitted HNTE application
in 2015 under the new PRC CIT Law. Hangzhou PAX Electronic
Technology Limited (“Hangzhou Electronic Technology”) re-
submitted HNTE application in 2014 under the new PRC CIT
Law and re-qualified as HNTE in 2015. BEfT X BR A F
(“SXF”) submitted HNTE application the first time in 2014 under
the new PRC CIT Law and qualified as HNTE in 2014. Hunan
Hisun Mobile Pay IT Limited (“HN Mobile Pay”) was qualified as
HNTE in 2013 under the new PRC CIT Law.

BREZEARRKRAEN _ZTLF=A
TARBEBZHPELCEMEIRA(RE
FRSH)) RARRDER - TR BERRMAEHR
FEBCETNE-A-BRER  BIEE
BREBEANRHB AR MENT - &R
BARIBERAEEMEHERHE25%
ZRUE e

i — R E AR BBREEMERIRE
REBBR AR RMEE (St
%) RIEREEMERHTERI%

TEMBRARZBERALEMREH=E
EtrEBeEEERMERAR(IREE
EEEDR B _—FREFPBELEMN
BEREEEFFERSIRMEE - IR
—E-RFRBEATECEMERAER
RIXSMBMEESAFE - MMNEEFEFR
MARAR(MMEFEM DR =Z—MN
FREFTPEEEAEREERRRSH
B ¥RE  WR_E—HFBEAER
RARRFRMEE - BT XNERRA
(ISXFNR =T —IFREFHHBEDEM
BEREBEREXRHRMEERE - TR
—E-MERERKARIRMEE <
MEERE S RMERAR (A=
BEDR _ZE—=FREBEHTPEEEME
BOEB B BRI -
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10

Applicable corporate income tax rates of principal subsidiaries
(continued)

As such, the applicable corporate income tax rate of ABS,
Hangzhou Electronic Technology, SXF, HN Mobile Pay was 15%
(2014: 15%) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average
tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as
follows:

B A 05 W Bk

Frigwipax ()
TEMEARAZEACEREBE)

At #HE2—FT—RHF+-_A=+—HI
FE  =aBeEEE - MMNEFREIM -
SXFR =5 EE 2 @A EMEHE
B15%( —F—PU4E : 15%) °

AEBBRFSHATG A 2 IR R A E A
RiF A BREN 2 TR X et EI12
MIRERZ ERWT

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—HLEE

2015 2014
—E-RF —TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Profit before income tax MR BT 1S4 BT s ) 196,269 421,130
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates BN B ERREE RN
applicable to profit in the respective BEHEE MR ERE 2§18
countries 33,293 61,435
Tax effects of: M E
Income not subject to tax BARBA (41,200) (77,704)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes  FtaRHH M = A H0F 2 ISt 11,247 29,010
Utilisation of previously unrecognised HABEARBERZ HIEER
tax losses (8,787) (13,879)
Tax losses for which no deferred income I #ERIE ST EER 2
tax was recognised TiIAE B 9,814 20,906
Adjustments in respect of prior years BT FEFE (790) 118
Income tax expense FriSfiFA 3,577 19,886

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 17.0% (2014:
14.6%). The change is caused by a change in the profitability
mix of the Group's subsidiaries in the respective countries.

ISR ER17.0%( T —MF :
14.6%) - EBRETIALEE 2 HBARR
HEER BN HES LREBE -
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11 DIVIDENDS 11 RE
No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during HE-_T—AF+-_A=+—H1IFE "
the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil). ARABRABERNLEREMBRE(ZF
—PO%F : M) o
12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BREF
(@ Basic (@ EF
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the ERERARTVIERN A RERFE
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by ANEE R AR FAEZEITZ BN
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue EFHHETE -

during the year.

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+—HLEE

2015 2014
—E-REF TN
Profit attributable to equity holders 22X Rl#Ezs5 A A E(EHF
of the Company (HK$’000) (F#&T) 183,486 397,071
Weighted average number of EEITEBRRINE T
ordinary shares in issue (thousands)  (F %) 2,776,834 2,776,834
Basic earnings per share BIREARN(BRETT)
(HK$ per share) 0.066 0.143
(b) Diluted (b) #F
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the BREERN NDIREREELTE
net income and the weighted average number of ordinary SERR D 2 RRER I FA B R e B
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all potentially TEINE B INEFIEGETE -

dilutive shares.
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b)

Diluted (continued)

The Group has three (2014: four) categories of potentially
dilutive shares: share options issued by an associated
company, share options issued by a joint venture and
convertible preference shares issued by a joint venture
(2014: share options issued by an associated company,
share options issued by a subsidiary: Mega Hunt
Microelectronics Limited (“Mega Hunt Microelectronics”),
share options issued by a joint venture and convertible
preference shares issued by a joint venture).

For the year ended 31 December 2015, dilutive effects
arise from share options issued by an associated company.
For the year ended 31 December 2014, dilutive effects
arise from share options issued by an associated company
and share options issued by Mega Hunt Microelectronics,
in which, the dilutive effect of the share options issued
by Mega Hunt Microelectronics was considered as
insignificant.

For share options issued by the associated company, the
exercise of the outstanding share options in the associated
company would have a dilutive effect. The exercise of
the share options in the associated company would be
dilutive if the net profit attributable to the equity holders of
the Company will decrease as a result of decrease in the
Group's share of profit of associated company and increase
in loss on dilution of interest in an associated company.
A calculation is done to determine the number of shares
that could have been acquired at fair value (determined as
the average annual fair value of the associated company’s
shares) based on the monetary value of the subscription
rights attached to outstanding share options of the
associated company. The number of shares calculated as
above is compared with the number of shares that would
have been issued assuming the exercise of the share
options of the associated company.

B A 05 W Bk

12 BRER(E)

(b)

BE(E)
AEEFEA=HR(—FT—OF : @
BBEHEERD - —RBEARE
TZBERE  —HeEbERITZ
BREE -—HAELERTZAR
BRELEBR(ZF—MF : —FHBERQ
AT BRE - —HERB AR
AMEFERAR(KAMETF )
BITZBRE  —REBREHT
ZERER-HAERERTZA
‘AR E R

BE-_ZT-AFT-A=1+—HL
FE - BEYEELS —HBZER
ABRTZERE BE_T—NF
TAZ=+—HLLEE #EFE
EEE—HBERREIT 2 BIE
FKAMEFHITZHERE - B
o KRR E FEITERE 2B
FERERATEK -

MEBERARBTZEREMNS -
TR 2 RN B 2 RTT R A ]
BRAEHETE - (WAKEESE—
B & X B 2 O D e 0 — P B
LRR w2 EEERIEMNGE
AR BB R A ARG R FFHE
B RIFTE R S A F 2 BAE
AABSEYE -BEARAFE
Wi 2 B in 8 B (RE S R RN 2
FHEERFEEE) HREBRER
Bl RTTREBREMN ZRERE
HEESE - LXAREZRNR
B o R AR B i B 2 B AR N
TR ZEHETRNDHE -
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b)

Diluted (continued)

For share options and convertible preference shares issued
by the joint venture, during the year ended 31 December
2015, the Group’s share of loss exceeded its interest in
the joint venture, and hence, the Group discontinued in
recognising share of further losses. The exercise of the
outstanding share options and convertible preference
shares in a joint venture would have an anti-dilutive
effect as the net profit attributable to the equity holders of
the Company will increase as a result of decrease in the
Group's share of loss of investment accounted for using the
equity method for the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014.

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

12 BRER(E)

P AG)
A B RRBIT ZERER AR
BEERMS  REBEE-_T—AF

+ZA=+—HLFE  TEEE
HEEHRRERZEEbEE
o AR E T BEEEREEN
ZE—FTEE BEZZ—R1F
;FZE-—NF+ZA=+—HIEF
B AREEELUEREARZ
—IEIREZEBERY  AREER
BB ARG RFFESERTIgmMm -
BATEZEERE L MARITEER
BERATRRESLREAEE REES
2,

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-RA=1t-HLEE

2015 2014
Z2-1F —F-mE
Profit attributable to equity holders RRAERFE ARG
of the Company (HK$'000) (FAT) 183,486 397,071
Assuming exercise of all outstanding share &k —FBE D AIET 2B WATTE
options issued by the associated company  BREEEH T
(HK$'000) (FAT)
— Decrease in share of profit of the — EfE—RBERAR
associated company RS (1,509) (25,560)
— Increase in loss on dilution of the —R—RBERATZ
associated company aEEEm (4,770) (10,693)
Adjusted profit attributable to equity ANEESREZEN 2 A RF)
holders of the Company used to determine ~ #Ex53H A (G & 58 2% 7
diluted earnings per share (HK$'000) (F#&T) 177,207 360,818
Weighted average number of ordinary shares S R#HZF 2 LiEA iETF &
for diluted earnings per share (thousands) (TR) 2,776,834 2,776,834
Diluted earnings per share attributable AREREREAEGEER
to the equity holders of the Company EHaf(kET)
(HK$ per share) 0.064 0.130




e (RE)BRAF

—E-HEEH 125

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A 05 W Bk

13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13 REWE
Buildings
BF
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January 2014 R=Z—-NF—-F—H
Cost N 3,446
Accumulated depreciation EZ5HTE (1,213)
Net book amount REFE 2,233
Year ended 31 December 2014 BE-E—NE+-A=+—HLEE
Opening net book value HAWIAR AR 2,233
Depreciation e (172)
Closing net book value HARREEE 2,061
At 31 December 2014 R=ZB-NE+=-A=+—8H
Cost N 3,446
Accumulated depreciation R E (1,385)
Net book amount REFE 2,061
Fair value (Note) NYEMEE) 11,431
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-—E—H5+t-A=1+—RHLEE
Opening net book value BRYIER A FE 2,061
Depreciation e (172)
Closing net book value WA IRE R E 1,889
At 31 December 2015 R=—ZE—-HF+=-A=+—H
Cost DN 3,446
Accumulated depreciation EZ5HTE (1,557)
Net book amount REFE 1,889

Fair value (Note)

NHEH ) 10,362
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13

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Note:

Fair value measurements using significant other observable inputs (level 2)

The investment properties located at Level 15 to 17, Yindu Building, No. 67 Fu
Cheng Road, Haidian District, Beijing City, PRC (1t /& 2@ & #6755 88
EBAE15-171%). The fair value as at 31 December 2015 was assessed by the
independent and professionally qualified valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited.

The valuation was determined using the direct comparison approach. Sales prices
of comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key
attributes such as property size. The most significant input into this valuation

approach is price per square foot.

At at 31 December 2015, the Group had no unprovided contractual obligations for
future repairs and maintenance (2014: Nil).

All depreciation expense during the year has been charged to administrative
expense (2014: same).

The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated income statement:

Rental income WA

Direct operating expenses arising from investment HHERSWMAZREMEMEE Y

property that generated rental income HEELRZ

13
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REMHEGE)

Wi -

NEMERABEREABMERAFEHE(ER)

REMFEMNIE AT GER B KIR67 RRIAE5-17
B-R-E-—RAF+-A=+—HZRATFEHABLE
FRERMEMTHEEETERMERARNE

BEDRAERLBOAETE - REDDLR ALY E
ZHEERERIEBUEMIMYEER) < =EFDR
W o WHEDEZRERBABERETHRE -

RZE-RAF+_A=+—R0 FEREHEEHAR

HERREMAEREZENEE(ZT—TF : §) -

ERFAETEREEAAGTRER (TN ;18
A) -

UTEBENGE KRR AR -

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLEFE

2015 2014
—ZE-HF —Z—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FHT
3,231 1,970
(331) (266)

There were no direct operating expenses arising from investment property that did
not generate rental income during the year.

The period of leases whereby the Group leases out its investment properties under
operating leases ranged from 1 to 2 years.

At 31 December 2015, the future aggregate minimum rentals receivables under
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Not later than 1 year TEBB1F
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years i1 FE BB F

FR - TEFAASRAZRENETEELETE

AEERBEEROBLEREN X ZEANF122
o

RZZ-—AF+ZA=+—H RETTHEEEA
BWZARRBKIEEYTESBEELT

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1t—-HLHFE

2015 2014
=T-EF —T-mE
HK$/000 HK$'000
FET TBT
2,879 2,641

34 273

2,913 2,914
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 Y%  BWERSE
Office
Leasehold  furniture and Plant and Motor
Buildings improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
WAE
BF HEVERE RAKRE BERRE AE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TERT FTERT FTERT TER TER TERT
At 1 January 2014 R=Z2-OF-A—H
Cost WA 44,027 17,790 226,216 129,309 26,480 443,822
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (13,899) (14,716) (194,400) (44,938) (21,180) (289,133)
Net book amount REFE 30,128 3,074 31,816 84,371 5,300 154,689
Year ended 31 December 2014 BE-2-m&E
+ZA=+—-RHLEFE
Opening net book amount HYREmEE 30,128 3,074 31,816 84,371 5,300 154,689
Additions NE - 10,631 19,252 13,689 6,296 49,868
Disposals (Note 28(b)) HE(Hit280)) - - (123) (24,599) - (24,722)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHERR - - (653) - - (653)
Impairment loss AEER - - - (7,551) - (7,551)
Depreciation wE (1,992) (3,180) (17,315) (34,390) (2,305) (59,182)
Exchange realignment EHBE (667) (114) (1,026) (1,681) (135) (3,623)
Closing net book amount HARBRE A 27,469 10,411 31,951 29,839 9,156 108,826
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE-mE+=A=1+—-H
Cost % 43,038 28,061 232,760 100,159 32,145 436,163
Accumulated depreciation ZHHFE (15,569) (17,650) (200,809) (62,812) (22,989) (319,829)
Accumulated impairment loss ZEtRERE - - - (7,508) - (7,508)
Net book amount REFE 27,469 10,411 31,951 29,839 9,156 108,826
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-S-1E
+tZA=t+-HLEE
Opening net book amount BRI FE 27,469 10,411 31,951 29,839 9,156 108,826
Additions RE - 425 6,759 161,518 2,389 171,091
Disposals (Note 28(b)) HE(Hr728() - - (646) (265) - 911)
Depreciation wE (1,950) (3,434) (14,132) (31,931) (2,801) (54,248)
Exchange realignment [& 5% (1,384) (766) (1,329) (6,610 (435) (10,524)
Closing net book amount HAREFE 24,135 6,636 22,603 152,551 8,309 214,234
At 31 December 2015 R-B-5F+=A=t+-H
Cost A 40,760 26,823 211,569 249,444 31,502 560,098
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (16,625) (20,187) (188,966) (89,806) (23,193) (338,777)
Accumulated impairment loss ZETREER - - - (7,087) - (7,087)

Net book amount BRE A 24,135 6,636 22,603 152,551 8,309 214,234
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14

15

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there was no
impairment charges arose in the electronic power meters and
solutions segment (2014: HK$7,551,000).

Depreciation expense of HK$36,777,000 (2014: HK$41,968,000)
has been expensed in cost of sales, HK$879,000 (2014:
HK$1,790,000) in selling expenses and HK$16,592,000 (2014:
HK$15,424,000) in administrative expenses respectively.

As at 31 December 2015, banking facilities of approximately
HK$21,244,000 (2014: HK$22,483,000) were secured by
buildings with a net book value of HK$10,955,000 (2014:
HK$12,705,000).

LEASEHOLD LAND

The movement of the net book amount for leasehold land is as
follows:

14

15

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

M BERREE)

REE-FT—HF+_A=+—8BItF
B B EERMRERARSBEE
EARERZ(ZZ—M4E : 7,551,000
JT) °

WER Y H36,777,0008 L ( = ZF—PUF :
41,968,000 7T ) BRI E R AR S8
879,000/ 7L (== — U4 : 1,790,000
JC) R HE S S 8H 1 16,592,00078 L ( =
T —PO4 : 15,424,000/ 70) ERTTH &
A -

R_E—RAF+-_A=+—8 " K77
EE#21,244,0008 L (=T — U 4F :
22,483,000 7T ) LA BR EJF{E 10,955,000
BEIT( T —PO4 : 12,705,000/ 7T ) 2 &
FEEA o

HE L

HE T2 REFEZEIT

2015 2014

—E-fHF —T—mF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT TET

Opening net book amount HYIEREFE 35,383 36,653
Amortisation i3] (995) (1,000)
Exchange realignment PE 5 A% (603) (270)
Closing net book amount HAA BRI HE 33,785 35,383

During the year, amortisation expense of HK$57,000 (2014:
HK$59,000) has been expensed in cost of sales and HK$938,000
(2014: HK$941,000) in administrative expenses, respectively.

As at 31 December 2015, banking facilities of approximately
HK$21,244,000 (2014: HK$22,483,000) were secured by
leasehold land with a total net carrying amount of HK$3,212,000
(2014: HK$3,485,000).

FR - EEBAPS57,0008 (=0
F 59,0008 7L) EREEK AT H R
938,000/ 7C( —Z —PU4F : 941,000/ 7T)
PTHRERXH -

R_E—RAF+_A=+—8 " E77
= EH #21,244,0008 L (Z & — O F -
22,483,000 L) E MR E FE LT
3,212,000 7L (== — U4 : 3,485,000
BoT) 2 HE T HEHE IR o
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16 EFEEE

Patents and
capitalised
Customer software
litand ~ development  Inprogress  Computer
Goodwill Brandname ~Licences  contracts costs technology  software Total
ZHR
EER
ZFEE  EAZEH
[ i HHE ket WEAE WEeREG ShEH g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER ThEL TEn TEL TER TR TEn TR
At 1 January 2014 R=%-mE-5-A
Cost KA 131,750 5,116 8,777 5,925 25,837 6,836 - 184
Accumulated amortisation ZitEH - (5,116) (5,49) (5,925) (25,713) (5,241) - (47 444)
Accumulated impairment loss Z:hEER (68,377) - - - - - - (68,377)
Net book amount FEFE 03,373 - 3328 - 124 1,59 - 68,420
Year ended 31 December 2014 ~ BZ-E-N%
tZB=t-A
LFE
Opening net book amount BOBESE 63,373 - 3308 - 124 1,59 - 68420
Additions AE - - - - - - 30,800 30,600
Amortisation charge Byl - - (2,081) - (43) (1,343) (1,711) (5,178)
Impairment loss HEEE (61978) - - - - - - (61978
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FHERE - - (1,188) - - - - (1,188)
Exchange realignment ERHEE (1,395) - (59) - 0) (30) - (1.487)
Closing net hook amount HAREFE - - - - 78 m 2908 29389
At31 December 2014 R=F-RBE
tZA=1-H
Cost R 127,260 4996 - 4,99 25,234 6,076 30,800 199,962
Accumulated amortisation ZaHEH - (4,996) - 4,996) (25,156) (6,454) (1,711) (43,313)
Accumulated impairment loss ZiTHERE (127,260) - - - - - - (127260)
Net book amount REFE - - - - 78 909 29389
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16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Goodwill  Brand name Licences

#i mE W
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TRn  TEn  TER

TR

Year ended 31 December 2015 HZ-%-1%

16 EBREEE(E)

Patents and
capitalised
Customer ~ software
listand development ~ Inprogress  Computer
contracts costs technology ~ software Total
EilR
E&%
EFRE  ERcEh
Re¥  R¥AR WRVEE  SRRA aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Tin T TEn TR

tZA=1-A

LEE
Opening net book amount BEEFE - - - - 78 m 29,089 29,389
Amortisation charge Bt - - - - 42) (218) (10,267) (10,527)
Exchange realignment B SI% - - - - t) @ - U
(losing net book amount HAETRE - - - - 3 - 18,622 18,855

At 31 December 2015 W-E-1%

t=Az1-A
Cost KA 116,436 471 - 47N 23,842 6,308 30,800 186,828
Accumulated amortisation 2:HEH - (4,721) - 4,721) (23,809) (6,308) (11,978) (51,537)
Accumulated impairment loss ZHHERR (116,436) - - - - - - (116,436)
Net hook amount REFE - - - - 33 - 18,822 18,855

During the year, amortisation expense of HK$10,485,000
(2014: HK$5,135,000) has been expensed in cost of sales and
HK$42,000 (2014: HK$43,000) in administrative expenses,
respectively.

FA - BIEBERF10,485,0008 L (=F
—PO4F : 5,135,000/ 70 ) R IHER AL
$5%42,00078 70 (Z = — U4 : 43,0007
TORITIRE AL -
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified according
to operating segment and monitored by the management at the
operating segment level. The recoverable amount of a CGU is
determined based on the value-in-use calculation.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any goodwill
balance (2014: same). Goodwill allocated to the electronic
power meters and solutions segment had been fully impaired
with an impairment charge of HK$61,978,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2014.

The recoverable amount of the electronic power meters and
solutions segment was HK$100,047,000 as at 31 December
2014, which is lower than the carrying amount of this CGU. This
shortfall led to full impairment of goodwill of HK$61,978,000
and a further impairment charge of HK$7,551,000 on the plant
and equipment included in the electronic power meters and
solutions segment during the year ended 31 December 2014.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET

The Group’s available-for-sale financial asset include equity
securities with the following details:

16

17

B A 05 W Bk

BREE(E)

AERERH
BERBELEED BN REEAKEMER 2
ReErEM YHEERBERNEEDRE
HER - REELBM 2 TROSEER
EREEZFEEE

N-ZB—RE+-A=+—0  KEEH
BIARELEHR(ZZ—TF - 48R) - 5
RYyERTEERRBERARSBZEE
EREBE-Z—NF+=-A=+—HItHF
E2ERE - BERXA61,978,000%5

TG °

R-ZE—NWFE+_A=+—H  EE:
EEGERBAARSBEZAKREECER
100,047,000 7T - PREBRESEEE
UZEAE ZE=ESYFEE2ERE
61,978,000 * WA EZE T —MF
+ZA=+—ALFE  RBEEZEZ
HE—REMY7,551,0008 TETAE
EHEERMRBATRSHE -

AHEESHEE

AEBAUHEECHEEREREES
HIEWT

2015 2014

- —F—mE

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FAET

At 1 January n—A—H - 30,395

Addition RE 7,355 -
Fair value loss on revaluation recognised REMEEKEERZ

in other comprehensive income BHA T EERE 21 -

Disposals HeE - (30,278)

Exchange realignment PE 5 AR (352) (117)

At 31 December Rt+-—A=+—8H 6,982 -

Unlisted equity investments outside Hong Kong &/&RINZ FEETRAILE 6,982 -

The carrying amount of the available-for-sale financial asset is
denominated in RMB.

AHHEeREEZREBERARES
B
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SUBSIDIARIES
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18 KIEBAF

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2015:

Name

&R

Beijing Hi Sun Advanced
Business Solutions
Information Technology Limited

IR ERERNERAR

Beijing Hi Sunsray Information
Technology Limited
FrRBEERRSRITARAA

Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay IT
Limited*

R RRERE ERERA R

Hangzhou PAX Electronic
Technology Limited
MMNEEETRITERAH

BT ERADIK)

Place of
incorporation and
type of legal entity

ERELBHR
EERRER

The PRC, limited
liability company
T8 BRAE

The PRC, limited
liability company
T8 BRAE

The PRC, limited
liability company
i BRAT

The PRC, limited
liability company
R BRAT

The PRC, limited
liability company
R BRAT

Principal activities
and place of operation

IREBRERNY

Provision of financial solutions,
services and related products
in PRC

ERERECBBANR
R REBER

Provision of telecommunication
solutions, and operation
value-added services in PRC

EREREENEEAER
BELEERE

Provision of mobile payment
solutions, services and
telecommunication
solutions in PRC

EREREFRI AT AR
RERREEA AR

Manufacturing and sales of
electronic power meters and
solutions in PRC

EPEEERAERRTEED
JEVIES

Provision of payment processing
solutions in PRC

ERERMIARSRERRANR

* BETT S ABRZAR] (“SXF”), Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay IT Limited and 1&
BESRENE B RMABR AT are the subsidiaries of EE I TRERHLE
fR2 7] (“Just-In Mobile”). The Company does not have legal ownership in
equity of Just-In Mobile. Nevertheless, under certain contractual agreements
enacted among the registered owners of Just-In Mobile, the Company and
the Company’s other subsidiary, the Company controls Just-In Mobile by
way of controlling more than one half of the voting rights of it, governing its
financial and operating policies and appointing or removing the majority of
the members of its controlling authorities, and casting the majority of votes
at meetings of such authorities. In addition, such contractual agreements
also transfer the risks and rewards of Just-In Mobile to the Company. As a
result, they are presented as the consolidating subsidiaries of the Company.

RZE—RAF+-A=+—H

RAEIZBEWT -
Proportion
of ordinary
shares
directly held
Particulars of by the
issued share capital/ Group
registered capital (%)
A5H
EfkARZ
BRIRE/ EZRRLA
AMERGE (%
HK$100,000,000 100%
100,000,000/ 7¢
HK$160,000,000 100%
160,000,000/ ¢
HK$50,000,000 100%
50,000,007
RMB53,400,000 100%
AKEH53,400,0007T
RMB199,900,000 80.04%
AE%199,900,0007

C B

Proportion
of ordinary
shares held
by non-
controlling
interests
(%)

FER
BitkAZ
EBERLA
(%)

19.96%

BTN NERAR([SXF]) - HE =k
EREMBRARREESERIEERIME
RRRABEATEHHHEERAR([EER
THZMWBARE - ARRALBMEFEEATTE
w®OEERBAE - A RIBEEEITEMAE
BA - ARBEKRQBEMME AR
ETAARE  ARRERENERGTAY
BERE - BEHEMBREERE  EREER
HBRIAIRE  UERRNZEREBSE L
BAZHE - {EMEHEEETT - 1o B
ERBRTEERETZRAR R ERER TR
AF] e E - WEBIEARRZEEHBR

=K
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18 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(@)

Material non-controlling interest

The total non-controlling interest as at 31 December 2015
is HK$29,116,000 (2014: HK$21,822,000), of which
HK$46,550,000 (2014: 37,604,000) is attributed to SXF
and its subsidiaries (“SXF Group”), which is considered to
be material to the Group.

Significant restrictions of subsidiaries with material non-
controlling interests

Cash and short-term deposits of HK$925,699,000 (2014:
HK$588,916,000) are held in China and are subject to
local exchange control regulations. These local exchange
control regulations provide for restrictions on exporting
capital from the country, other than through normal
dividends.

Summarised financial information of subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information
for the subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are
material to the Group.

B A 05 W Bk

18 MEBRR(E)

(@)

BEAFERER
R-EBE-—RFE+-_A=+—HBz3
YRS REZS 4B EE 529,116,00078 T (=
T — U4 ¢ 21,822,000/ 7C) © H
# 46,550,00078 7T ( =& — U F
37,604,000 7T ) BESXF R H & A
AI([SXF&E ) AR - 1Bk AR
EEBEKX -

BEERFEREZC-HEBATRZ
BERS

R4 M58 HI1F 30 925,699,000 7% JT
(ZZ—V4 : 588,916,000 7T) Y
TE R Bl 435 A W 52 PR 1A & b SN E &
VER o IWEFEHINEE BIERRE
WezE RN ER 2R - M IEE
BB BARTE ©

BEERFERESZZHEARZ
BB ERME
UTHINERHAKEN S BEKX
ZIEEREENE AR M BE R
e -

Summarised balance sheet BEBEXME
SXF Group
SXFEE
As at 31 December
B+=A=+—H
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Non-Current ERE
Assets BE 164,383 48,551
Current B
Assets BE 941,848 624,316
Liabilities afE (873,015) (484,472)
Net assets EEFE 233,216 188,395
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(@)

18

Material non-controlling interest (continued)

Summarised income statement

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

AR (&)
@ EARFERESE)
SXF Group
SXFEEE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEFE

2015 2014

—E—-RF —ET-F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET THET

Revenue WA 494,182 452,665

Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETISBLATE R, (E518) 61,829 (2,622)

Profit/(loss) for the year FrmFl/ (E8) 57,463 (2,622)

Other comprehensive loss Hiy 2 HEER (12,642) (3,147)

Total comprehensive profit/(loss) 2ERA (BB BE 44,821 (5,769)
Total comprehensive income FIERERIEG
attributable to non-controlling 2HEIKREAEE

interests

8,946 6,740
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18 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(@)

18

Material non-controlling interest (continued)

Summarised cash flows

B A 05 W Bk

AR (&)
@ BEARFEZERESE)
HenEXME
SXF Group
SXFEEE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEFE

2015 2014
—E-0F —T-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT THETT
Cash flows from operating REEBZHERE
activities
Cash generated from operations KEFTEIRE 538,345 123,302
Income tax paid B XS - -
Cash generated from operating KEEBFBES
activities 538,345 123,302
Cash flows from investing KHEEYIRERE
activities (149,631) (10,085)
Cash flows from financing BMEZH RERE
activities - 60,325
Net increase in cash and cash RERAESEEY2EM
equivalents FEE 388,714 173,542
Cash and cash equivalents at FReLREEED
beginning of the year 588,916 426,492
Exchange loss on cash and cash RERBEEBYMER
equivalents s (51,930) (11,118)
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRASRAESEEY
of the year 925,700 588,916

The information above is the amount before inter-company

eliminations.

A EERREBEANRRIHE AT 258
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19 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 19
EQUITY METHOD

The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are as
follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

DS EARZIRE

REREERBERBERZERMT

As at 31 December

Rt+t=A=+—H
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAET
Associated company N 1,525,040 1,370,383
Joint venture BRI E - 2,584
1,525,040 1,372,967

The amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement REFERERERZ ST

are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1+—-HLEE

2015 2014
—E-AHF —T—mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Share of profit/(loss): FEEEH, (BE) :
— Associated company VNG 199,012 156,472
— Joint venture — BehHE (794) (37,571)
198,218 118,901
(Loss on dilution)/net gains on dilution and DRERAEARR 2 —18
disposal of interest in an investment accounted & &z~ (EE#EEE),/
for using the equity method: EER BRI
Associated company i /NE]
— Loss on dilution of interest — B EESER (8,442) (52,818)
— Gain on disposal of interest — hEEERE - 304,033
(8,442) 251,215
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INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(@)

Investment in an associated company

Set out below is the associated company of the Group as at
31 December 2015, which, in the opinion of the directors,
is material to the Group. The associated company as listed
below has share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares,
which are held directly by the Group; their principal place
of business are in the PRC, Hong Kong and the United

B A 05 W Bk

19 BUESHZEARZRE(E)

(@)

States.

Name

1

31 December 2015
“E-Rf+-A=+-H
PAX Global (Note a)

BERNE(MHa)

31 December 2014
—2-mFEt-A=1-H
PAX Global (Note a)

Place of incorporation
and kind of legal entity
EME bR
EEERER

Bermuda, limited liability
company

BRE ARRT

Bermuda, limited liability
company

Particular of
issued share capital

BRITRAE

1,112,014,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each
1,112,014,0008%
BREMB.IET
ZEREK

1,100,814,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each

AERR(Hita) BRE  BRAF] 1,100,814,0008
BREB.ET
3l

Note a: ~ PAX Global Technology Limited (“PAX Global”) is principally

engaged in the development and sales of electronic funds
transfer point-of-sales (“EFT-POS”) products and provision of

related service.

On 20 December 2010, as a result of the Group’s spinoff of
PAX Global to be separately listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, PAX Global became an associated company of
the Group. On the date when control ceased, the Group’s
retained interest in PAX Global was fair valued, and this
give rise to the difference between the carrying value of
investment in an associated company of the Group and its
share of net assets value of PAX Global.

R-EBEQTZRE
TXHIN_FE-—AF+ A
=+t REERA/YAEEMNEE
ERZRNEEBERNT - NRHEDY
ZHERNRHERERALAEEEERS
BZEBBRBRZEA  HI2E
EHRTE - BELEE -

Nature of Effective Measurement
relationship  Interest held method
EEZ
B&ME BRER TERE
Note 31 32.73% Equity
BifsE31 32.73% Bn
Note 31 33.07% Equity
BitEE31 33.07% e
Hfata - AEREBEERAR(TAEER

HRDETBEREABRBEEE TS
HER((EF(HEMDERN
AR HARRAARTS

R-ZZE—ZF+-A=-+8 R
REED TR BB B L
MZBABRK  BEREKALRE
BB ERNR - NEIEEHRE
A AEBERBEERIRE 2ER
AT EFE - BERAEEE
REIZI/EZ FEBEEENEER
HEEFEMEMNELRESR -
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19 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 19 LUREZZEARZKRE(E)
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(@) Investment in an associated company (continued) (@ R—EBHEARZ2REE)

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—~H

2015 2014

—E-AF —E—mEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

TERT FHET

At 1 January n—H—H 1,370,383 1,561,681
Share of profit e A 199,012 156,472
Share of other comprehensive loss FEAE E M 2 EEE (33,373) (14,119
Share of other reserves FEMR B At i s 4,828 11,276
Disposal of interest HEER - (291,133)
Dilution of interest (Note) W B (Aat) (8,530) (53,794)
Dividend received AR S (7,280) -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 1,525,040 1,370,383

As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of the Group’s
interest in PAX Global, which is listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, was HK$2,908,360,000
(2014: HK$2,912,000,000) and the carrying amount
of the Group’s interest was HK$1,525,040,000 (2014:
HK$1,370,383,000). The fair value is based on the current
price in an active market as at balance sheet date.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
interest in the associated company.

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2015, certain directors and employees
of PAX Global exercised their share options granted pursuant to a share
option scheme set up on 1 December 2010. A loss on dilution of interest
in an associated company of HK$8,442,000 (2014: HK$52,818,000) was
recognised in the consolidated income statement, including release of
reserve credited to the consolidated income statement of HK$88,000 (2014:
HK$976,000), during the year.

W_E—RAFE+-A=+—H X«
SERBERK(EEBHERS
FrERAREM) 2EZAFER
2,908,360,0008 7L ( =& — U £ :
2,912,000,0007%8 7T ) * NEE#E =
Z BRME{E A1,525,040,00078 70 (=
T — 04 : 1,370,383,00058 7T ) ©
NEFEDNZREEAZERMESEE
FHERETE °

BEEAAKENEE QRS
ZHRAE -

izt -

BHE-_T-AFt+-A=+—BLEFE B
ERNETESFREENEREN-_Z—F
FHZA—HRILZBRET B 2 EBR
o FAR R—MEERRZREESEE
8,442,000/ 70 (= Z — M4 : 52,818,000/ 7T)
PRARERPHER - RIEBLAGE W&
# 2 188,000/ 7T (=T —PU4 : 976,000/

7T e
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(@ Investment in an associated company (continued) (@)
As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s interest in PAX

Global was 32.73% (2014: 33.07%).

Extracted financial information for an associated company

set out below are the summarised consolidated financial

information of PAX Global which is accounted for using

the equity method.
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DS EARZIRE (B)

R—EHE QAR ZRE(E)
RZE—AF+_A=+—H &K
EEREESRERZERB32.73%
(ZZF—M%F : 33.07%) °

TXFr#z —

HE R R B ER

BERUERZEARZABRREZ

FAMBERBE -

As at 31 December

R+t=—A=+—8
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—JUF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Current B
Cash and cash equivalents BEMIREEEY 2,144,312 1,918,729
Other current assets (excluding cash) EmmeEE (T eERe) 1,876,273 1,403,935
Total current assets MEVBEMRE 4,020,585 3,322,664
Financial liabilities SRaE
(excluding trade payables) (T BIERMNEER) (116,898) (71,903)
Other current liabilities EnsasE
(including trade payables) (BIEEMERZ) (872,702) (714,230)
Total liabilities BEEE (989,600) (786,133)
Non-current ERE
Assets BE 59,614 11,649
Net assets BETAE 3,090,599 2,548,180
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19 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 19
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(@ Investment in an associated company (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

DS EARZRE(E)

(@ R-EBEQXTZREE)

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-RA=1+—HLEE

2015 2014

—E-RF —E—JUFE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Revenue WA 2,870,794 2,373,272
Profit for the year FRE A 620,286 391,806
Other comprehensive loss Hih x> HER (101,930) (33,464)
Total comprehensive income EEWREEHEEE 518,356 358,342

Dividends received from the Bz E N FWE 2

associated company BE 7,280 -

(b) Investment in a joint venture

Set out below is the joint venture of the Group as at 31
December 2015. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying
value of the investment in a joint venture is nil which is
not considered as material to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. The joint venture has share capital
consisting of class A ordinary share, class B ordinary share,
series A preferred shares and series B preferred shares.

On 1 August 2014, as a result of the Group’s restructuring,
Cloopen Group Holding Limited (“Cloopen”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Cloopen Group”) became a joint
venture of the Group.

by R—EBEELEZRE

TXHEIKRZZE—RAF+ A
T BAEEZAERE R
—E-FF+-A=+—H8 ®B—
MeEgrECREZRAAEATZA
HAEBZREUBHRRITEE
Ko ZAELEREBHAREE AR -
BIEL @R - ARFIELIRKBRT
EBRMRIBR Z A -

RZZE-—MENA—B  BARE
L E#ETTEM - Cloopen Group
Holding Limited ([Cloopen]) &
b8 2 &) (5278 Cloopenfe & ) )X &
REFEZRERE -
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19 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b)

19 BUESHZEARZRE(E)

Investment in a joint venture (continued) b R-—BEELEZREE)
There are no contingent liabilities and commitments to MERAEERGECEZERR
provide funding relating to the Group's interest in the joint HES ZHABERAE -
venture.
Movement of the share of the interest in Cloopen Group as J&15Cloopent B 2 B Z B AT -
follow:
2015 2014
—F-I1F —E-lF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
At 1 January 2015/0on the date the WZZT—RF—HA—RH/

Group ceased to have control REEKEEFIEE B 2,584 37,759
Share of loss (Note a) FE(EER(fiza) (794) (37,571)
Share of other comprehensive income FEMRE M2 E S

(Note a) (Btzta) (3,104) 195
Share of other reserve JEf5 E i 1,314 2,201
At 31 December (Note b) W+=—RA=+—B(##b) - 2,584

Note a: Share of loss and other comprehensive income was determined
based on the effective interest of issued ordinary shares of Cloopen
Group which were held by the Group.

Note b: The joint venture was initially measured at fair value. The carrying
amount was increased or decreased to recognise the Group’s share
of the profits or losses and movements in other comprehensive
income of the joint venture to the extent the carrying amount
of the joint venture reduced to nil due to losses, after the initial
recognition. The carrying amount of the joint venture also included
goodwill and intangible assets identified upon the formation of
the joint venture. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount
of the investment in a joint venture was zero. As at 31 December
2015, the unrecognised share of loss of a joint venture is
HK$45,115,000.

Hifita -

Hieth

FEAG TR K HoAth R U E TR AN R E
A ZCloopen& H 2 81T L MR 2 EIF
Rt o

BECENSRATETE - EYIRHE
REMEECEZREERBERE
T REESEHEREEREESER
¥ 2 RFISEE M BEA R ERE
ZHPMGMHD - AECEZER
ENBEEECERIBMHERZAE
BREEAE R-T—AF+=A
=+—B R-EAECEZRERE
EAT -R-T—AF+-A=+—
B KERELE-THALDEBEA
45,115,000/ 7T °
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20 INVENTORIES
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7E

As at 31 December

B+=—A=+—H
2015 2014
—E-hfF —ZE—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Raw materials GEE 35,213 32,816
Work-in-progress ER G 2,224 2,234
Finished goods 2URK 5 15,676 18,676
53,113 53,726

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in cost of sales amounted to HK$203,931,000 (2014:
HK$320,769,000), which included provision for inventories of
HK$5,012,000 (2014: HK$11,041,000).

The gross amount of inventories carried at net realisable
value amounted to approximately HK$37,690,000 (2014:
HK$34,792,000) as at 31 December 2015. Full provision has
been made with regard to these balances.

BREASIRITAHEHEREAZFERK
7K # 203,931,000 8 T ( =& — U 4F -
320,769,000 % 7t ) + BETFTE & #
5,012,000/ 7L (ZZ —M 4 : 11,041,000
IT) °

R-ZB-—RE+-A=+—H  RAE8R
HETIRZ T EMEELA37,690,00078 7T
(ZZ—PU4F : 34,792,00087T) * WEH
ISR 2B -
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, RECEIVABLES 21 BUWERRRERERE - XAXS
FROM PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BREMRLTRER 2EWFIER

BUSINESS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

Hitp B FUE « ANRERES

As at 31 December

R+=HA=+—H
2015 2014
—B-AHF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT THTT
Current portion BNHEAER 2
Trade receivables (Note (a)) FEMBR TR (Mt (a)) 246,527 352,268
Bills receivables (Note (b)) FEW =R (M5t b)) 7,707 3,747
Less: provision for impairment of receivables  Jg = JEU R IBRE R &
(Note (c)) (Hretic) (18,645) (19,187)
235,589 336,828
Receivables from payment processing SNRBPEIBRER T RER
solutions business (Note (d)) 2 FEMRIA (K72 (d) 115,642 106,784
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables: — FE[HFUA - & M EAD
FEMFRIE -
Prepayments TERTEIE 10,931 12,377
Deposits ®’e 12,640 15,674
Others Hib 16,994 22,639
40,565 50,690
391,796 494,302
Non-current portion FEENEAER
Long-term deposits and prepayments REIRE RFERNFIA 4,318 2,624
Total A&t 396,114 496,926
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21 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, RECEIVABLES 21 EURRAREBRE  XHRXZ

FROM PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BRIEBMRR RER 2 BBHRIER
BUSINESS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, HAEWRIE » BARERZS
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (continued) (&)
The carrying amounts are approximately their fair values. The BREEMEE QT ERE - IR R ER
carrying amounts of the trade and bills receivables, receivables 2R IR GRERARFTREB ZEWR
from payment processing solutions business, other receivables, FIE -~ B EIWEIE - FENFRIE RIEE A
prepayments and deposits and long-term deposits are REMZES CREBEIIATIIESSIE

denominated in the following currencies:

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+—H
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—JUF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TET
HK$ BT 2,785 3,777
RMB ARE 270,636 381,799
JPY HIE 119,433 109,127
Macanese pataca (“MOP”) SRPTHE (DRI’ D) 3,260 2,216
us$ EH - 7
396,114 496,926
Note: Mt
(@  Trade receivables (@) PR
The Group’s credit terms to trade debtors range from 0 to 180 days. The FAEERTESEBAZEEHHOE180AT
ageing analysis of the trade receivables was as follows: F o RURRZRERAITAAT
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—-8~
2015 2014
—E-RHE —T—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT
Current to 90 days BIEAZ90H 170,302 250,580
91 to 180 days 91E180H 7,854 28,886
181 to 365 days 181£365H 17,248 39,338
Over 365 days 3658 A 51,123 33,464

246,527 352,268
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, RECEIVABLES
FROM PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS
BUSINESS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (continued)

Note: (continued)

@

Trade receivables (continued)

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables included retention money
receivables of HK$56,293,000 (2014: HK$62,203,000), which represents
approximately 10% to 20% (2014: same) of the relevant contract sum
granted to certain customers in the PRC that have a retention period
of normally one year. As at 31 December 2015, the retention money
receivables aged over 365 days amounted to HK$37,398,000 (2014:
HK$22,342,000).

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

As of 31 December 2015, trade receivables of HK$36,243,000 (2014:
HK$49,312,000) were past due but not impaired. The ageing analysis of
these trade receivables is as follows:

21

B A 05 W Bk

BURERRREWRRE - AR5
BRIRMRRT REW 2 BWFARK
Hip B FUE ~ ANFRERES

(&

Hist - (18)

@

PEURERSR ()

W-ZE—AF+=-A=+—H0 EREXS
¥ FE W 4R [E £ 56,293,00008 7T ( =T — U 4F -
62,203,000 7T)  thEFETHEEFIEH
AHFRIBELH0%E20%( =T —N4F : #R) -
ZERFPZREHR—KA—F - R=-T—Hh
F+=ZA=+—8 " ERRBB36SAUEZ
fEU IR [El & A37,398,00058 7T ( = F — P4 :
22,342,00077T) °

BB ARBE 2 EAGRIRS RE T EBAEEE
RUFRSRBZBIUEP - ENBELRH @ &
HoFEPZERARREEEAEL - K
HERDAT 2 HEY - RELRERRTHER
RE M ERERER - AEEWERERNZE
FEWGRIB A RIS A IR -

W-ZE—AF+=-A=+—0 EBREX
36,243,000/ 70 ( = Z — U4 : 49,312,000%
TO) TV EMBARIRE o 2B YRR Z BRE D T
U

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2015 2014
—ZT-hHF —E—mE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHT
Current to 90 days BNEAZE90H - -
91 to 180 days 91£180H 1,479 13,052
181 to 365 days 181&365H 6,651 23,010
Over 365 days 365H A E 28,113 13,250
36,243 49,312
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21 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, RECEIVABLES 21
FROM PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS
BUSINESS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

BURERRERRSE - X% 3
RS R 2 BRRER
HAEWRE - BNRERES

PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (continued) =)
Note: (continued) Kiat - (48)
(b) Bills receivables (b) L ES

The balance represents bank acceptance notes with maturity dates within FZAEREINHEARIRANERZRITERLE
six months. &

The maturity profile of the bills receivables of the Group is as follows:

FEBREREFHERAT

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2015 2014
—ZE-AF —ZT—OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAERT FET
Falling within 90 days 90H A 1,216 3,747
Falling within 91 to 180 days 91E180HR 6,491 -
7,707 3,747

(c) Provision for impairment of receivables
As of 31 December 2015, trade receivables of HK$18,645,000 (2014:
HK$19,187,000) were impaired. These impaired receivables mainly relate
to individual customers who are delinquent in payment. The ageing of these
receivables is as follows:

(c) B ERERE
R-ZZT—FE+-A=+—08  EYER
18,645,000/ 7T ( =2 — P04 : 19,187,000
TOBRME o ZEERERYRIEE ZEERIHE
RFTEZBPER - ZERUER Z BRE DT
U

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—~H
2015 2014
—E-EHF —E—-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
91 to 180 days 91£180H - -
181 to 365 days 181&365H - 736
Over 365 days 365HA 18,645 18,451
18,645 19,187
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, RECEIVABLES
FROM PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS
BUSINESS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (continued)

Note: (continued)

(©

(d)

Provision for impairment of receivables (continued)
Movement on the provision for impairment of receivables are as follows:

21

B A 05 W Bk

BURERRREWRRE - AR5
BRIRMRRT REW 2 BWFARK
Hip B FUE ~ ANFRERES

(%8
wiet - ()
©  EERERERE)

FEMRIE R R R E RN T

2015 2014

—E-RfF —E—-mF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

At 1 January »w—HA—H8 19,187 17,194
Provision for impairment of trade receivables JE U BR TR E B - 2,188
Exchange realignment M A (542) (195)
At 31 December wt+t-—A=+—8 18,645 19,187

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired

assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying
value of each class of receivable mentioned above. The Group does not

hold any collateral as security.

Receivables from payment processing solutions business
This balance mainly represents receivables arising from the payment
processing solutions business.

For processing payments on behalf of merchants, the amounts usually
become collectible by the Group from the financial institutions once the
underlying transactions of the merchants had been acknowledged by the
relevant financial institutions.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2015, balance is mainly aged below 90 days
and is denominated in JPY (2014: same).

(d)

H A KA Rl 2 1 AR R L b PR MORRORLE S BLAR
HEEE

RIS ARAY 2 A EERRT) L &8
FEMGRIE 2 BRTEE © 7R B30 MR 5 5 (AR R
aPERYER ©

XN R G EIBMIRTT R 2 YRR
FHAEBRIBEINRIRERRT REBE
A2 FERHOR -

RREAPUM X FEIENR - BHEE—
BN P Z AR 5 & B B RER R A A
R = ) R A A MR

RZE—NER_ZT—hF+_A=1+—H"
BHRZERABHEROBLABE(ZF
—PU4E - A8E)FIME °
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23

SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS

Short-term bank deposits of HK$23,455,000 (2014:
HK$11,056,000) represented bank deposits of the Group with
original maturities over three months which are placed as

22

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

RHIRITER

5 HAER 1717 30 23,455,0008 L ( —ZF —
F 1 11,056,000/8 ) EAEEFLEN R
BEmTFERELESMEREIHAEA=M@A

guaranteed deposits for bills payables and are denominated in LA EZSRITIFESR  WAARKTIE -
RMB.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23 RERRESEEY
As at 31 December
R+t=-—A=+—8
2015 2014
—B-hF —ZE—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Cash at bank and on hand BITFRRFERE 768,795 1,078,965
Short-term bank deposits (original maturities of %2R {TF K (RADHH
less than three months) DR=MEA) 1,523,492 898,712
2,292,287 1,977,677

Included in short-term bank deposits were HK$777,239,000
(2014: HK$249,237,000) bank deposits with original maturities
within three months and effective interest rate of 2.8% (2014:
1.7%) which are placed as guaranteed deposits for bills
payables, tenders or deposits designated for settlement of
certain payables in relation to the payment processing solutions
business and are denominated in RMB. The remaining balance
of HK$746,253,000 (2014: HK$649,475,000) were fixed bank
deposits with effective interest rate of 1.3% (2014: 1.1%) and
average maturity day of 54 days (2014: 49 days).

Funds of the Group amounting to approximately
HK$1,442,973,000 (2014: HK$1,029,224,000) are kept in
the bank accounts opened with banks in the PRC where the
remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange control.

WHEISRITER® 777,239,000/ L ( =&
—PO4F : 249,237,000 70) 15 AN £ E 5k fE
NEZEEMFERERSE RIZNAEHEY
NRGEIRRRTTRER 2B TREMNFIEA
ERETEEEFERZBRITER « ZFRIT
GREBIEEBE A=A UAREEFE
B2.8%(ZZF—MHF 1 1.7%) * WAAR
BEDIME - 82T 4584746,253,000/8 L (=&
—PO4% : 649,475,000/ 7C) BEERITEF
#oBEFERE3%(ZE—MF 1.1%)
REFHEEAE AS4B(ZZE—MF : 49
H) e

RNEE 7 E4TH41,442,973,00058 70 (=
T P4 1 1,029,224,00087T)  JH1EMR
PIERB ZRITFRM ZRITEEFPN - A
MEE 2 NEDZIINEEH o
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Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following

B A 05 W Bk

RERREEEBWE)

R MRS EEBYIRATERIIE

currencies:
As at 31 December
BR+=-HA=+—H
2015 2014
—E—-0fF —Z—uF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET BT
HKS$ BIT 522,694 625,975
RMB AR 1,402,958 979,445
us$ E 271,922 272,885
JPY H 87,891 92,165
MOP P 6,822 7,207
2,292,287 1,977,677
SHARE CAPITAL 24 R
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each
BREE0.0025B T2 LER
No. of shares HK$'000
e FHEL
Authorised: ETE
As at 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014, RZZ—mNFE—HA—H
1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 —T-mFE+-A=+—H
“Z2-RF-A—Bk
ZE-RE+ZA=+—H 4,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014, RN-Z—mNE—HF—H -
1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 —“E-NE+=-A=+—H "
“T-RF-A—Bk
—E-AF+=H=1+—H 2,776,833,835 6,942
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 24 RA(4E)
Note: iz
Share options of the Company RAT ZBIRE
The Company operates a share option scheme 2011 (the “Scheme”) for the purpose AAREE—B T ——FRERETEI([ZTE1) -
of attracting, retaining and motivating talented employees in order to strive for EERS| BERSBES®BZES  UBHAEER
future developments and expansion of the Group. Eligible participants of the BRERRERED - ZAEZEERSBEERERE
Scheme include the Group’s full-time employees, and Executive and non-Executive B22BESURATRIFETES - ZAER=2
Directors. The Scheme became effective on 29 April 2011 and unless otherwise ——EPA T NABEEY - BIEZTE RITECE &
cancelled or amended, will remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years from 7] BRI BZ AR TFERDABRRER - #
that date. The share option was never granted. AR H IR A
RESERVES 25 f##
@ Group @ HEE
Contributed
Share surplus Other  Exchange  Retained
premium  (Note (i) reserves reserve earnings Total
BEaRH
ROGEE  (HEH) EtRE  ERRE  REEF &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERL TER TER TERL TR
At 1 January 2015 R-B-EE-B-RB 1,063,153 168434 487380 148,095 1318377 3,185,439
Profit for the year FRGEF - - - - 183486 183,486
Exchange differences arising on BEBINELR
translation of the financial statements B HR&zES 2
of foreign subsidiaries ERER - - - (36,243) - (36,243)
Share of other comprehensive loss of BB EAEZ
investments accounted for using the R4 7 £t 2 R
equity method (Note 19) (Hi#19) - - - (36477) - (36477
Release of reserves upon dilutionof ~ EENEREZNEZ
interest in an investment accounted  —IBIRAERAEL
for using the equity method LREWE19)
(Note 19) - - - (88) - (88)
Fair value loss on revaluation of an BE-EAHLESRH
available-for-sale financial asset EEZDTEER
(Note 17) (Wit17) - - 21 (352) - (373)
Share of other reserves of investments (S UEREAE 2
accounted for using the equity REZ bk
method (Note 19) (Bi:19) - - 6,142 - - 6,142
At 31 December 2015 R=B-E1F1t=A
=+-A 1,063,153 168434 493,501 74935 1,501,863 3,301,886
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25 RESERVES (continued) 25 fefE ()
(@)  Group (continued) (@ FEHE)
Contributed
Share surplus Other  Exchange  Retained
premium  (Note (i) reserves reserve  earnings Total
E8as

BEE  (WEn)  RtBE EXER  REE st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
TR  TER  TER  TER  TET  TER

At 1 January 2014 RZE-NFE-A-H 1,063,153 168,434 417,739 181,786 921,306 2,752,418
Profit for the year EREF - - - - 397,071 397,071
Exchange differences arising on BEBNHBLR

translation of the financial statements ~ BIEHREA 2

of foreign subsidiaries EAERE - - - (16,556) - (16,556)

Share of other comprehensive loss of ~ JE{SMVEZZAE 2

investments accounted for using the & 2 £t 2 EEE

equity method - - - (13,924) - (13,924)
Release of reserves upon disposal and (& R 8 )i A

dilution of interest in an investment ARz —EREER(E

accounted for using the equity Bk

method - - (2,791) - 2,791)
Release of reserves upon disposals of  HEAHESREER

available-for-sale financial assets BB - - (600) (172) - (772)
Release of reserves upon disposal of ~ HE—FEHIBA %

asubsidiary B EE - - - (248) - (248)
Share of other reserves of investments — JE{SUEREAE Y

accounted for using the equity REZH

method - - 13,477 - - 13,477
Employees’ incentive programme of ~— —EHEARZ

asubsidiary (8 RT3 - - 27,303 - - 27,303
Exercise of employees' incentive St

programme of a subsidiary [EE 2R3 - - 2940l - - 294l
At 31 December 2014 R-E-DF

+ZA=t-H 1,063,153 168,434 487,380 148,095 1,318,377 3,185,439
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25 RESERVES (continued)

(@)

Group (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares and share
premium account of Hi Sun Holdings Limited (“HSHL") acquired
pursuant to the Group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) on 17
October 2001 as set out in the circular to the shareholders of HSHL
dated 9 August 2001, over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange thereof.

Other reserves mainly represents the difference between the
net proceeds from issuance of convertible preference shares of
subsidiaries upon their conversion into ordinary shares of the
Company in prior years and the reserves arising from the granting

and exercising of employees’ incentive programme of a subsidiary.

PRC companies are required to allocate 10% of the companies’
net profit to a reserve fund until such fund reaches 50% of the
companies’ registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can
be utilised upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset
accumulated losses or to increase registered capital of the
companies, provided that such fund is maintained at a minimum of
25% of the companies’ registered capital. As at 31 December 2015,
retained earnings comprise of statutory reserve fund amounting to
HK$49,064,000 (2014: HK$48,166,000).

25 fEE(E)

(@)

26 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR
PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS
AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

26
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REH(E)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

FEEZERBHEASSERERA
A((BEERDERFHAHA-ZF
—FNANBZBRAE  REN-F
TE+ATEART ERSEA(E
A DATEE 2 SIS & BAREE R
feini (B - BADEpIE Bz BB
TR EEZ 28 -

HivfERE BIENBEFEEER A
REE BRI TR A R AR E
SR TS FORF AR R TR —
MEBAR 2R B EmE BITEL 2 [
ZE®E-

FEARINER AT Z10%DEEE
EES  EEZREESENRAEMRE
R250% o EE BESCEBE BILE
&R FARAE 8 R BB IR A 2 7
MEX - ZFHHEAEEFNAR
HMERZ25%KFE - R=ZFT—AF
+ZA=+—8 REBBAEHEEH
5 3£49,064,0008 7T (=T — M4 -
48,166,000 7T.)

BARRRENRE  XAX5
RIEERTG RER 2 BAFE -
Ht AR R EETRIA

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+—8H
2015 2014
—E-HEF —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Trade payables (Note (a)) FERTBRRR (A5t (@) 165,685 176,805
Bills payables (Note (b)) JERN AR (K7 et b)) 35,538 1,197
201,223 178,002
Payables for payment processing solutions YRR RIEBRRATT RER
business (Note (c)) ZIERN IR (B ) 472,912 311,391
Other payables and accruals (Note (d)) H A B 5RIE R FEETRUE
(HfaZ(d) 467,030 378,967
1,141,165 868,360
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26 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR
PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS
AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(continued)

Trade and bills payables, payables for payment processing
solutions business and other payables and accruals are

denominated in the following currencies:

26
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BARRRENRE AR5
BRIRMRT REW 2 BAKE
H At e RRIE K FERTRUIR (48

RIS ARA N BN R - XN R HEIERIR
FEREB 2 ENFOR - RN SR RE
FHRIRIRIA T E¥DIE -

As at 31 December

R+=B=+—H

2015 2014
—E-HF —=—mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
HK$ BIT 27,088 20,290
RMB AR 1,025,962 771,389
JPY H 85,477 75,104
MOP SRPTEE 2,638 1,577
1,141,165 868,360

Note: K -

(@)

Trade payables

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the ageing analysis of the trade

payables was as follows:

@  EMEX
MNEE-RAFE-F-NF+=A=+—H"
FERERRZ BRI :

As at 31 December

R+=HA=+—8
2015 2014
—E-AE —T—mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Current to 90 days IR ZE90H 104,471 84,744
91 to 180 days 91%F180H 24,173 43,104
181 to 365 days 1812365H 21,172 37,557
Over 365 days 365H A 15,869 11,400
165,685 176,805

The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 0 to 180 days.

BHERETZEEHNF0E180RZMH -
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26 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR 206 BNRRRENREE  <IXH
PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS EIEMR RER 2 BARE
AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS H At B FRIR K FERTRRIA (48)
(continued)

Note: (continued) Mt
(b)  Bills payables (b)) EARE
The balance represents bank acceptance notes: BRERIRIRT TR L RIE -
As at 31 December
W+=A=+—H
2015 2014
—2-5H%F Lk
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TET
Due within 90 days 90H M E|HR 20,987 -
Due within 91 to 180 days 912 180H W EIHA 14,551 1,197
35,538 1,197
(© Payables for payment processing solutions business (c) XNRBBEMRT REK 2 BAHIE
This balance represents payables to merchants for the payment processing BRABRIER TR P RIR AR T REB AT
solutions business. The amounts are generally due for settlement within 30 P ZFIR - ARSE RN NETEE
days and are denominated in the following currencies: FIEATEEIE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—~H
2015 2014
—E-EF —E-mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FHET
RMB AR 388,066 237,057
JPY H 84,846 74,334
472,912 311,391
(d)  Other payables and accruals (d HAt RN RE R B RE
As at 31 December
W+=A=+-H
2015 2014
—2-5%F Lk
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET
Accrued staff costs and pension obligations FEET B TR RIR RS 136,817 138,818
Deposits and receipt in advance & RIS WERIA 148,901 98,421
Others Hil 181,312 141,728

467,030 378,967
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27 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 27 EIEFTEH
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there BEAAARESMITENGERERBEEE
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against HRIREHBEAGERE - BREFRSEHIR
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate B — BB - AT #REATIS T & = Bl
to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows: BELREN - EFHeBOT

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2015 2014
—E-0F —F—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Deferred tax assets to be recovered 121 B &5 F#E 2
after 12 months RIERIEE E (390) (262)
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled 1218 A R 2
within 12 months RIEHIARE 160 48
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled 1218 A& #5142
after 12 months EEARIE 362 401
Deferred tax liabilities — net BRERIERE 8 132 187
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to FA - BAERNIE VAR 2 8RB AEE
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) A BERREERBBEZEHNT
during the year is as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities REHBREE
2015 2014
“%-1% “F-mF
Accelerated  Revaluation Accelerated  Revaluation
tax of intangible tax of intangible
depreciation assets Total  depreciation assets Total
il 317 iz &

WEFE  HEE( &% WEFE  AEEE A%
HK§000  HK§'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TR TR TR TAT  TET  TAR

At 1 January »—=A—H 9 440 449 73 1,504 1,577
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-BHBAF - - - - (297) (297)
Charged/(Credited) to the BRANER

consolidated income statement IEYAGIN! 142 48) 94 (64) (737) (801)
Exchange realignment LR - @1 21 - (30 (30

At 31 December Rt+=-R=+-H 151 371 522 9 440 449
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27
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) EEFREH(E)
Deferred tax assets REHBREE
2015 2014
—F-1F —TmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THETT
At 1 January n—HA—H (262) (332)
(Credited)/charged to the consolidated BiRE R
income statement GPNVElS (142) 64
Exchange realignment PEE 3 AR B 14 6
At 31 December RTZA=+—H (390) (262)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry forward to
the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through the
future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2015, the
Group had unrecognised tax losses to be carried forward against
future taxable income amounted to HK$611,538,000(2014:
HK$754,308,000). These tax losses have no expiry date except
that HK$290,678,000 will expire from 2016 to 2020 (2014:
HK$487,620,000 expire from 2015 to 2019). The potential
deferred tax assets in respect of these tax losses which have
not been recognised amounted to HK$110,867,000 (2014:
HK$133,078,000).

As at 31 December 2015, deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of the withholding tax that would be payable on unremitted
earnings of certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group amounting
to approximately HK$30,374,000 (2014: HK$28,765,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

IR EE E T A R TTEF 5 A 7] 48
ERBERERT A SR MpEE Y
MIEEEEER R_ZE—AF+=-A
=1+—8 AEBEBLEEUIKEBEER
B A 2 KRR T IEE1E A611,538,000
BT (ZZ—4 : 754,308,000 7T) °
B 290,678,000 /& JT # N = F — N F
E-T_TFHERER(ZZ—WOF :
487,620,000 B TR T —HEE-F
—NEFHREEM) N - ZERIEEEIE
[EM BB - RpLZEHIAEIEER 2 BT
TR EEE 5110,867,0008 T ( —F
—PU4 133,078,000/ 7T) ©

N-ZB-—RE+-A=+—0 BRELE
Er R E R B TR EE
Alge e R BARRER - AR
SEETHEAMBRRKRERFZER
FEF1 5 #4730,374,00078 7 (= B — PO 4F
28,765,000 7T ) IR ir A B IS R fE iR
TR T -
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28 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 28 REMBEE
(@ Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash (@ BASHANGAELEMBRESE

generated from operations

HZHR

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-RA=T-HLEE

2015 2014
—B-IF —F-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TAT
Profit before income tax BETERHR AL 196,269 421,130
Adjustments for: HE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ ¥1%  BE L& ERE 54,248 59,182
Depreciation of investment properties BEMERE 172 172
Amortisation of leasehold land THE L 995 1,000
Amortisation of intangible assets BREESRE 10,527 5178
Share of profit of investments accounted for FEME AR E AR 2 IRE 25T
using the equity method (198,218) (118,901)
Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, plantand ~ HEWE - BENREZ
equipment B8/ () 140 (592)
Provision for impairment of trade receivables  FEUBRFURE R - 2,188
Provision for inventories FERE 5,012 11,041
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE - 61,978
Impairment of property, plant and equipment %1% - BiE ik &R E - 7,551
Loss on dilution/(net gains on dilution and PR EANR — B ER
disposal) of interest in an investment BEEE/ (BERNENETE)
accounted for using the equity method 8,442 (251,215)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMBAR K& - (51,743)
Gain on disposals of available-for-sale financial ~HE A HELRERE 2 Iz
assets - (126,360)
Employees’ incentive programme of a subsidiary —FSHiER 72 (& 8 52EHEl - 27,303
Interest income MBMA (15,783) (6,763)
Operating profit before working capital changes &84 & #8312 L% 7 61,804 41,149
(Increase)/decrease in inventories &M,/ Hd (7,456) 10,165
Decrease in trade and bills receivables, BUETLERERE  TRRFEE
receivables from payment processing solutions R Z £ 7 EUGKIAM K
business and other receivables, prepayments  HAEYTE - BRNFER
and deposits ReR> 87,631 50,262
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from FEYAE R E AR 2 R B2
investments accounted for using the equity FERD,/ (1)
method 11,166 (19,480)
Increase in trade and bills payables, payables for EREEFRENZE « XRR5EE
payment processing solutions business and SRR RER 2 ERFEN K
other payables and accruals Hofth B A 5008 R B S AR 328,115 153,605
Decrease in amount due to an investment ERNEREANR, —BREZ
accounted for using the equity method FERD - (68,716)
Cash generated from operations REmBRE 481,260 166,985
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28

29

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(continued)

(b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of

property, plant and equipment comprise:

28

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

REmBRE(E)

REERER  HEWE - BER
RIBAEFRESE -

(b)

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+t—HLEE

2015 2014

—E-fHE —ZE—mEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT THET

Net book amount (Notes 14) FREVFE (A 14) 911 24,722

(Loss)/gain on disposals of property, ~ HEWE - BEKEEZ

plant and equipment (E18) Wz (140) 592
Proceeds from disposals of property, &  BE &RETE

plant and equipment FIR 771 25,314

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year, the Company entered into a performance
guarantee agreement with a customer (the “Performance
Guarantee Agreement”). Pursuant to the Performance Guarantee
Agreement, the Company agreed to provide the customer with a
guarantee in relation to the due and punctual performance of a
subsidiary of the Group in providing services for a modernisation
project with not more than HK$60,000,000 and claims of
infringement of third party’s intellectual property right. As at
31 December 2015, the Company does not recognise any
liability in relation to the Performance Guarantee Agreement
as the Directors of the Company consider the possibility of
reimbursement is not probable.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material contingent

liability as at 31 December 2015.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

29

HAREE

FAN - ARRHE—FZRELIT L RIBERD
HIRBEERBZE]D - BERBERD
ZF - ARRRERASE —REWNEBEARME
RN AHKTIER IRERE 2 RE - M
ZHBPIRETZ160,000,00078 T2 12
REBILEZFANBERIER - RZF
—RFE+-A=+—HB HRARFRES
REBREREZAEETS - AR RL
BEREERBERBE 2 TMAE -

B EX®EEN R-E—AF+_-A
=t—R AEEIYEBEFNERNLIAE

&

R-ZT—MNE+—_A=+—08 AEBHYW
EAWERKARE -
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Operating lease commitments (@
As at 31 December 2015, the Group had future aggregate

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases as follows:

B A 05 W Bk

REHERIE
R-ZE—hFE+-_A=+—H8 " K
EERTAABELEHNBEBT 2R
KRS FAENT ¢

Land and buildings

T REF
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2015 2014
—E-hF —ET—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Not later than one year TEBA—F 26,596 34,537
Later than one year and not later than five B —FETHBERATF
years 54,847 52,946
Later than five years BiBRF 18,771 29,800
100,214 117,283
Capital commitments (b) EAREE

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year
but not yet incurred is as follows:

Property, plant and equipment mE - BB KRB

RER BRI MRESE 2 BA K
T

2015 2014
—F-1F —T-mF
HK$/000 HK$'000
TR THET
3,319 -
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31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31 BEARS
As at 31 December 2015, Rich Global Limited (incorporated in RIEBE—RF+-_A=+—"8 REBE
British Virgin Islands) owns 22.22% of the Company’s shares. ZRESFEMAKSZ ZRich Global Limited?#
The remaining 77.78% of the shares are widely held. BARRE22.22%840 © 8T 77.78% 87
HARALTHEA °
(@ Transactions with related parties during the year: @ FREPFEAIRS:
Except as disclosed below, the Group has no significant BRTIXHEEN  REBEE=-Z—H
transaction with related parties during the year ended 31 F+-A=+—HILFE  r&H
December 2015 (2014: same). W ET M ERR S (=
Z—PE : HER) e
2015 2014
—E-hHEF —ZE—mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Rental income (Note i) e WA (H i) 1,604 1,401
Licence income (Note ii) FERT R A (B atii) - 5,078
Purchase of electronic payment BEE T NEmH i)
products (Note iii) 148,505 55,025
Sales of mag-stripe card security SHE MR INE ARAS
decoder chips (Note iv) (H5tiv) 39,061 38,794
Note: iz -

(i) Rental income from an associated company was charged at a fixed
monthly fee mutually agreed between the two parties.

(if) Licence income from an investment accounted for using the equity
method was conducted pursuant to terms and conditions set out in
the licence agreement entered into by the Group and an associated
company on 13 April 2012.

(i) Purchase of electronic payment products was transacted pursuant to
the terms and conditions set out in the framework agreement entered
into by the Group and an associated company dated 19 December
2012.

(iv)  Sales of mag-stripe card security decoder chips were transacted
pursuant to the terms and conditions set out in the framework
agreement entered into by the Group and an associated company on
31 December 2013.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

*E A QR ZHESWAT AIRY
77 F[RWh5E 2 B E B AR YRR o

REAEREAIR . —THIRE 2T
YA TR 35 S S (] B — g R B —
T EPA+= BRI 2 BT
PR R IR

BETFZHEREEASER M
BE AR B AT ——F =
AN B 2 B2 LR e
%5 -

SHERB G R NBRIS TR IREALE
H-RBERARRN T —=F1+_f
=+ — BTS2 HEZR IR A B IR R I
HHETTRS -
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BELIRS (&)

Balances with investments accounted for using the equity (b) LEREARZEBREZ&EE
method
As at 31 December
Rt+t=A=+—8H
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Amount due from an associated JE — B & & R I8
company 7,764 12,075
Amount due from a joint venture e —F AL REHIE 2,997 10,666
10,761 22,741
Amount due to an associated company [ —fE1E & A B F0E (70,912) -

Balances with the associated company and the joint
venture are denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

Key management compensation

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, key
management compensation is equivalent to the Directors’
emolument as disclosed in Note 33.

BERARALEEEZERR/UAARES
B EER - TRt R RIZEREE -

(0 FEEHEEBHE
HE-_ZT—RAFER-_ZT—NF+=
A=+—HItFE FEEEEZ
HERSERM M E 2 E SN
o
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32 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF

THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

ERARIZEERER

32 ARFRzEERBRRAEHFEEE

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+—H
2015 2014
—E-AF —T-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FET
ASSETS 'E
Non-current assets EMBNVEE
Investment properties REME 2,825 3,083
Leasehold land HELTH 23,511 24,271
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZIRE 717,640 713,127
Investment accounted for using the ~ LAREZSEABR 2 &
equity method 259,770 259,770
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 1,003,746 1,000,251
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, prepayments and ~ H A EURFIE « FEMFIB R
deposits e 2,382 1,773
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSBH B A R IE 398,484 341,834
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY 594,253 693,692
Total current assets RBEEHAE 995,119 1,037,299
Total assets EEAE 1,998,865 2,037,550
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable to N2 Al 155 A FE(G IR AR
the Company’s equity holders N
Share capital [N 6,942 6,942
Reserves s Note (a) 1,389,443 1,431,792
Hiit(a)
Total equity EmERR 1,396,385 1,438,734
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32 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF

THE COMPANY (continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (continued)

32
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ARBzEEERRRHHEED
(&)

ERARIZEEREBR(E)

As at 31 December

B+=A=+—H
2015 2014
—E-EF —E—JUFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FAET
LIABILITIES afE

Current liabilities mESE
Other payables and accruals Eo e3R8 K BT ERIE 21,051 16,852
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASBHIB A R FRIE 566,629 567,164
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHRAasE 14,800 14,800
Total current liabilities BB ERE 602,480 598,816
Total liabilities EEHE 602,480 598,816
Total equity and liabilities EaRkAERRE 1,998,865 2,037,550

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board

of Directors on 8 March 2016 and was signed on its behalf.

XU WENSHENG
Director

LI WENJIN
Director

ARRIZEERBRAEFEN TN
FZANBHERERERESE -

X E FXE
EF EF
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32 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 32 ARPRzEEEBERKHEES

THE COMPANY (continued) (&)
Balance sheet of the Company (continued) rpmzEERBERGE)
Note (a): Reserve movement of the Company Wiat(a) - AR E]2 (H1EZE)
(Accumulated
losses)/
Share Contributed Other retained
premium surplus reserves earnings Total
(R3tER),/
RAPERE EdRH Hibf#E REEA &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
THERT TER THET TER TR
At 1 January 2015 R-B-RF—HF-8H 1,290,857 46,417 34,223 60,295 1,431,792
Loss for the year FRER - - - (42,349) (42,349)
At 31 December 2015 R-B-1F
+=A=+-H 1,290,857 46,417 34,223 17,946 1,389,443
At1 January 2014 R-E-mFE-A-A 1,290,857 46,417 34,823 (258,035) 1,114,062
Profit for the year FREF - - - 318,330 318,330
Release of reserve upon disposal of an HE—EIHEEER
available-for-sale financial asset BERRBILZFE - - (600) - (600)
At 31 December 2014 R-B-IF
+=B=+-H 1,290,857 46,417 34,223 60,295 1,431,792
Note: Bt :
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the fair value AAT Y BEESISRESAFIKE Y HBARKRGS
of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the reorganisation over AFHEEADNTGFU TR DBITRMEES =5 -
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange thereof. Under BEABEE-NAN\—EQT%  AFAEEFBERLT
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a company may make distributions to its NEH RSP ELZEUAEREELDIE -

members out of the contributed surplus under certain circumstances.
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33 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 33 EBEZEARER(REERR
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF &5 (5£622%F ) 5E3831& - A TF]
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (WEEENZER)BEMI(E
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF 622GE)REBERB LWHAAEXR
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) EHE)

REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING

RULES)

(@ Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@ ESBERTBAZZHE
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive SBRESRITHAH ZMEHI W
is set out below: b
For the year ended 31 December 2015: g%:%—ﬁi—f—:ﬁ] =+—AHit

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director, whether of
the Company o ts subsidiary undertaking
HEFALTIENBATES EARR EAARYME

Emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect of

director’s other

Remunerations ~ services in

paid or - connection with

Employer's receivable  the management

contribution  in respect of of the affairs of

Estimated ~ to a retirement accepting  the Company

Discretionary Housing - money value of henefit office s~ or its subsidiary
Name 4 Fees Salary honuses allowance ~ other henefits scheme director  undertaking Total

REZEE

ERALTY

EHELE

£ 72

e HEREEA  EMEBZ

AR BAEN  EZZERY Effg
e ¢ BEEA  RERR MHEREE  REER BMEE By it
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR Tin Tin TiEn TR TR TR Tin

Executive Directors e
Cheung Yuk Fung I8 360 - 300 - - - - - 660
Kui Man Chun (Chief Frecutive Officer)  2E& (1755 - 1,680 5,300 - - 18 - - 7,198
Xu Wensheng BXE - 1,795 4,800 - - 18 - - 6,613
Li Wenjin 2VE - 1,380 4,000 - - 18 - - 5,398
Xu Chang Jun %EE - 1,456 4,000 - - 18 - - 5,474
Non-Executive Directors afEs
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard* Rig 135 - 100 - - - - - 235
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BYFH1TEZ
Tam Chun Fai EiRE 120 - 100 - - - - - 20
Leung Wai Man, Roger 2ER 120 - 100 - - - - - 220
XuSitao** FER 120 - 100 - - - - - prl|
Totel it 85 6511 18,800 B B 7 B . 26238
* Mr. Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard was re-designated as an Independent Non- * RIEZRER T RNF_A -+ BERAERAR
Executive Director of the Company on 26 February 2016. RIBYFFMITES -

o Mr. Xu Sitao ceased to be an Independent Non-Executive Director of the ~ ** AFRREERZE-—REZAZ+RAEELRATE
Company on 26 February 2016. STIEHITES -
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33 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 33 EEZEANRER(ZREAQT
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF &5 (5F622E ) E3831& - AT
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (HEEENRER)HRHI(E
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF 622GE)REBLMHRAER
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) EHIRE) (B)

REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued) (@ EERTHRAZZEE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2014: HE-_T—NF+-A=+—HL
FE

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director, whether of
the Company orits subsicliary undertaking
SREARAIENBATES L EARK ERRYES :

Emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect of

director's other

Remunerations services in

paid orconnection with

Employer's  receivable the management

contribution  inrespect of - of the affairs of

Estimated ~to a retirement accepting  the Company

Discretionary Housing - money value of benefit office as~ or its subsidiary
Name 4 Fees Salary bonuses allowance  other benefits scheme director  undertaking Total

HEZER

BEALTY,

AlEna

252

Efe HEREEAE  EEH

Aftigr] RIVEH  EZ7EMY Efig
g B¢ BREL RERE GIEEEE  SEER BB BUEe fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TR Tin TEL T T T Tin

Executive Directors Yi7E%

Cheung Yuk Fung FEE 360 - - - - - - 360
Kui Man Chun (Chief Executive Officer) 2B & (1THi8%;) - 1,680 4300 - - 17 - - 5,997
Xu Wensheng Bk - 1292 3,800 - - 17 - 5,109
Li Wenjin 5XE - 1,080 3,300 . . 7 - - 4397
Xu Chang Jun %EE - 954 3,300 - - 17 - 4271
Non-Executive Directors FUTEE

Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard RHE 130 - 50 - - - - 180
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BU#HTES

Tam Chun Fai Ehe 114 - 50 - - - - 164
Leung Wai Man, Roger 2ER 114 - 50 - - - - - 164
Xu Sitao HEE 114 - 50 - - - - 164
Total ait 832 5,006 14,900 - - 68 - 20,806
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33 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(b)

(o)

(d)

(e)

()

Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the year (2014: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year (2014: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2014: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there is no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of directors, or controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors (2014: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly to indirectly; subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year (2014:
Nil).

B W5 W B ik

33 EECEAREREEARAAT
%5 (56622 ) 5E3831% ~ AT
(IRBEENZER)ROI(E
622GE)REFERB LHRAIER
EHIE) (E)

(b)

(0)

(d)

(e)

®

ESRAEF
FA - BEEED LS REER
HREF(ZF—04F - &) -

ESEBEAN
FA - BEEECD HBREUEMRE
BEMN(CZ—F - 8) -

RENEESRBROE=ZFXFT2R
B
REE-_ZE—AF+=-_A=+—8H
IEFE - ARAWEERE =R
BMAEAE=AXARE(ZE
—PUF ) o

BRUES ZEEEZZEHE
ErEEERAREACENR £
ERREMRE 2ER
RBEE-_ZT-AF+-_A=1+—H
IFFE - BEAES  ZFEF
ZREHZERBEERAREA
ZER - EEFREMRZZH (=
T ) o

EENXS  ZYRANZERE
m

AN AL P AR S () B RS
AETAARBESNEPEES
MEHEATMNEAEEAEEAQT
EBABUZEARS ZHEREYD
(ZE2—F - ]|) -
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A summary of the published consolidated results and of the
consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and restated as
appropriate, is set as below:

2015

—E-EE -

HK$/000
TER

Results ¥

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders #z5H8 AR EH/(EIE) 183,486

Assets and liabilities BEREE
Total assets BEAE 4,576,515
Total liabilities BEER (1,238,571)

Capital and reserves attributable to the A7 R HH AE(E
Company’s equity holders RAR#E 3,308,828

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

BHRERECUBHRRIIDERIEREY 2 A%
EREREMRFRED AR RERGAEE
HEERRET

Year ended 31 December
BET=A=t-ALEE
2014 2013 2012 2011
T-mg -z —E--f ZE——F%

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TR TEL

397,071 30,045 (160,763) (255,493)

4,110,752 3,576,445 3,192,299 3,392,509

(896,549) (830,469) (510,914) (453,467)

3,192,381 2,759,360 2,626,095 2,812,987
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